TERA

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

IN THE MATTER OF:

BOSTON EDISON COMPANY, at al

(Pilgrim Nuclear Generating Station, Unit No. 2)

POOR ORIGINAL

Plymouth, Massachusetts

Place -

Date -

28 August 1979

Pages 11,451 - 11,707

1137 134

Telephone: (202) 347-3700

ACE - FEDERAL REPORTERS, INC.

Official Reporters

444 North Capitol Street Washington, D.C. 20001

NATIONWIDE COVERAGE - DAILY

		POOR ORIGINAL	11,491
CR6549	1	UNITED STAT	S OF AMERICA
PARKER	2	NUCLEAR REGULAT	ORY COMMISSION
MADELON	3		x .
	4	In the matter of:	:
	5	BOSTON EDISON COMPANY, et al	: Dockat No. 50-471
	6	(Pilgrim Nuclear Generating Stat Unit No.2)	ion, :
	7		•
	8		
	Э		Plymouth Memorial Hall, Plymouth, Massachusetts
	10		Ruesday, 28 August 1979
	11	/ The booting in the	howeneshitled mathem ups
	12	reconvened, pursuant to adjourn	ment, at 9:00 a.m.
	13	BBFORE :	
	14	ANDREW C. GOODHOPE,	Esq., Chairman,
	15	Atomic Safety and	Licensing Board
	16	DR. RICHARD F. COLE.	Mamber
	17	DR. DIXON CALLIHAN,	Member
	18	APPEARANCES :	
	19	GERALD H. LEWALD, Es 225 Franklin Stree	et, Boston, Massachusetts; and
	20	DALE G. STOODLEY, ES Legal Dept., 800 E	eq., Boston Edison Company, Boylston Stract, Boston,
	21	Massachusetts; on	behalf of the Applicant.
	22	MICHAEL B. MEYER, Es Assistant Attorney	g., and FRANCIS WRIGHT, Esq., 's General, State of
	23	Massachusetts; on of Massachusetts,	behalf of the Commonwealth Intervenor.
	24		
	25		1137 135
	1		

11,492

	. 1	on onumAL
mpb2	1	APPEARANCES: (Continued)
	2	BARRY SMITH, Esq., Office of the Executive Lagal Director, Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, D.C., on behalf of the Nuclear Regulatory Staff.
		ALAN R. CLEETON. Pro 30.
	3	
	6	
	7	
	8	
	9	
	10	
	11	
	12	
	13	
	14	
	15	
•	16	
	18	
	19	
	20	1137 136
	21	
	22	
	23	
	24	
	25	

				11,493	
mml	1	CON	TENTS		
	2	WITNESSES: DIRECT VOIR	CROSS REDIRECT	RECROSS BOARD	CROSS CN
	3	(Recursed)			BUARD
	4	Falk Kantor)	11,502		
	5	Leonard Sorrer)			
	6	Philip Herr 11,590 11,62	1 11,631 11,687	11,688	11,70:
	7				
	8				
	9				
	10				
	11				
	12	EXHIBITS:	IDENTIFICATION	EVIDENCE	
	13	(Report from E.G.Case to			
	14	NRC Commissioners dtd 3/7/78)	11,537	11,537	
	15				
	16				
	17				
	18				
	19				
	20		1137 137	7	
	21				
	22				
	23				
	24				
	25				

		POOR ORIGINAI 11, 494
8/28		and the second sec
take 1	1	PROCEELINGS
<u></u>	2	CHAIRMAN GCODECPE: The nearing will be in order.
	3	This a continuation of the hearings of the
	4	Boston Edison Company, et al., Pilgrim Nuclear Generating
	5	Unit No. 2, Dockat No. 50-471.
	6	Will counsel please statement their appearances.
	7	MR. LEWALD: My name is Reorga E. Lewald. My
	3	address is Ropes & Gray, 225 Franklin Street, Boston,
	9	Massachusetts.
	10	With me is Dale G. Stocdley, assistant general
	11	counsel for Boston Edison Company, 300 Boylston Street
	12	Boston, Massachusetts, representing the applicant.
	13	WR. WRIGHT: My name is Francis Aright. I
	14	represent the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
	15	MR. SMITH: My name is Earry E. Smith; I
	16	represent the NRC staff. My address is Washington, D. C.
	17	MR. CLEETON: Alan R. Cleeton, 22 MacIntosh Road,
	18	Franklin, Massachusetts, representing myself.
	19	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: One matter before we proceed:
	20	Mr. Lewald has requested the issuance of subposnas, and the
	21	board has considered his request. The subpoents will be
	22	granted and will be issued immediately upon my return to
\sim	23	Washington.
	24	MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman?
	25	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yes?

and a second

11,495

1	MR. WRIGET: May I be heard on that, please?
2	CHAIRMAN GOODROPE: Are you going to object to
3	'presenting the witnesses? This is an on parte matter, as I
4	understand it.
5	I'll hear from you, though.
6	MR. WRIGHT: There is one thing, sir. First of
7	all, we just received this request for subscena yesterday.
8	We're still considering it. I'd ask that you hold your
9	riling until we can respond to it. The one thing that
10	immediately comes to mind is it's certainly very much out of
11	the ordinary, and that's the requirement that the witnesses
12	in this case that are being subpoenaed haro file written
13	testinony.
14	I don't think that's usual, at least to my
15	knowledge, for that alone; we'd like in opportunity to
16	respond in detail. As soon as these hearings are concluded,
17	I intend to get back to my office and fille a written
18	response.
19	I'd ask that you withhold any ruling until
20	we've had a chance to respond in writing.
21	CHAIRMAN GOODEOPE: We'll go ahead and issue the
22	subposnas as requested. If you have objections to it, then
23	file your objections then.
24	MR. WRIGHT: Do I understand that would be
25	requiring the witnesses to file written testimony? That's what

david2

		PROR ORIGINAL 11,495
david3	1	the subpoena asks for.
	2	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Is that unusual? It's the
	3	general custom to file written testimony.
	4	MR. WRIGHT: If the party is presenting the
	5	witness, yes, it's customary. But if somebody is being
	6	subpoenaed, I think it's very unusual to force them in advance
	7	of that to sit down and write up testimony to be filed.
	8	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, I'm assuming that the
	9	purposes of this are to permit the witnesses to testify as to
	10	what the arrangements were and how they're going to proceed
	11	along the lines of the letter of July 25, 1979. to Mr. Abbott
	12	and Mr. Moulton, as signed by Alan B. Scheer (phonetic),
	13	assistant attorney general.
	14	MR. WRIGHT: I think there are many occasions in
	15	which witnesses are subpoenaed into these kinds of
	16	hearings.
	17	But in all cases they are subject to direct
	18	examination and then cross examination. I've nover heard of a
	19	party forced to come in who was not sponsored by a party
	20	directly and be forced to write it all out.
	21	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: If they're unable to present
	22	written testimony, and they have a reason to present written
	23	testimony, I think that would still be in compliance with
	24	the subpoena, if even if it does call for it. If they
	25	don't have a basis for preparing written testimony, why, they

C

11,497 1 just say they don't have a basis. They don't know what 2 testimony they want. Therefore, they're unable to present it 3 or file written testimony. 4 MR. WRIGHT: Well, if you --5 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: That's another thing. Do you know that Mr. Parker or whoever he designates is going to 6 7 object to it? MR. WRIGHT: I have not had a chance to look into 8 9 this matter at all. CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Wa'll issue the subpoena. If 10 you have objections to the subpoena, file your objections. 11 12 MR. WRIGHT: Well ---CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I'm just putting you on notice 13 14 now that the application will be granted. 15 MR. CLEETON: Mr. Chairman? 16 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yes? MR. CLEETON : You made a reference to a letter 17 to Mr. Abbott and Mr. Moulton. That's in reference to 18 Pilgrim 1 and not Pilgrim 2. I don't know if this is 19 relevant to this subpoena, but the attachments thereto are 20 a matter regarding Pilgrim 1, not Pilgrim 2. 21 DR. COLE: I think they're related to the 22. emergency planning. It's difficult to separate Pilgrim 1 23 and Pilgrim 2 when you're talking about emergency plans 24 25 and emergency planning. 1137 141

david4

david5

Las

11,498



11,499

a	1	MR. WRIGHT: If I may, Mr. Chairman, may I make a
'avid6	2	request that you withhold your ruling on the subpoena
	3	until we set a chance to respond to it? It'll only be a couple
	4	of days and I think it's an infair position for us. We have
	5	a novel question, here, whether or not a witness can be
	6	required to submit written testimony in ahead of time. And
	7	I just think fairness would call for an opporitunity to
	8	respond to that particular question. We just received this in
	9	yesterday, since we've been down here and simply have not had
	10	the time to work this thing through.
	11	(Board Conferring)
	12	CHAIRMAN GOODHOW: We'll issue the subpoena. If you
	13	have objections, file them. With that we'll proceed with the
	14	witnesses.
	15	MR. SMITH: Mr. chairman?
	16	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yes, Mr. Smith.
	17	MR. SMITH: That was one of the preliminary matters
	18	I wanted to report back what I know on the subject we discussed
	19	yesterday relating to emergency planning. Unfortunately, I
	20	don't know more today than I did yesterday. I think that the
	21	best course then, is for me - as soon as I get back, if any
	22	thing changes in the nature that I discussed yesterday, to
	23	inform the board and parties, and otherwise go ahead as
	24	planned. On that matter, I talked to the other parties and
	25	at least the parties are in agreement to have testimony filed,
		1137 143

david7

11,500

rather than on September 14, which is still within the rules
for filing tesitmony. And also, there's been interrogatories
filed by the Cormonwealth and we've agreed among ourselves
to, of the date of September 10.

3 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right. But on that, if 3 there are changes, because I certainly want to get a actice 7 out at least two weeks and a press release out at least two weeks in advance of those hearings, so if wa're going to do 8 anything, let us know as quickly as you can, so that the board 3 283 is not going to end up in a bind of gatting a notice out under the federal register and a press release out for those 11 October 1 hearings. 12

MR. SMITH: I understand that, sir. We could have a conference call or set up individual call with the parties.

DR. COLE: We expect to find out, Mr. Smith. What are you looking for?

MR. SMITE: I an looking for whether the commission is going to suspend licensing activities relating to TMI. And mergency planning would be one of those things that they may not want the staff to go forward with.

DR. COLE: They did not make a decision yesterday. MR. SMITH: The people I know didn't know if they made a decision. I am going to keep in contact with them-they don't know what the results of the commission's meetings will be today.

11,501

DR. COLE: Okay, thank you.

2	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I don't think I made myself
3	clear on this yesterday, but I have a little problem on this.
4	They talk in terms of no further licensing but they do not
5	talk in terms of no further hearings on applications for
6	licenses. I don't know if it's a valid distinction; I think
7	it is.
8	MR. SMITH: I would agree with you , Mr. Chairman,
9	we have the same problem.
10	CHAIRMAN GCODEOPE: It is a problam.
11	MR. SMITH: I don't wknow what the commission.
12	response will be and I hope when they make a response; if they
13	make a response, they'll make clear as to what they see their
14	role as and what they want the staff to do.
15	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Are there any other
16	preliminary matters? All right. We have two witnesses we had
17	yesterday: Mr. Soffer and Mr. Nantor. They have returned.
18	Mr. Wright, you are cross examining.
19	
20	
21	화장 이 것 같은 것
22	
23	
24	
25	1137 145

david8

tape 1-B	1	Whereupon,
lavid9	2	PALK KANTOR DOOD ODICINIAL
	3	and I UUN UNIUNVAL
	4	LEONARD SOFFER
	3	ware called as witnessas, and having been previously duly
	3	sworn, were examined and testified as follows:
	7	CROSS EXAMINATION (Resumed)
	6	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	3 1	Q If we could, gentlemen, could we turn to staff's
	:0	exhibit 66? That's the tables that you passed out yesterday.
	11	Now if you would look at table 3, just for purposes of
	12	identification, this is the table that now represents your
	13	latest calculations as to population figures based on he ERT
	14	study.
	15	A (Witness Kantor) Yes.
	16	Q Will you look at column D, please labelled:
	17	Tourists. Now, I notice that all of the tourists within
	18	30 miles of the Pilgrim 2 site, you have placed in two rings.
	19	The two to three mile ring and the four to five mile ring.
	20	Could you tell me, does that mean that there are no tourists
	21	between zero and two miles, for example?
	22 1	A We do not believe there are any significant
	23	concentrations of tourists of two miles, such that when they
	24	are weighted, that when they would be a factor in the over"
	25	all population.
	1	1137 146

11,502

11,503

1 0 But you did have the ERT study with you at the 2 time, that indicates, at least in terms of peak numbers. There 3 are saveral thousand people in that area. Is that correct? 4 The ERT study indicates there are tourists within A 5 zeroto three miles. As I indicated yesterday they are associated with the Pilgrim Shorefront and Overlook. 5 7 0 That is a restaurant? 8 A No, it's a -- it's a recreation facility. And visitors center associated with the nuclear plant. It's 3 owned and controlled by the applicant. 10 And for what reason did you decide that there 11 0 should -- that the number of tourists there is so negligible 12 that you should call it zero. 13 The information that we had on the amount of time 14 A that the tourists spent there. So we weighted the 15 the average time. The result was not 16 significant, also the fact that the -- the tourists in this 17 area are under the control of the applicant was another 18 factor. 19 0 Now, there's a beach within two miles of the 20 Pilgrim site. Is ther not aPriscilla Beach? 21 A Priscilla Beach is within two miles. Yes, it is. 22 Presumably, there are people who go to swim and Q 23 spend the day there? 24 All right, now Priscilla Beach is a private beach A 25 1137 147

david10

	11,504
davidll 1	to my knowledge. And the people who would use the beach would
2	be the permanent residents or the season residents in the
3	Priscilla Beach area, which are accounted for in the odd data.
4	Q What about tourists between five miles andthirty
5	miles? I take itu are not saying there are no tourists in that
6	area?
7	A That's correct.
8	We have found that short term vistors and are
9	significant only within the first several miles of the
10	plant, about five miles.
11	Beyond five miles it takes a tremendous amount of
12	short term vistors to have an effect on the overall population
13	distribution.
14	For example, between 10 and 30 miles to increase
. 15	the population roughly by 100 per square mile, you need something
16	on the order of 75 million daytime tourists; just a
17	tremendous number as you get further away from the plant and
18	the area increases.
19	DR. COLE: Excuse me. I didn't understand your
20	answer; could you repeat that?
21	I thought you said to increase the population by
22	so many square miles
23	WITNESS KANTER: No. To increase the population
24	100 per square mile
. 25	
	1137 148

		11,505
david12	1	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	2	Q Mr. Kantor, did you gather figures for the
1.1	3	tourists from five to 30 miles?
	4	A No. We don't have the figure on daytime,
	5	short term tourists beyond five miles.
	õ	I have reviewed some reports on tourism, but I
	7	have no report, specifically, on short term visitors into
	8	the population data base.
	9	Q And if we go out 30 miles from unit 2, we're
	10	including a substantial portion of the Cape, are we not?
	11.	A Yes, sir.
	12	Q And Provincetown?
	13	A No, I believe Provincetown is beyond the 30
	14	miles.
	15	Q Would you like to check that?
	16	I believe it's 20, but go ahead.
	17	A You're correct: Provincetown is 25 miles.
	18	Q Thank you.
	19	MR. LEWALD: I suggest Mr. Wright be sworn if
	20	he's going to be offering testimony.
	21	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Continue, Mr. Wright.
	22	BY MR. WRIGHT: 1137 149
	23	Q Mr. Kantor or Mr. Soffer, for that matter, I
	24	compared the original figures that were provided you in
	25	the ER between those given you in the ER study, and there
		are obviously substantial discrepencies between the two
	1	

TAUNT IN

And And A come

11,506

david13 1	now that you have attempted to work into your new table.
2	Do you have any explanation for how this occurzed?
3	Let me ask you a for instance: for zero to one milp, for
4	example, according to the environment 1 report submitted
5	by Boston Edison, there were only 452 seasonal residents there.
6	However, the ERT study that you just received, indicates
7	that there were 1361 people there.
3	MR. LEWALD: I object to the form of the question.
9	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: We haen't gotten to the
10	question yet.
11	BY MR. WRIGHT:
12	Q I'm asking you, sir, what or have you investigated
13	why there was such a discrepency between those two figures.
14	MR. LEWALD: Still object to the question. It
15	reeks with argument.
16	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, I
17	MR. LEWALD: I think the question can be put to the
19	witness without prefatory remarks where the interrogator has
19	examined the results of the investigation.
20	CHAIRMAN GOODHOFE: I agree: the question can
- 21	be asked quite a bit more sharply.
22	Can you explain the difference there?
23	I don't call it "discrepency." There is a difference
24	in the numbers; can you explain it, Mr. Kantor? 1137 150
25	WITNESS KANTOR: I believe the difference results in

david14

2

3

4

5

3

11

:5

24

25

1 the fact that the ERT study today is a much more thorough and systematic review within a short distance of the plant than what was done originally, and came up with a significant number -- additional number of seasonal residents; in turn, they multiplied that by a factor of five, assuming five residents per seasonal resident.

7 And I think the fact is the number five is also 8 larger than the number that was used in the original study; 9 the five people per seasonal resident was meant to be a weekend 10 seasonal peak occupancy number.

CHAIRMAN GOODBOPE: In your study?

12 WITNESS KANTOR: In the SRT study, which I indicated, I believe, was higher than used in the original 13 14 study.

BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q Mr. Kantor or Mr. Soffer, did either of you 16 gentlemen work on the calculation that went into establishing 17 the --18

CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: I'm sorry; I couldn't hear 19 the question. 20

MR. WRIGHT: I asked if either of them worked 21 on the calculations that went into the establishing of the 22 low population zone? 23

WITNESS SOFFER: Yes, I did.

1137 151

11,507

		11,508
david15	1	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	2	Q Would these new figures supplied by the ERT study
	3	make a difference in the size of the LPZ?
	4	MR. SMITE: I'm going to object on the grounds
	5	of relevancy.
end 1	6	
	7	
	8	방부는 말 사람들을 가 물건을 얻는 것이 같아. 그는 것을 물었다.
	9	
	10	
	11	
	12	
	13	
	14	
	15	
	16	
	17	
	18	
	19	
	20	
	22	
	23	
	24	
	25	1137 152

-

11,509

Cr6549 1 MELTZER/mm1

2

19

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: What are you trying to show, Mr. Wright?

MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, as you know, there is an area surrounding the site called the Low Population Zone, and to a certain extent it is based upon the number of people contained therein and the ease with which they can be evacuated in the event of a nuclear emergency.

8 We have just received this information now as to substantially higher numbers of seasonal residents in this 9 area. And it seems to me -- and I only have a couple of 10 questions on this -- that it might be informative for all of 11 us to find out whether or not these figures have now been 12 employed in looking again at the LPZ, because the LPZ originally 13 was based, as I said, to a certain extant on the number of 14 people. 15

16 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well your question is, will these 17 new figures change his original figures that he presented in 18 the LPZ?

MR. WRIGHT: Yes.

20 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right. I'll let that question 21 be answered.

22 WITNESS SOFFER: I have not investigated the impact 23 of these new figures on the LP2.

24 However, based upon just a recollection, and a 25 cursory examination of the numbers, and my understanding of

1	them today, my judgment is that it would not change our
2	conclusion regarding the LPZ for the following reasons:
3	'he calculation that went into the establishment of
4	the LPZ was primarily a calculation that was aimed at
5	determining what the population center distance was. Population
5	center distance is the requirement that is imposed by 10 CFR
7	Part 100.
8	And what we did, and what I did, and what was
9	reported in I believe Supplement No. 3 to the SER, was to make
10	an examination of population concentrations in the area around
11	the plant, and to determine where we believe the nearest
12	population center was.
13	The Staff at that time had reason to believe that
14	the contiguous communities of Plymouth, North Kingston and
15	Plymouth Center would become a population center within the
16	meaning of 10 CFR Part 100. And the question was then to
17	determine where the edge or where the distance to the
18	population center was.
19	This was determined on the basis of several criteria
20	population density, community institutions such as schools,
21	hospitals, nursing homes and a determination was made that the
22	population center distance was approximately 3.1 miles. That
23	is the distance from the plant to the Plymouth Nursing Home.
24	Therefore, using the requirements in Part 100 that
25	the population center distance must be at least 1 1/3 times the
	1137 154

mm 2

-

POOR ORIGINAL 12,511

	1	
3	1	LPZ, it was determined could be no larger than 2.3 miles.
	2	The Staff requested the Applicant to reduce the
	3	LP2 and the Applicant has done so accordingly.
	4	The new numbers that have been presented in the ERT
	3	study indicate that the population in the low population zone
	6	may be somewhat higher than the values that were originally
	7	reported by the Staff in the SER supplements of 1974 and 1975.
	3	However, this does not change the conclusion as to where the
	9	population center distance is.
	10	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	11	Q I see.
	12	A (Witness Soffer) Consequently, my judgment is that
	13	no, it does not change the LPZ.
	14	Q Mr. Kantor, the ERT study contains tables for ten-
	15	year increments. In other words, 1980, 1990 and so forth.
	15	And yet your charts, looking at 1985, could you tell me how
	17	you got those seasonal figures from the ERT study for 1935?
	18	A (Witness Kantor) I interpolated between 1980 and
	19	1990.
	20	DR. CALLIHAN: What kind of interpolation? Linear?
	21	WITNESS KANTOR: Linear.
	22	DR. CALLIHAN: Thank you.
	23	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	24	Q I did some averaging last night myself, and for
	25	zero to two miles, based on the new ERT study, I determined
		1137 155

mm 3

POOR ORIGINAI 11,512

-

mn4

	. oon oniginal
1	that the peak population in other words during the
2	summertime Was 10,762.
3	Does that sound reasonable to you, Mr. Kantor?
4	MR. SMITH: I object.
5	MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, I can have him do it.
6	I just want to speed things up a bit.
7	MR. SMITH: I object to that, too.
8	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: What is your question?
9	MR. WRIGHT: I want to establish what the peak
10	population is in 1985 between zero and two miles.
11	CHAIRMAN GOODLOPE: Why don't you ask him that
12	question.
13	BY MR. WRIGHT:
14	Q Mr. Kantor, what is the peak population in 1985
15	between zero and two miles, if you could please using the ERT
16	study?
17	A (Witness Kantor) I have to review the numbers here.
18	We are talking shout peak daily population, is that correct?
19	Q Yes.
20	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, if the witness could
21	respond to the question, he would have to perform calculations.
22	He doesn't know without doing the calculations is
23	what I understand from his testimony.
24	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Have you done this? Have you
25	made these calculations?
	113/ 156

		POOR ORIGINAL
ma5	1	WITNESS KANTOR: This particular one, no, sir.
	2	CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: Can you do it rapidly?
	3	MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, I can tell him tha
	4	pages that the two
	5	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: We are not going to sit here and -
	6	you are trying to make this your witness. We are not going to
	7	sit here and have him present a statistical study under the
	8	guise of cross-examination.
	9	If you want to present the study and point out that
	10	yours is much better than what they have done, you have an
	11	opportunity to do that.
	12	MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, I understand that.
	13	And if you would indulge me in this one all I
	14	need is this one more figure.
	15	CHAIRMAN GOCDHOPE: All right. Let's go to this one
i la	16	figure then. But remember, this is the end of it.
1	17	Do you understand the quastion, Mr. Kantor?
	18	WITNESS KANTOR: Yes, sir.
1	19	BY MR. WRIGHT:
2	20	Q Mr. Kantor, I believe the charts you want are on
2	21	pages 75 and 76.
2	22	A (Witness Kantor) Zero to two miles?
. 2	23	Q Yes.
2	4	A In 1980 peak population zero to two miles is 9404.
2	3	In 1990 the peak is peak cumulative population
		1137 157

18 12,121. POOR ORIGINAL 1 mm 6 2 It appears reasonable that 1985 would be about 3 10,700 peak daily population. 4 All right. Let's use that figure then. 0 5 That would be the number of people that we might 6 expect to find on a, say sunny weekend day in the summertime. 7 Is that correct? CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: What is that figure? 8 I mean, how do you arrive at it? 9 10 WITNESS KANTOR: That figure includes permanent residents, peak seasonal residents, and peak seasonal transients, 11 peak motel capacity, peak beach use, peak institutional. 12 capacity, hospital and so forth. Everything filled to the 13 maximum. 14 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right, Mr. Wright, do you 15 have any further questions? 16 BY MR. WRIGHT: 17 Could you tell me, Mr. Kantor, and this is of Q 18 course not much of a problem in this particular aspect in the 19 final supplement --20 MR. LEWALD: I'm going to object to these quesetions 21 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: This is what did you say? 22 MR. WRIGHT: I will withdraw what I said. 23 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Ask your question. We will go 24 ahead that way. If you have comments, we will give you plenty 25 1137 158

11,514

	11,515
um 7 1 2	of time to make them. BY MR. WRIGHT: POOR ORIGINAL
3	Q Why is it more rational to use, or more accurate
4	to use your figure from zero to two miles, your weighted
5	figure which is 3943, than a figure that represents what might
6	be found there on a summer day.
7	MR. SMITH: I cbject.
8	He used the term rational and summer day for
9	foundation. It is argumentative.
10	MR.WRIGHT: I don't think it is argumentative at
11	all, sir.
12	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I don't know about "rational.
13	Again, can you explain the discrepancies between
14	the two figures?
15	I think we have been over this.
16	Cr, is there a discrepancy? Or, what are the
17	differences? Can you explain them?
18	WITNESS KANTOR: We have responded to this previous
19	comment by the Commonwealth in our responses which are contained
20	in the Final Supplement on page 5-10. In doing an alternative
21	site study we believe it is appropriate to use the annual
22	average population.
23	However, for emergency planning we would use the
24	peak population.
25	SI MR. WRIGHT:
	1137 150
	1157 157

	11,516
447£ 1	yesterday, I believe, that there were three other sites in
2	the district of Pilgrim that you have seasonal information for.
3	Is that correct?
. 4	A (Witness Kantor) I want to there are three
5	sites among the original alternative sites. Also for Seabrook
6	and Millstone, seasonal residents were also included for
7	those sites, also.
8	Q And what were the three sites?
9	A The coastal sites, sites 18, 19 and 20, plus
10	Seabrook and Millstone.
11	Q If you would look, please, at page 448 of the
12	Final Supplement, that is the population distribution chart
13	for the Montague site.
14	And what is the zero to two mile cumulative
. 15	population figure, please?
16	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, the figures are in the
17	exhibit.
18	WITNESS KANTOR: For what year?
19	BY MR. WRIGHT:
20	Q For 1985.
21	. A (Witness Kantor) 3181.
22	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Zero to three? I thought he
23	said did you say zero to three?
24	MR. WRIGHT: Zero to two, sir. 1137 160
25	MR. LEWALD: Zero to two miles.

	11,517
MM 1	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Kilometers had me mixed up.
2	BY MR. WRIGHT:
3	Q So that is roughly comparable to your weighted.
: 4	figure for the Pilgrim site, is it not?
5	A (Witness Kantor) It is the same distance, same year.
6	The Montague site includes only permanent residents.
7	The judgment was made that the amount of seasonal residents
8	and daily tourists, although there are some in the Montague
9	area, were not significant, so they were not included in these
and T2 10	numbers.
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	1137 161

11,518 The number itself, 3121, is close, is it not, to your weighted figure for the Pilgrim site, which is 3943? And so for that reason you would say there is 20 appraciable difference between the two?

We would consider it not to be a significant A diffarence, yes.

Q And yst on one of those peak days at the Pilgrim sits there are not 3900 people there, are there? There are 10,000.

MR. SMITH: Object.

BY MR. WRIGET:

Is that correct? Q

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Overruled.

AITNESS KANTOR: On a peak day in Pilgrim there 15 are, as I indicated, assuming full capacity of all facilit-16 17 iss, there are approximately 10,000 people, based on the ERT study. 18

BY MR. WRIGHT:

And yet you would still maintain that your 20 0 weighting method gives you some kind of handle on the 21 possible risk to the surrounding population of various sites? 22 MR. SMITH: Object. 23 24

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Clearly argumentative, Mr. Wright. 1137 162

3 MADELON flws mimia

mpb1

1

2

3

4

3

爱

7

3

S

10

11

12

13

14

19

25

Q

A

0

Yas.

mpb2	1	Don't answer that. POOR ORIGINAL
	-	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	3	Q Is this problem of peaking one of the reasons
	4	why you call population density a crude indicator of risk?
	3	MR. SMITH: Object, in terms of problem of peak.
	3	What is problem of peak?
	7	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Do you understand the question,
	3	Mr. Kantor?
	9	WITNESS KANTOR: No, siz.
	10	MR. WRIGHT: I can raphrase it.
	11	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	12	Q Is this phenomenon of peak, the fact that down
	13	toward Pilgrim you have 10,000 people on a summar day
	14	does not appear in your weighted figure. Is that one of the
	15	reasons that you say that this weighting method provides a
	16	cruda indicator of risk?
	17	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I object again.
	18	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Did he say that?
	19	MR. WRIGHT: Yes. That's the way it's character-
	20	ized in the Final Supplement, sir.
	21	CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: Did you say that, Mr. Kantor?
	22	WITNESS KANTOR: I don't balieve we said that,
	23	no, sir.
	24	CHAIRMAN GOODBOPE: Could you show where he said
	25	it?
		1137 163
	1	

11,519

11,520

PGOR ORIGINAL 1 MR. WRIGHT: Yes. mpb3 2 WITNESS SOFFER: We may have said that. 3 I believe we've talked about population density 4 as being a crude indicator of risk. But this entire subject 5 of the weighting of transient population has come up over and 6 over again. And I beliave that we have answered it and 7 described our rationale and the reason for the rationale vary 8 completely on page 5-10 of the Final Supplement. 9 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Mell. was this element of 10 peaking that he discussed. was that taken into consideration 11 in your rationals? 12 WITNESS SOFFER: It's one of the things that was 13 taken into consideration, that's right. There risk is 14 dependent upon many things, of course. It's dependent upon 15 the population distribution; it's dependent upon the metsor-16 ology that may saist at the time and what sort of an accident may occur at the time, what sort of warning times. There are 17 a whole host of imponderables that cannot be easily calculated 18 at all. 19 They all affect the risk of population. The idea 20 of taking an annual average population which involves weight-21 ing of transients is primarily to arrive at an overall number 22 by which to evaluate one site as compared to another site. 23 I ballave we have said this a number of times and 24 in a number of places. If you insist on looking at the peak 25 1137 164

		11,521
64	1	summertime population, then it would be only fair to say
	2	what about the wintertime population as well.
	3	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Let's not get into that
	4	argument. We understand, I think you've answered the
	5	question. Doon opining
		WITNESS SOFFER: Okay. PUUK UKIGINAL
	7	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Go ahead, Mr. Wright.
	8	MR. WRIGHT: Wall, if I may ask a question about
	9	the wintertime population, sir.
	20	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	11	Q Mr. Soffer, looking at Table 30, once again, of
	12	Staff's Exhibit 66, could you tell me what the wintertime
	13	population is zero to two miles?
	14	A (Witness Soffer) I think I'll defer to Mr. Kantor
	15	on that since he was responsible for preparing the actual
	16	numbers on the table.
	17	Q Mr. Kentor?
	18	A (Witness Kantor) The wintertime population would
	19	be as shown in Table A. Permanent residents at two miles, it
	20	indicates 2699.
:	21	Q So that is about 1300 less than your weighted
;	22	average, is that not correct? 1137 165
;	23	A Yes, sir.
:	24	Q And your weighted average, on the other hand, is
	25	about 6000 lass than the peak figure, is that not right?
	1	

m

pb5	1	A Yes.
	2	Q All right.
	3	Now in the Final Supplement on page 3-4, you say
	4	that and I'm referring now to the second paragraph from the
	5	bottom. You say that Boston Edison Company in gathering the
	6	data and making its initial submission to you relied upon the
	7	cumulative population values as a guidaline, is that not
	8	correct?
	9	A I believe that was one of the guidelines they
	10	used in evaluating the population distribution around the
	11	proposed sites.
	12	Q And this is a method that is described in a
	13	1973 AEC working paper?
	14	A That's where I believe they obtained the cumulative
	15	numbers.
	16	Q And as I understand this particular formula, if
	17	the cumulative population surrounding a site exceeds 30,000
	18	people at five miles or 500,000 people at 20 miles or two
	19	million people at 40 miles, then something slss happens, is
	20	that correct?
•	21	A Well, the working paper was an early Staff paper
	22	which discussed population guidelines. Some of the guidelines
	23	proposed in that paper were the ones you have just mantioned.
	24	I think it works out to approximately 400 per square mile.
	22	2 400 people per square mile. 1137 166

11,522

1

π

		11,523
oph6		POOR ORIGINAL
	2	
	-	Wow, of course, you're using 500, is that correct,
		undar Reg Guide 4.7?
	-	A Yes, under Reg Guide 4.7 it's 500 people per
	5	square mile.
	6	Q And if these population values contained in this
	7	AEC paper were exceeded, then is it not correct that there
	8	then must be a showing that the proposed site offers signifi-
	9	cant advantages from the standpoint of environmental, economic
	10	or other factors?
	31	Mr. Soffer, do you remember that?
	12	A (Witness Soffer) That was the proposed Staff
	13	paper. I emphasize, of course, that that Staff paper was
	14	never approved by the Commission. It never received any
	15	official sanction. And it was superseded, in fact, by
	16	Regulatory Guide 4.7.
	17	CHAIRMAN COODHOPE: By what?
	18	WITNESS SOFFER: Regulatory Guide 4.7.
	19	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	20	Q But is any event, in the early days, that was the
	21	guideline that was used in preparing the data for the Staff?
	22	A (Witness Soffer) No, that was a proposed guide-
	23	line.
	24	Q I mean, that was the guideline that Boston Edison
	25	used. Isn't that what you're saying here?
		1137 167
	1	

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

. 9

10

mpb7

11,524

A (Witness Kantor) That was one of the guidelines they used as an indication of what AEC-NEC policy was at that time, in the time frame they did the original study.

Q Mr. Soffer, isn't it also true that in addition to those numbers I just mantioned, the proposed guideline also stated that if at the time of docommissioning there were 60,000 people at five miles projected, or one million people at 20 miles, or four million people at 40 miles -- in other words, double the value -- once again it would trigger this special procedure?

MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I object. I think it's
 been established this is a proposed guideline, and I don't
 know how it's relevant in this line of cross.

14 MR. WRIGHT: The relevancy, sir, if I may, is 15 that as is obvious from the Commonwealth's commants to the 16 draft supplement, we are very troubled by the, if I may, the 17 fuzziness of the Staff guidelines in this particular area. 18 It is a very critical problem. They have gone through a 19 number of different methods to try to determine which site 20 is better from the standpoint of population, surrounding 21 population.

The method that they're now using is contained in Reg Guide 4.7, but that's by no means written in stone. It's not like, for example, something that you'd find in 10 CFR Part 100 that we're not allowed to challenge. And I'm

merely trying to show today through cross-examination that mpb8 2 there is substantial doubt as to just what the appropriate 3 method to analyze this particular problem is. 4 And I'm not going to take long on this, but I do 5 think I'm antitled to show that under those guidelines, that 6 at one time was considered by the Staff to be relevant and 7 helpful in making this assessment, that the Boston Edison 8 plant is in excess of the guidalines of those figures that 9 I mantioned. 10 (The Board conferring.) 11 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right. What is your 12 question? 13 MR. WRIGHT: My question, I believe, was to 14 Mr. Soffer, and I was asking him if it was not true that at 15 the time of decommissioning if the plant -- the projected popula-16 tion were to exceed four million at forty miles then it would 17 trigger that special procedure that I read earlier. 18 BY MR. WRIGHT: 19 Is that not corract? 0 20 DR. COLE: Excuse De. 21 What special procedure that you read earlier? 22 Demonstration something? 23 MR. WRIGHT: The s, these levels are exceeded, 24 Dr. Cola. The Applicant is required to present an analysis 25 of alternative sites including a showing that the proposed 1137 168

11,525
11,526

1 apb9 site offers significant advantages from the standpoint of 2 Wironmental, economic, or other factors. 3 MR. COLE: All right. 4 MR. SMITH: Can the record be clear as to where 3 that statement is coming from? 5 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, it's out of the Staff 7 proposal, is it not, that was never approved? 3 MR. WRIGHT: Yes. 3 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: The one that Mr. Soffer just 10 described. 11 MR. SMITH: All right. 12 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: And that's what the 13 Applicant worked with at the time, as I understand it. 14 MR. WRICHT: Yas. 15 WITNESS SOFFER: I'm not very familiar with the 16 Staff working paper of 1973 any longer, primarily because it 17 is no longer -- it no longer represents any official policy. 18 In fact, it never did. It represented merely an internal 19 Staff proposal. 20 However, I believe you are correct in that regard. 21 I would like to add a few remarks on the nature ---22: BY MR. WRIGHT: I'm sorry, that answers my question. Thank you, 23 Q 24 sir. (Witness Soffer) I haven't finished yet. 25 A 1137 169

	POOR ORIGINAL
mpblo 1	CHAIRMAN GOODEOPE: If you're going into this,
2	we're going all the way, not halfway.
3	MR. WRIGHT: Well, I just think
4	MR. SMITH: The witness is allowed to qualify.
5	WITNESS SOFFER: I'd like to add a few remarks
6	in regard to what I believe is a misundarstanding in regard to
7	population density criteria.
3	Part 100 does not include any population density
9	criteria, that is true. The Commission has maraly said in its
70	statement of considerations that nuclear power reactors should
11	be located away from dansaly populated centers. For a long
12	time there were no numerical criteria that were used by the
13	Staff, and the Staff judged each site on an ad hoc basis,
14	endeavoring to keep in mind the spirit of Part 100.
. 15	As a result of the Newboldt Island case, which
15	arose in 1972, the Staff began to propose numerical criteria,
17	and one of the sarliest proposals by the Staff was the Staff
18	working paper of 1973 that Mr. Wright has cited from. That
19	was never approved. But the guidelines were rejected, and
20	I'm not sure why.

Regulatory Guide 4.7 were promulgated. They have been used by the Staff since they have been promulgated, and they have been used in a consistent fashion in the review of I would imagine about 15 or 20 cases at the present time. The Staff

	11,523
mpb11 1 2 3 4 5 5 5 7	has done so consistently. DR. COLE: Excuse ms. Can you tall me what you mean by "promulgated", Mr. Soffar? MITNESS SOFFER: I mean a regulatory guide published by the Staff with the concurrence of the Advisory Committee on Reactor Safeguards.
8	DR. COLE: Okay.
9	WITNESS SCIFER: It is not promulgation in the
10	sense of regulation, that's true.
11	DR. COLE: It's a guideline that's acceptable to
12	the Commission.
15	WITNESS SOFFER: I don't believe that the
14	Commission has formally reviewed it.
. 15	DR. COLE: So it's just the regulatory Staff.
16	WITNESS SOFFER: It's a regulatory Staff position,
17	Yes.
18	DR. COLE: Thank you.
19	BY MR. WRIGHT:
20	Q So it's no different than an NRC working paper?
21	A (Witness Soffer) No, an AEC Staff working paper
22	is an information paper, a proposed paper that was in fact
23	rejected by the Commission.
24	The Staff originally proposed that as a regulatory
25	guide. The Commission rejected it and later raleased that 1137 171

	11,529
1	
app12 2	paper to the public. That represents a rejected proposal.
-	Q It released the paper, it did not reject it?
3	A Pardon?
4	g It released the paper and did not reject it?
5	A Yas, sir.
8	Q All right.
7	Mr. Kantor, just two last questions as to this
8	AEC working paper.
9	It's true, is it not, that in 1980 the surround-
10	ing population out to 40 miles from the Pilgrim site is going
11	to be in excess of two million?
12-	A (Witness Kantor) Did you say 40 miles?
13	Q Yes, 40 miles.
14	Do you have the PSAR with you, by the way?
15	A I have excerpts from it.
16	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Where are we going now?
17	You've asked the question and you've got something working,
18	and you've pretty thoroughly discredited this working paper,
19	but apparantly you want to keep chasing it around.
20	MR. WRIGHT: Yas, I'd like to ask a few more
21	questions about it, Mr. Chairman.
22	BY MR. WRIGHT:
23	Q I asked you about the PSAR only because they do
24	contain the 40 mile figures. If you'd like, I'll show you my
25	copy.
	1177 172
	1157 172

1. 26

914	
mpb13	A (Witness Kantor) I have an excerpt from it.
2	Q This is Table 2.18.
3	A Table 2.18 indicates cumulative permanent popula-
4	tion at a distance of 40 miles to be in excess of two million.
5	I might point out that in accordance with the
6	guidelines of Regulatory Guide 4.7 we consider 30 miles to be
7	the region of interest for population purposes.
9.	Q And in the year 2020, Mr. Kantor, it's true, is
9	it not, that out to 40 miles the population exceeds four
10	million?
11	A The projected population for 2020 at 40 miles
12	excaeds four million as shown in Table 2.1-8.
13	Q And that table contains only permanent residents
14	in that 40 mile area, is that not correct?
15	A That's correct.
16	Q Now going back to once again page 3-4 of the
17	Final Supplement, you state that the other guideline used by
18	Boston Edison was, in preparing its initial figures, was an
19	envelope population distribution for Indian Point and
20	NewBoldt Island?
21	A Yes. We have to consider the time frame when
22	this was being done.
23	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, there's no question. I
24	think the question has been answered.
25	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPB: I still don't know what the
	1137 173

11,530



11,532

2david WITNESS KANTOR: This second guideline was an davidl envelope of population distribution around sites that had take 4 been involved in the licesing process, and in particular the high population sites, such as Newboldt Island and Indian Point.

BY MR. WRIGHT :

Q And could you explain how that partic-lar guideline works?

A It's simply a -- an envelope of the high cummulative population around sites that have been licensed or in olved in the review process.

It's simply a comparison of the population distribution of thepropered site against the envelope of these other sites.

Q So, the Boston Edison submission involved concerning the Pilgrim site and Newboldt Island and Indian Point --

A I believe the criteria were used more in a regional fashion than in a site-specific fashion.

They were attempting to screen out high population areas which would not be suitable for nuclear sites, and they were using information as was best available to them at that time.

Q	Do you know where Newboldt Island is located?
A	I'm not sure of the exact location.
A	(Witness Soffer) Roughly, I know where it is,

٩.,

1137 175

yes.

david2

Q Is i- located on water, on a river?

A A river.

Q Not on the ocean?

A No, it's on the Delaware River between Philadelphia and Trenton.

Q And the Newboldt Island site, as I understand it, was rejected, turned down?

A That's correct.

Q The Indian Point site is, as I understand -- is located on the Hudson River?

A That's correct.

Q Now, the latest guideline, as you said earlier, is reg guide 4.7. That's the current guideline you're using in assessing population?

A Yes.

Q Could you explain briefly how that particular quideline works?

MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I think the guideline is self-explanatory.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, is your question: how was that guideline used in this case?

MR. WRIGHT: I'm asking how it operates and how it was used in this case.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right. Explain how you applied that guideline in this matter.

david3

3

WITNESS KANTOR: The reg guide gives population density guidelines for the proposed initial operation of the lifetime of the proposed facility.

The guidelines are meant to be used as indication of high population density sites.

Originally the reg guide indicated that if a site exceeded the population density guideline, then the population density shuld be examined in the context of an alternative site review.

And the emphasis was on an applicant trying to find the high population density site, when possibly lower population density sites were available. It was not a go-no go criteria.

If a plant site exceeded those guidelines, it did not mean it was unacceptable. It simply meant that population densities should be looked at closely in an alternative site review.

BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q And the guideline says that, as I understand it, if any radial distance out to 30 mile, the population per square mile exceeds 500, then special consideration should be given to alternative sites.

A Yes.

Q Now, would you tell us just what "special consideration" means? 1137 177 david4

MR. CHAIRMAN: For accuracy, since the partiment part of reg guide 4.7 is found in Appendix B to the final supplement, and the phrase, "that special attention should be given to the consideration," not --

> MR. WRIGHT: I stand corrected. "Special attention." BY MR. WRIGHT:

Q Can you tell me what you understand "special attention" to mean?

A I understand it means an applicant would have to demonstrate the conomic and environmental and other factors which might weigh for or against an alternative site in comarison with all factors, of which population would be one.

Q You don't understand, in other words, this thing, special attention, the doing of a class 9 analysis.

MR. SMITH: Object to the form of the question. He arswered the previous question of what his understanding was.

MR. WRIGHT: I'm asking does it include the doing of a class 9 analysis.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Overruled.

WITNESS SOFFER: You want an answer to the question? CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yes.

WITNESS SOFFER: The staff prepared a paper for the Commission. The paper was known as SECY 78-137, where the

david5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

3

3

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

14

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

.

staff proposed that in the event an applicant submitted a high population density site -- that is, a site that exceeded 500 people per square mile, that is one method of considering alternative sites or is one part of that.

The staff proposed to perform examinations of or comparisons of, let us say, other risk from class 9 accidents between that site and the alternative sites.

That was a proposal that was made by the staff. There was no action that was formally made by the commission. But I would like to read you a letter that was addressed from the Secretary of the Commission. To Mr. Lee Gossick, the Executive Director for Operations that's dated July 12, 1979. The subject is the SECY 78-137 and the text of the commission letter is as follows:

The commission notes that they've asked address this subject in a briefing on May 17, 1978. Referring to my memorandum to you dated June 15, 1978, attached. The commission indicated that further action by them should await the completion of the Lewis Report. The commission has now decided to return the paper to the staff without consideration. Pending receipt of the policy task force report, the commission does intend to provide the staff with further direction in this general area in the near future. So at the present time, I would say that the staff has made informal proposals to the commission to look at class 9

11-37 179

11,536

			11,537
david6	1	accidents. The commission hasn't taken any acti	.on.
	2	BY MR. WRIGHT:	
	3	Q In fact, it's been returned to the st	aff.
	4	A Yes. Pending action on the setting p	olicy task
	3	force. That's correct.	
	5	Q And that is a document that Mr. Smith	gave us
	7	uesterday.	
	8	A I believe so.	
	э	Q Now I show you a copy of this. Is th	at the so-
	10	called	
	11	MR. SMITH: May counsel see it.	
	12	BY MR. WRIGET:	
	13	Q The so-called SECY 78-137 document?	
	14	A Yes, it is.	
	15	(Counsel distributing the documents)	
	16	MR. WRIGHT: I would like to have thi	s marked
	17	as Commonwealth's exhibit 112 for identification	
	18	(The above-mentioned d	ocument
	19	was marked Commonweal	th's
	20	Exhibit 112 for ident	ification.)
	21	And I would like to move it into avidence.	
	22	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: What is it?	
	23	MR. WRIGHT: This, sir, is the staff	document that
	24	Mr. Soffer has been testifying about. That reco	mmends to the
	25	full commission in the event that those Reg Guid	e trip levels
		117	7 100

....

.

.

		11,538
david7	,	are exceeded a class 9 accident analysis should be performed.
	2	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I object.
	3	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, I want to find out first
	4	what it is. This is from Edson G. Case. And who is he?
	5	MR. WRIGHT: He's the Acting Director of the
	6	Office of Nuclear Reactor Degulation.
	7	CHAIRMAN GOODEOPE: All right.
	3	And it's through Gossick, the Director for
	9	Operations.
	10	What is the date on this? I can't see. March 7,
	11	1978; is that correct?
	12	WITNESS SOFFER: Yes, sir, that's correct.
	13	MR. WRIGHT: 1978. It's reflective of staff practice
	14	and I'm going to get into that in just a minute where they've
	13	already done class 9 analysis.
	16	WITNESS STOFFER: Let me mad you the last two
	17	sentences from the July 12th memorandum of the Secretary
	15	of the Commission.
	19	MR. CLEETON: Mr. Chairman, is that the date that
	20	it was sent back?
	21	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Is the document
	22	MR. CLEETON: The document was sent back on
	23	July 12th; is that what this letter is?
	24	WITNESS STOFFER: Yes.
	25	The latter is dated July 12th, 1979, and the

1137 181

:

11,539

david8	1	last two sentences, which are the most pertinent say:
	2	The Commission has now decided to return the paper to the
	3	staff without further consideration, pending receipt of the
	4	siting policy taskforce report.
	5	The Commission does intend to provide the staff
	6	with further direction in this general area in the near
	7	future.
	8	MR. WRIGHT: But in the meantime, if I may ask
	9	Mr. Stoffer a question
	10	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, there's an objection
	11	pending.
	12	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: That's what I'm trying to
	13	decide. I don't know what value this document is going
	14	to be, but I think under these circumstances, with the
	15	descriptions of it, and what it's situation is now, I
	16	believe the board has to receive it for whatever it's worth at
	17	this time.
	18	(The above-mentioned document,
	19	previously marked Commonwealth's
	20	Exhibit 112, was received into
	21	evidence.)
	22	MR. WRIGHT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
	23	MR. LEWALD: It's a document that was sent by the
	24	staff to the Commission and returned not that
	25	MR. WRIGHT: I think it's already in the record.
		1137 182
	1	

•

		11,540
lavid9	1	If that's what it was, Mr. Stoffer has explained it
	2	in detail. He said the Commission didn't reject it; they
	3	simply returned it to them. They said they're still working
	4	on this. So we don't know where it stands, really.
	5	But apparently it indicated staff policy 18 months
	6	ago, what they thought was useful.
	7	MR. LEWALD: The staff proposed the policy.
	з	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, yes.
	9	MR. LEWALD: Which was not policy, but at least as of
	10	now has permission or approval or adoption.
	11	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: That's correct. I think the
	12	record is clear on that.
	13	So the document will be received.
	14	Before you go ahead, while we're still on this,
	15	Dr. Callihan has a question he'd like to ask Mr. Soffer.
	16	DR. CALLIMAN: Does this document, Commonwealth's
	17	112. Have any stature within the Commission at this time?
	13	WITNESS SOFFER: Not to my knowledge, sir.
	19	DR. CALLIHAN: What is used by the staff as a
	20	guideline in absence of the content of 112?
	21	WITNESS SOFFER: The staff is using has used and
	22	is using the criteria as given in regulatory guides 4.7; there
	23	has been no applicant since this has been proposed to the
	24	Commission that has prosed a high density population site.
	25	Consequently, I do not know what the staff would do if the
		1137 183
	i	

= 4

..

	11,541
1	staff were to offer a high population density site at the
2	present time.
3	DR. CALLIHAN: So, it's not clear to me what
4	value this document has at the moment.
5	Do you have any information that would help?
6	WITNESS SOFFER: I would say it represented, as
7	I indicated earlier it represented a staff proposal to the
8	Commission that was made as of the date of the paper.
9	DR. CALLIHAN: But it's not being followed by the
10	staff as of today?
11	WITNESS STOFFER: It's not clear whether it would
12	be followed or not.
13	DR. CALLIHAN: How is this document reflected
14	in that which has been presented by the staff in these
15	proceedings thus far?
16	WITNESS STOFFER: The staff has gained some insight
17	into the nature of class 9 accidents in relation to population.
18	This document arose out of the alternative site study that
19	the staff did for the Perry 1 case, which was a high population
20	density case submitted by applicant about two years ago.
21	In that particular case, the staff did an
22	examination f class 9 accidents at the Perry 1 site and for
23	a number of alternative sites.
24	And there were a number of comparisons that were
25	made and are given in this document. The staff has used those
	1137 184
	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

1.

		. 11,542
iðl1	1	comparisons to gain insight into what the consequences of
	2	class 9 accidents would be, and what would be significant
	3	with regard to population differences among sites.
	4	So, I'd say that the staff has gained some insights
	5	from this document.
	6	DR. CALLIHAN: Did the staff make use of this
	7	information in Commonwealth 112 in its review of the
	8	application of the alternative site study in Pilgrim 2?
	9	WITNESS STOFFER: Yes, it did, in the sense that
	10	the insight that was used in arriving at the differences between
	11	the various sites was used at arriving at the test of
	12	significance, that is, the factor of two significance given
	13	in the final supplement.
	14	DR. CALLIHAN. Does the recent action by the
	15	Commission in referral or return, as the case might be,
	16	to the staff of Commonwealth's 112 negate in any way the
	17	analyses presented to this board on alternate sites in May
	18	of this year?
	19	WITNESS SOFFER: In my opinion, it does not.
	20	While it's not clear to me what the staff proposal what
	21	legality the staff proposal has, I believe that the insights
	22	the staff has gained in examing populations at risk and the
	23	consequences that might be involved and the comparisons
	24	between a high population density site and a lower
	25	population density site remain valid.
		And I believe that those insights are valid today
		1137 185

1137 185

ćav:

•

POOR ORIGINAL 11,543 davidité 12 1 as they were a year and a half ago.

2	DR. CALLIHAN: You're saying that the July 1979
3	action by the Cormissioners is not cause for any revision
4	or alteration of the staff's position on alternate
15	sites for Pilgrim 2?
6	WITNESS SCUFFER: That would be my judgment, sir.
7	DR.CALLIHAN: Thank you.
8	BY MR. WRIGHT:
9	Q Mr. Soffar, reading from page 1 of this where
10	it says: Purpose half way down "The staff has
11	concluded that in such instances in other words where
12	you have relatively high population density, analysis of
13	the relative differences in class 9 accident risks should be
14	included as one element of the site comparisons.
15	Could you tell me how you would go about assessing
16	aclass 9 accident risk.
17	MR. SMITH: Objection. Mr. Chairman, this
18	Commission excuse me. Strike that.
19	This board cannot consider class 9 accidents, and
20	although the staff may present it to the Commission that
21	it should be considered, it in this case the Commission
22	has sent it back and said wait for the siting taskforce
23	study.
24	I just handed this out to the board and parties.
25	That's not in the hands of the Commission.
	1137 186

The state of the s

davidia

:

.

And the second second

11,544

11	
1	Now it may be that the Commission will come down
2	and say, yes, we agree with you. And it's no secret that
3	in this again the staff recommends that class 9 consideration
4	should be used in determing siting criteria.
5	Again, we'll have to wait for the Commission. For
6	right now, this time, class 9 considerations cannot be
7	considered.
8	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: We don't have a class 9 contention
9	in this proceeding, do we?
10	MR. WRIGHT: What we have in here, Mr. Chairman,
11	is a contention by the Commonwealth that the staff has
12	paid inadequate attention to the differences in population
13	and how they would be impacted in the event of a major
14	nuclear accident.
15	CHAIPMAN GOODHOPE: What are you reading from?
13	MR. WRIGHT: I'm not reading from anything.
17	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Oh, right.
18	MR. URIGHT: I'm just telling you what our
19	contention is as to population densities. Mr. Soffer has
20	already testified that
21	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: What contention is that?
22	MR. WRIGHT: Contention 12.
23	MR. SMITH: I don't have a copy of that. But I
24	don't recall seeing those words.
25	
	1137 187

	DOOD ODICINAL
	PUUR UNIGINAL 11,545
1	MR. WRIGHT: It didn't say all of that. It said
2	that, if I remember correctly, it said that the Staff has
3	done an inadequate analysis of alternative sites with
4	respect to population density.
5	DR. COLE: That is different, sir.
6	MR. WRIGHT: Well it is a difference, sir, but
7	obviously we can't spell out every particular problem that is
8.	involved in population densities.
9	But what was a key here was, as we established
10	yesterday, where the population density is used is as a test
11	of the risk that is involved in the event of nuclear accident.
12	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, I have the Commonwealth
13	contention No. 12 before me which was accpeted by the Board,
14.	and it is as follows:
15	"Neither Applicants nor Staff have adequately
16	considered the alternative of locating the proposed
17	plant at a site more suitable from a population
18	density and environmental standpoint."
19	That is your contention.
20	Now you say this requires us to go into examination
21	of Class 9 accidents.
22	MR. WRIGHT: Indeed it does, sir.
23	Mr. Soffer and Mr. Kantor testified yesterday the
24	reason that they looked to population density is it is their
25	one method of determining the relative risks between one site

T5 mml

1	and another. The risk, that is, to the surrounding population
2	from a nuclear accident.
3	Now, one of those accidents is a Class 9 accident.
4	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: The Board continues on in its
5	ruling on that contention. The Board continues on:
5	"As rewritten, the Board does not consider it
7	a challenge to 10 CFR Part 100. The contention . s
8	stated enters the proceeding on the basis of NEPA
9	considerations of alternate sites, which, incidentally,
10	is the same basis for the Newboldt Island Siting issue."
11	It is a NEPA consideration, not a health and
12	safety consideration.
13	MR. WRIGHT: Right. And that's what we are talking
14	about.
15	Under NEPA there has to be some consideration
16	given to the risk to the surrounding populations at the
17	various sites that are under consideration. That is one of
18	the NEPA issues, sir.
19	(Board conferring)
20	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Do you have your question at
21	hand, again?
22	MR. WRIGHT: I'm sorry, sir?
23	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Do you have your question that
24	you asked? I was going to have it read back, but I think
25	that you can state it.

1

mm2

		11,547
nm 3	1	MR. LEWALD: I would like to join in an objection to
	2	the question.
	3	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I want to hear the question
	4	first.
	5	MR. WRIGHT: What I did, Mr. Chairman, is I read a
	5	statement, first of all to Mr. Kantor. The statement comes
	7	from SECY 78-137 as Commonwealth's Exhibit 112.
	3	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Starting with "The Staff has
	9	concluded "?
	10	MR. WRIGHT: Yes.
	11	"The Staff has concluded that the instances and
	12	the instances of relatively high population density,
	13	the assessment of relative differences of Class 9
	14	accident risks should be included as one element of
. 1	15	the site comparisons."
	16	That's under NEPA.
	17	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: What's your question.
	18	MR. WRIGHT: My question is, what would be
	19	involved in assessing relative differences in Class 9 accident
	20	risks?
	21	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: And your objection is what,
	22	that Class 9 is not involved in this proceeding?
	23	MR. SMITH: It is not a contention. It cannot be
	24	involved in this proceeding.
	25	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Shy?
	1	1137 190

1	MR. SMITH: Okay.
2	First of all, let's start from the beginning of
3	how the Staff used population density.
4	Staff admits that they use it as a crude indicator
5	of residual risk.
6	Now I could not object if the Commonwealth wanted
7	to go and probe behind this factor of two.
8	MR. WRIGHT: We intend to.
9	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Let's let him finish now. I
10	asked Mr. Smith a question. If anybody else has any comments,
11	keep them to himself.
12	MR. SMITH: Going beyond that, the Staff cannot
13	assess the risk of Class 9 accidents at this particular site
14	or any alternatives. It is prohibited by a long string of
15	case law, particularly the most recent, Off Shore Power, where
16	the Staff and I believe the cite is 8 NRC 194. In that
17	case, the Staff undertook a Class 9 study of the off shore
18	power systems, arguing the Staff's position was they thought
19	the consequences were greater than that of the land-based
20	plant.
21	The Appeal Board struck down that argument saying
22	it was prohibited of considering Class 9 accidents. And you
23	can't, on your own, without permission of the Commission
24	consider Class 9 accidents.
23	Now in the specifics of that case, the Appeal Board
	1137 191

mm 4

mm 5

allowed the Staff to consider Class 9 because they felt
 floating nuclear power plants were not part of the annex,
 which sets forth the parameters of the accident analysis
 for NEPA.

5 In this case we have a land-based plant. The 6 Commission law and the Appeal Board law is we cannot consider 7 Class 9.

8 It is true, the record will show from SECY 137 from 9 the Siting Task Force Study, that the Staff's position is 10 that there should be some consideration, and they are trying 11 to argue that to the Commission. But, until the Commission 12 says all right, you can in this -- whatever, how they describe 13 the parameters, the Staff cannot do it.

Now one could argue, I guess, and I wouldn't want to, that maybe even using the population density is against Commission policy. I think that is still within the parameters of alternative site review. But there is no doubt that this number comes from Class 9 consequence analysis.

But that is the basis, and I just think we are
 prohibited by Commission law.

It could be that they will come down the line -one more additional point. The Commission loes have before it the Off Shore case. We are awaiting a decision. It may be that the Commission will turnaround their policy, or the Siting Task Force Study may be the instrument where they say

mm

11,550

6	1 in population criteria development, go forth and do Class 9
	2 gener onsiderations. That may come.
	But, as of this date we are bound by Commission
	4 case law and we cannot consider it.
	3 And a further point. The Commonwealth claims that
	this is all along has been part of their contention on
	7 population density.
	8 I would submit the record shows that the first
	time this appeared was in their comments to the Final
1	Supplement on Alternative Sites.
1	I don't think this has all along been in their
1	2 contention.
1.	(Board conferring)
1	MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chaizman, way I respond?
1	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Mr. Lewald, do you join in this?
1	3. MR. LEWALD: I join in that.
11	I did want to say on the record what Mr. Smith has
11	said, giving a history of a brief history of the Class 9
. 11	accident question, referring again to Off Shore Power Systems
20	in 8 NRC 194, which the Commission through the Appeal Board has
21	spoken that Class 9 accidents with respect to land-based
2	plants rae not to be considered in environmental reports.
23	I would not object to the basic question that
24	well, I object to the question that Mr. Wright was presenting
25	to the witness. But we would not object to questions along
	1137 123

11,551

these lines to the witnesses, as to what they did in this
particular case.

mm7

But we would submit that any Class 9 analysis for FES purposes is wholly unnecessary and is not qualified Commission regulations.

And if the Staff delved into this field for their own particular purposes, I'm not saying that that can't be inquired into. But it actually has no bearing on any determinations that ought to be made in the case.

And indeed, as a matter of law, as Mr. Smith has 10 pointed out, this Board would be precluded from entertaining 11 any such evidence that might "erive from the Staff examination 12 of Class 9 accidents, which is an area that the Commission 13 has removed from the Staff, if you will -- I shouldn't say 14 "removed," the Staff has never had that requirement and 15 it has been considered since its inception that these 16 accidents which are referred to as Class 9 accidents in 17 Appendix B to Part 50, shall not be considered in licensing 18 proceedings. 19

And with respect to the Staff's Final Environmental Statement, there is authority for this again -- the last authority is 8 NRC 194, which is the Off Shore Power Systems Case.

24 In other words, we wouldn't object to an inquiry 25 of what the Staff has done here and reported. But, to conduct

311

• 5

11,552

n 8	1	inquiries as to what policies should or should not be
	2	promulgated by either the Staff or the Commission with respect
	3	to Class 9, we submit is objectionable, and this was the tenor
	4	of Mr. Wright's last question.
	5	MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, may I be heard?
	ē	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yes, Mr. Wright.
	7	MR. WRIGHT: Yes. Just a couple of quick points.
	3	First of all, the so-called Appendix B was never
	9	adopted by the Commission. It still has the status of interim
	10	guidance, if you will.
	1.1	Based upon the assumption
	12	CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: What is this, now?
	13	MR. WRIGHT: Appendix B is a Commission document
	14	that Mr. Lewald referred to as the reason why this Board is
	13	prohibited from looking into Class 9 accident analyses.
	16	DR. COLE: Mr. Wright, I think there are
	17	a significant number of other questions also, which include
	18	Shoreham versus NRC several years ago, which indicated, that
	19	provided guidance to the Commission that they are not
	20	obligated to consider Class 9 accidents in environmental
	21	reviews.
	22	MR. WRIGHT: That's correct, Dr. Cole.
	23	However in this case I am not saying that
	24	al. I am trying to discover is what would be involved in a
	23	class 3 accident review, if the Staff chose to do one.
		1137 195
	1	

POOR ORIGINAL 11, 553

1 In other words, Shorenam doesn't forbid them from 2 doing one. It only says if they don't want to, they don't have 3 to. 4 DR. COLE: What would that profit us to have in this record, if we cannot consider it under the governmental 5 environmental review? Are we just filling pages of the 8 transcript with that information and can't use it? 7 MR. WRIGET: I don't think so, sir. 8 The Staff position as I understand it, is where 9 there is relatively high density, this Class 9 analysis should 10 be done. 11 It is our contention this is an area of relatively 12 high density. 13 DR. COLE: But the Staff has no right to -- well, 14 go ahead and finish what you wanted to say. 15 MR. WRIGHT: The other point I would like to make is 16 that the STaff is, of course, taking -- and as Mr. Smith 17 said, the Staff has taken a position before the NRC that it 18 should be allowed to do these kinds of analyses, and in 19 addition has already done some. It did one inthe Perryman case, 20 and has done one with the floating nuclear plants. 21 And I think that under the circumstances it is 22 rather disingenuous to say, no, we can't talk about it at 23 this time. 24 Now I am not proposing to spend all afternoon getting 25 1137 196

mm 9

11,554
into the ins and outs of the CRAC code. I am just trying to
establish briefly what would be involved if a Class 9 accident
analysis were to be done.
CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I don't know if you can you
said they made one in the Off Shore Power, and they made on
in the Perryman?
MR. WRIGHT: Yes.
CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Class 9 accident analysis?
MR. WRIGHT: Yes.
CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Were those made as a part of
the environmental review?
MR.WRIGHT: Yes.
MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, could I clarify that?
CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yes.
MR. SMITH: On the Perryman case it was done as
part of the early site review. And one aspect of it was
consideration of Class 9 accidents and other external hazards
besides Class 9 analysis. That was not part of the contested
proceeding, and it was between the Staff and the Applicant,
and we rejected siting and it never went to hearing.
On the Off Shore we did do a Final Environmental
Impact Statement considering Class 9 accidents.
The Appeal Board said that but for the fact that
this was an Off Shore case and they did not think that such
a type facility was included in the annex, we could go forward
1137 197

	11,555
mmll 1	with that analysis.
2	But for land-based plants and I have the opinion
3	if the Board wants to take a break and read it we just
4	can't do it.
. 5	Maybe, you know the Staff did it, but the Appeal
6	Board has said you shouldn't be doing it.
7	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Right.
8	I'm sorry, Mr. Wright, I interrupted you. Gó
9	ahead.
10	Did you have anything more to add?
11	MR. WRIGHT: I don't think so.
12	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Mr. Cleeton?
13	MR. CLIETON: Yes. I'd like to ask a question.
14	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Of whom?
15	MR. CLEETON: Of the Board's ruling on the exclusion
16	of Class 9 accidents for emergency planning zone in the last
17	memorandum of August 9th.
18	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I can't hear you.
19	MR. CLEETON: Apparently the footnote in the last
20	ruling of the Board regarding emergency planning, it also
21	stipulates that Class 9 accidants are not in this case.
22	Now for the last two days we have been hearing
23	about emergency planning in relationship to alternate sites,
24	and we specifically put this population density down to
25	emergency planning because it was stated that they go
	1137 198
1	

11,556

12	1	closely together. POOR ORIGINAL
	2	And what I would like to ask is, are the Class 9
	3	accidents also going to be excluded from the emergency planning
	4	hearings, because our original contention in terms of evacuation
	5	of the Cape, certainly implies Class 9 accidents.
	6	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, if you implied it, you
	7	sure should have stated it veryclearly, instead of implying
	8	important things like this.
	9	I don't buy this implying bit of something important
	10	as this. It should have been specifically stated.
	11	MR.WRIGHT: There was one further thing that I
	12	did want to point out, Mr. Chairman, and that is in the
	13	Staff's response to our comments to the draft supplement
	14	they go into some detail as to why they shouldn't do a Class 9
	15	accident analysis. They don't mention any of the stuff
	16-	about being forbidden to do so. They just have a number of
	17	practical considerations, and that is what I wanted to explore
	18	today.
	19.)	If the thing that is holding them up from doing
	20	one of these things are the practical considerations, I'd
	21	like to suggest what they are.
	22	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: In this proceeding.
	23	MR. WRIGHT: In this proceeding, yes.
	24	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: That's what you are going to get
	25-	is a ruling, right after a ten-minute recess. 1137 199

TUTO



POOR ORIGINAL 11,558 1 6 MADELON CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right, the hearing will be flws mimie 2 mpb1 in order. 3 Mr. Wright, as I understand your question it is 4 what would be involved in a Class 9 accident evaluation in an 5 alternate site raviaw. ő MR. WRIGHT: Yes. 7 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, the Board will sustain 8 the objection to that question. 9 MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, does this mean that 10 the Board is ruling that I am not to be allowed to get into 11 Class 97 12 I have a number of questions and I just won's

bother to ask them and have objections and what have you if
that is your ruling.

15 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: No, what they did, what they
 16 actually physically did in their site review in this proceeding
 17 is permissible.

MR. WRIGHT: Yes.
DR. COLE: I think it's clear, Mr.
Wright, that the Commission policy on environmental reviews
of the Class 9 accident need not be considered in environmental
reviews. I don't think there's any question about that.
MR. WRIGHT: Well, let me move on, then, Mr.
Kantor.

BY MR. WRIGHT:

۰.

25

1

2

3

4

3

6

7

3

9

12

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

mpb2

Q I direct your attention to Appendix B of the Final Supplement, page B-1. And if I may, I will read from the last paragraph on that page:

"Based on limited studies performed to date, the Staff concludes that the population density by itself is a sufficiently orude indicator that relatively large differences in the population densities between two sites would be required to exist before significant differences of residual risks at these sites could reasonably be expected. These studies indicate that population density differences by a factor of at least two or more would be required before significant differences in residual risk could reliably be expected."

Could you tell me how you derived the so called factor - first of all, could you describe for us how that operates?

A (Witness Kantor) We compared the population density of the alternative site with the proposed site at radial distance from zero to 30 miles to determine if there is a significant difference in the densities. And as indicated here, we're using this factor of two as a guideline or a benchmark to assist us in determining when there is a

1137 202

11,559

b3 ¹	significant difference.
2	Q So in other words, another sits would have to have
3	half as many people in it as the proposed site bafors you
4	would consider it to be more desirable from a demographic
. 5	point of view?
6	A We would have to see indications that the popula-
7	tion density of an alternative site was lower by a factor of
8	two in comparison to the proposed site, especially within
9	close-in distances within five or ten miles before we would
10	reach a finding that this alternative site was preferable from
11	a population density standpoint.
12	Q And you are concerned with the close-in areas
13	more than the farther-out ones?
14	A Well, I think as indicated on the next page, it
15	gives our position in this regard.
16	Q Page B-2?
17	A Yes.
18	And I could read it if necessary, but it is given
19	on page B-2.
20	Q Now just as a mattre of clarification, what's the
21	relationship between this factor of two that you use and the
22	so-called special attention that must be given to alternative
23	sites once the trip levels are exceeded at the proposed site?
24	A Well, this factor of two helps us determine if
25	the population is a significant factor. The population is only
	1137 203

mpb3

:

11,561

mpb4

2

3

3

ä

3.

3

53

3

10

16

17

one factor that enters into the alternative site analysis. Special attention I think is directed more toward these other factors, such as other environmental factors, economic factors.

Q Wall, lat me give you an example, then. If the proposed site were to exceed the trip isvels contained in Reg Guide 4.7, but its population was not a factor of two greater than any of the alternative sites, what would you do?

A Well, again, the fact that it exceeds 500 per square mile, as we indicated earlier, does not mean that the site is not acceptable.

11 Q You would then look to the other sites to see if 12 they have the population that was --

A Our main thrust is looking at the difference is population density between the alternative sites and the proposed site.

Q But I'm still troubled as to this factor of two and how it would operate if the levels ware exceeded.

A The fact that the level is exceeded or is not
 exceeded I don't think has any direct bearing on the factor of
 two. Once we start comparing the population density we're
 c ncerned about the factor of two, no longer with the guide line density numbers from the reg guide.

23 Q Well, let's, if we could, take Table 66 --24 excuse ma. Staff Exhibit 66, Table 3, which is the 1985 25 updated figures that you provided us. And if we could,
mp

:

-

1

11,562

13	1 1	
b5		please, compare them with Montague, the figures which are
	2	found on page 4-48 of the Final Supplement.
	3	Now when you talk about a factor of two, are you
	4	talking about comparing population density, or are you talk-
	5	ing about comparing the actual numbers of people. Which of
	6	these columns, in other words, would you be looking at?
	7	A Well, the two columns are related. We look at
	8.	density, it's just a little bit casier number to handle.
	9	But you could look at a factor of two on the total popula-
	10	tion.
	11	But we look at the density number.
	12	Q Well, if you say density is easier, let's do that.
	13	I note that for Montagua within one mile of the
	14	sity the population density is 52. Is that not correct, 52
	15	people per square mile?
	16:	A Correct.
	17	Q And the population density within one mile of the
	18	site at Pilgrim is 250, is that not corract?
	19	A Correct.
	20	Q That means there is a factor of five difference.
	21	A That's correct.
	22	2 And this is in in-close area, as you say?
	23	A Zere to one mile, yes, close.
	24	Q Do we have special concern for it?
	25	A Yes. When we say "close" we're talking within

1137 205

1.

11,363

apb 6

1

3

approximately five mills. POOR ORIGINAL

2 Well, if the Montague site exceeds - or if the 0 Pilgrim site exceeds Montague by a factor of five, then why 4 does not - why isn't the Montague site considered more 3 advantageous with respect to demography?

6 Well, we have to place this in context. Now you 2 look at the next value of zero to two miles. You see the 3. density of the Montagua site is 252, and you look at three 3 miles and ses it's 339 par square mile. You have to look at 10 this as a whole. You just can't look at the zero to one mile.

11: And if you compare the zero to iwo, zero to 12 three, zero to four mile density figures at Montague with the 13: density figures shown in Table 3, it's quite clear that the 14: Pilgrim site is not - the population density at the Pilgrim 13 site is not a factor of two greater than the Montague site.

15 Q Lat's look at zero to ten miles, zero to 20 17 miles, and zero to 30 miles at Montague Versus Pilgrim.

13 Is it not true that in every one of those cases Pilgrim population exceeds Montague by a factor of two? 13

20 Yes. This indicates that as you get further A away from the Pilgrim site you start picking up the population 21 22 around Boston. As you gat out 20, 30 miles from the 23 Montague site there are no large urban concentrations. It just simply reflects that. 23

Q

25

And if we could, plasse, would you look at the

	11,564
1 7 40	2020 zero to two mile population for Montague and for Filgrim?
2	That would be Table 4 of Staff Exhibit 66. And once again.
3	is 12 not true that the Pilarim site is greater by a factor
4	of two at the Northague site?
5	ND SMITHL. Object
	MR. SMITH: ODJECT.
7	It's not clear as to what number we're looking at,
	what mileage.
8	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, do you understand the
9	question?
10	WITNESS KANTOR: Yes, sir, I baliava I do.
11	MR. LEWALD: I'd like to object. I don't think
12	whether the witness understands the question, the question as
13	put and the witness's answer aren't going to match in the
14	record unless the question is
15	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, I'm going to ask him to
16	explain what figures he's talking about.
17	What figures are us to ling shout Mr. Wright
10	mat ilyures are we talking about, Mr. Wright,
10	please?
19	MR. W/IGHT: Mr. Chairman, for Montague I am
20	looking at Table 9. I'm looking at over in the right-hand
21	side it says Population Density. One of the columns is for the
22	year 2020.
23	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPB: All right.
24	MR. WRIGHT: And if we take the zero to two mile
25	range, the figure is 132 persons per square mile.
	1177 207

m

:

Pros are sal

:

٠.

11,565

	.	
8dqm	1	For Pilgrim I am the ing at Table 4 of Staff
	2	Exhibit 66, and I note that it the section entitled
	3	Cumulative Population Zero to Two Miles, if you carry that
	4	across to the right-hand side, and the persons per square mile
	5	listed there is 573.
	5	WITNESS KANTOR: Right.
	7	Mr. Wright, I notice there is a typographical
	3	error here in Table 9. If you look at the 2020 population
	9	you see that's 3744, and I'll have to check the density. One
	10	of these two numbers is not corract.
	11	(Pausa.)
	12	Yes, the 2020 number. The density of zero to two
	13	miles should be 297 per square mile instead of 132.
	14	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	15	Q 297?
	16	A (Witness Kantor) Yes, Obviously there is an
	17	increase in the population between 1985 and 2020. Therefore
	18	the densities would also increase.
	19	Q All right.
	20	In any event, Mr. Kantor, in comparing
	21	Montague and Pilgrim it's true, 1 it not, that between zero
	22	and one mile and between ten and 30 miles the Montague site
	23	is or the Pilgrim site is greater than Montague by a factor
	24	of two.
	25	MR, SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I object, unless the
		1137 208
	-	

11,566

1	I DON DRIGHTL
1	question can be reread. It seems to be unclear.
2	MR. WRIGHT: I'll gladly restate the question,
3	Mr. Chairman.
4	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right. Go ahead.
5	BY MR. WRIGHT:
6	Q My question, Mr. Mantor, is:
7	Comparing Pilgrim with Montagua, is it not true
а	that between zero and one mile and between tan and 30 miles
9	that Pilgrim population figures are greater than Montague's
10	by at least a factor of two?
11	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I'll have to object
12	to the form of the question. There's no form clear as to
13	exactly what we're talking about. There are not a lot of
14	numbers, but it's not clear as to what's being compared.
15	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: How they relate to one
16	another. How do they relate to one another?
17	MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, all I'm asking is this
18	factor of two business:
19	Isn't it true that there are a number of radial
20	rings where Pilgrim is much greater than Montague; and I just
21	listed those rings. That would be zero to oze and ten to 30.
22	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, I've got the zero to one.
23	And which one are you reading? Are you still in that 2020
24	of population density?
25	MR. WRIGET: No, I'm looking at 1985. Actually
	1137 209

mpb9

:

11,567 1 nobl0 we can look at 2020 as well. 2 CHAIRMAN GOODSOPE: You'ra talking about the 52 3 figura. 4 Now what figure are you comparing it with? 5 MR. WRIGET: 52 compared with 250, Table 3. 6 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: 250 on Table 3. 7. And you want to know whether 250 is more than 3. twice as big as 52? That's pratty obvicus. 9 MR. WRIGHT: Well, I was asking him about all of 10: those rings in which the factor of two is exceeded. 274 CHAIRMAN GOODBOPE: All right. 12 Now do you understand the question? I think I 13: understand it now. Do you understand the question now, Mr. 14 Kantor? 15 WITNESS KANTOR: Well, as I understood it we were 16 talking about the 2020 figures. 17 BY MR. WRIGHT: 18 0 We're talking about 1985, please. 19 (Witness Kantor) Well, you could compare the A 20 1985 density figures with the density figures shown in 21 Table 3, and it indicates that at certain radial distances 22 the Pilgrim population density is more than a factor of two 23 than at Montague, and I believe the distances sited by 24 Mr. Wright are the distances where the population density is 25: a factor of two greater at Pilgrim. 1137 210

b11 1	Also I might point out at other distances the
2	population is less than a factor of two.
3	Q So are you saying, Mr. Kantor, that in order for
4	a site to be considered more desirable from a population
5	standpoint than the proposed site that the population has to
6	differ by a factor of two for all rings and all distances?
7	A No, I don't think we're saying that. We're using
8	a factor of two to help us form a judgment on whether a
9.	population - there is a significant difference in population
10	when we look at two sites. We're putting more emphasis on the
11	distance between zero to five miles when we do this. And if
12	the comparison showed that within zero to five miles the
13	population density of the alternative site was more than a
14	factor of two less than the proposed site, then it appears
15	to become a significant difference.
16	We would also have to look at the population
17	beyond that also.
18	Q So there may be some rings in which you have less
19	than a factor of two, but for whatever your reasons you would
20	consider that to be a more desirable site?
21	MR. SMITH: I object.
22	The form of the question as unclear.
23	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, go ahead. That's not
24	what he said.
25	Do you want him to repeat his answer again?
1	1137 211

mp

	11,569
1	POOR ORIGINAL
mpb12	That's about all he can do.
2	MR. WRIGHT: I'm still trying to ostablish
3	whether this factor of two need be applied to every radial
4	ring or not.
a	MR. SMITH: Well, now, that's a good guastion.
6	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Ha's answored it onca.
7	Do you understand the question? Does this factor
a :	of two have to be applied to every radial ring?
9	WITNESS KANTOR: Not nocessarily. It helped us
10	form a judgment, and I don't want to get rigid and hung-up
11	on ring-by-ring on a factor of two.
1.3	BY MR. WRIGHT:
13	Q Now if a factor of two need not be applied to
14	every ring, then how did you go about making the judgment
15	in comparing Pilgrim with Montague?
16	A (Witness Kantor) Well, we did compare the
17	population densities. We looked in particular at the zero
18	to five miles, the close-in, to see if there was a density
15	difference on the order of a factor of two.
20	We also looked at population beyond five miles to
21	see if there was a density difference of a factor of two.
22	The fact that one ring may or may not meet criteria and the
23	rest of the rings do would be something if we came to that
24	situation we would have to consider it in our evaluation.
25	Q And you say that the reason you use this factor
	1177 010

2

T

:

1	
фb13	of two is because density in and of itself is a crude
2	indicator of risk?
3	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, the question his been
4	answered before, and it's in the Appandix B.
3	CHAIRMAN GOODHOFE: I agree.
5	MR. WRIGHT: All right.
Y	BY MR. WRIGHT:
3	Q Well, assuming that's what you say, then would
9	you please tell me why you have reached that conclusion?
10	MR. SMITH: I object.
11	What conclusion are we talking about?
12	MR. WRIGHT: The conclusion that because popula-
13	tion density is a crude indicator of risk that a factor of two
14	is required.
15	WITNESS SOFFER: May I answer that?
16	BY MR. WRIGHT:
17	Q Certainly.
13	A (Witness Soffer) This was one of the instances
19	where the Staff gained insight from the Class 9 consequences
20	study that was performed for the Perryman elternate site
21	review, and was to some extent reported in SECY 78-137.
22	It was shown in that paper that there were a
23	number of alternate - strike that.
24	There were two sites that differed is population
25	density by approximately a factor of five, where the overall
	1177 213
	1157 215

		I UUN UNUM
npb	14	monetized cost of the accident consequences differed by less
	3	than a factor of two.
	3	This led the Staff to conclude that population
	4	density differences would have to be fairly significant
	a	before one could ascertain reliably that population density
	6.	was indeed the difference in risk between two alternative
•	7	sitas.
•.	3	Q And these monetized costs that you speak of,
	9	you looked at an area that went out to 150 miles, did you not?
	10	A That's correct.
	11	Q And over a 150 mila area the constized cost
	12	equaled out, is that correct?
	13	A That's correct.
	14	2 But you also nots, do you not, that in an area
	15	much closer to the plant we would anticipate acute fatalities.
	16	MR. WRIGHT: If I may, Mr. Chairman, I am now on
	17	page 5-8 of the Final Supplement.
-	18	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: 5-8?
david flws	19	
:	20	
	21	
	22	
· .	23	
	24	
	25	
		1177 014
		1157 214

:

11,571

	11	IN	10	n	n	nn	0	n	
FUUN UNIUNAL	AL	N.	lu	IK	U	UK	U	۲	

11,572

MR. WRIGHT: 8, yes. And I'm just saying here --3 3david let me read the whole sentence: "The staff expects that a avid 1 CRAFT code analysis" -- in other words, a class 9 analysis ---3 take 7 "for the Pilgrin site wold show relatively little difference 1 in long term health effects for any of the sites. 3 "However, staff is aware that severe consequences, 3 such as a few fatalities would be confined to much 7 smaller distances. 3 "The staff, therefore, believes it appropriate 9 in efforts to elucidate the significant differences between 10 the sites to examine the population density over distances 11 of about 30 miles from the site." 12 Now, in theprocess of evening out, does that what :3 that you might find out that within the 30 miles there might 1.4 be differences in fatalities between one site and another? 15 WITNESS TOFFER: Yas, there could be. 18 BY MR. WRIGHT: 17 How yould you go about determining what would be 0 13 the factors that you would want to lock at in determining 10 the differences as to acute fatalities? 20 I would expect population density to be a A 21 general measure of the differences between acute fatalities 22 that one might expect --23 But you call that, don't you, a crude indicator 0 24 risk. 25

POOR ORIGINAL

11,573

david2 1	So there must be other indicators that perhaps
2	make your analysis a bit more refined?
3	A It would be population density in comparison with
4	the meteorology that might exist at the time of the accident;
5	topographic considerations that might effect how any
6	effluents or radioactivity would be transported; and a
7	whole complexity of factors that enter into the dispersion and
3	transport of radioactivity under accident conditions.
9	Q Also I assume you want to look at road conditions,
10	road capacities?
11	MR. SMITH: Object.
12	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Is that one of the factor
13	overruled.
14	Is that one of the factors, road capacity?
15	WITNESS STOFFER: You can make accident consequence
16	calculationsin one of two ways: you can examine accident
17	consequence calculations, assuming that the population, for
13	example, does nothing whatever to take any kind of protective
19	actions.
20	This is an unrealistic assumption, of course.
21	Or what you can do, you can estimate what the
22	consequences would be, assuming the people tried to take
23	reasonable, effective measures. The consequences would be
24	lower, but it can be done sither way.
25	Q To a certain extent it would depend upon road
	factors? 1137 216

:

•.

•

	PUUR URIGINAL 11,574
1	A In a realistic situation, yes, it would.
2	Q And to the extent shelter is required, as opposed
3	to evacuation, I assume you'd be concerned with the shield
4	matters in buildings and other matters?
5	A Those would be among the factors that would be
6	considered as protective measures that might be taken, yes.
7	Q Thank you.
е	MR. WRIGHT: I have no further questions at this
9	time, Mr. Chairman.
10	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Mr. Cleaton, do you have any
11	questions?
12	MR. CLEETON: Yes, I have a couple on methodology.
13	It won't take very long.
14	BY MR. CLEETON:
15	Q I believe Mr. Mantor can probably answer them,
16	and Mr. Stoffer, if he needs to supplement.
17	You've identified yourself as a demographer; is
18	that correct? Or having done demographic studies
19	A I believe my experience is I've done work in
20	demography.
21	Q Could you answer for me what the traditional
22	definition of a spare mile is or a square kilometer.
23	A Square mile?
24	Q Square mile, square kilometer.
25	A A square of one mile on each side.
	1137 217
	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

đ

۰.

Q All right. Does the U. S. Geological Survey consider a square mile to be approximately 640 acres?

A I believe that's their version of a square mile, yes.

Q And in approximately one-half -- maybe 40 percent of the United States is gridded out in square mile sections, and then -- of townships and so on.

Most of the western part of the United States is gridded in square miles.

A I'll accept that, yes.

Q All right. Des the USGS, except for measuring the size of bodies of water, include surface -unenclosed water as a part of their square mileage in estimating size of land areas?

> MR. LEWALD: Can we have that question read back? BY MR. CLEETON:

Q Does the USGS, except for estimating the size of a body of water, include unenclosed bodies of water in their land mass size calculations?

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Are you talking about water like Cape Code Bay?

MR. CLEETON. That's right, sir.

WITNESS KAN JR: I believe they were determing the land area of Cape Cod -- they would not include the adjacent water areas.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: The whole state is what he's

11,575

david4

referring to; you want the square mileage of Massachusetts?

MR. CLEETON: The square miles rather than -- in measuring Massachusetts for purposes of land mass size, they do not include Cape Cod Bay; that's what I was getting at.

> He answered that in the affirmative. They do not. BY MR. CLEETON:

Under the circumstances, can you give the square 0 mileage of the town of Plymouth?

MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman --

MR. LEWALD: I think that's already in the record; it's 100 square miles. We had that.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: We have been over it; do you have it handy, Mr. Kantor?

WITNESS KANTOR: I beliave I do have the figures sometiace.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I don't know whether this is a preliminary question or not, Mr. Cleeton.

Go ahead.

(Pause.)

WITNESS KANTOR: I'm referring to the document entitled "Massachusetts Population," and in this document for Plymouth, they give the area in square miles as 103.2 square miles.

BY MR. CLEETON:

0

Do you know, sir, whether or not the Chamber of 1137 219

Commerce or any official agency or body in the County of Plymouth, the town of Plymouth, or the Commonwealth of Massachusetts identifies the square mileage size of the central population of the town of Plymouth?

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Of the what?

MR. CLEETON: The central population, the so-called downtown or central portion, as contrasted to the geographical boundaries, a lot of which is woods.

WITNESS KANTOR: I don't have any knowledge of h that number. I would assume that somebody in the twon town might have that knowledge. I don't personally.

BY MR. CLEETCN:

All right. With those in mind, then, in regard to the methodology, including radial or circumferential or concentric rings of population studies, when one calculates from Rocky Point outward in concentric circles, a large body of water is included in the area, which -- they divided the total population to get your density; is that correct?

A Yes, sir, that's correct.

Q In site number one, which is on the Merrimack River, the table regarding that is on page number 414; you show zero to five miles.

Is that a concentric ring, a radial ring. Page 414, taking the top numbers up to five miles.

11,577

A That's the radius, zero to five miles, around site 1.

Q Does it include any significant bodies of Water that are unpopulated by people?

A Outside of the Merrimack River, I don't believe there are any significant bodies of water within zero to five miles; perhaps some local lakes.

Q Now, in the method of analysis, as I understand it, in determining low population zome area of exclusion and areas -- regions and so on, you use concentric rings; is that correct?

In other words --

(Indicating).

A We look at radial distances.

Q Radial distances, which when moved on a radius would describe a circle --

MR. LEWALD: Could we have an answer to each of the questions? Exclusion area, low population zone --I think the question had --

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: What is your question?

MR. CLEETON: My question is: in determining area of exclusion, low population zone, and other regions of interests -- I'll pluralize it to take everything out to a point of eight miles -- your area that is used in calculations is a circle.

WITNESS RANTOR: No. When we review an exclusion 1137 221

area, we look specifically at the area within that exclusion zon.

BY MR. CLEETON:

Q In other words, the exclusion zone only uses the land mass relative to the Elgrim site?

You're not counting the water in the exclusion

A (Witness Soffer) May I answer?

Q Sure.

area?

A The exclusion area as defined by Part 100 is an area that is defined as -- by the applicant -- where he proposes to have the authority to determine all the activities.

It may or may not be a circle.

Q All right.

A And it may include water area and may not necessarily include water area. So it can be either one. The

low population zone is usually circular in shape. A region of interest that the staff has used for considering alternative sites can be a broadly based geographic region and generally does not include a lot of water areas.

For the purposes of making population density comparisons in accordance with regulatory guide 4.7, the staff does consider the total area within a circle whether that area is land area or water area.

The intent is to account for the total number of people that will be within a fixed distance of the site and if these people happen to be all on land, then, yes, that's where all the people happen to be.

BY MR. CLEETON:

11,581

DAVIDERIO !	Q Does the Nuclear Regulatory Commission use any kind of
2	sector analysis to look at population distribution?
3	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Do you know what he means by a
4	sector?
5	MR. CLEBTON: Twenty-two and a half degrees. A
6	sector is 22 and a half degrees for purpose of this question.
7	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right.
8	WITNESS SOFFER: May I answer that?
9	CHAIRMAN GOODEOPE: Yes.
10	WITNESS SOFFER: The commission asked the applicants
11	to submit population data in the form of sectors and
12	concentric areas of analysis. For the purpose of making
13	comparisons, the regulatory guide 4.7, the staff does not
14	use the sector information. However, for examining other
. 15	considerations in regard to whether an applicant has
16	identified the nearest population center, for example, or
17	whether there are other communities that may potentially
18	become population centers. The staff does indeed examine
19	the sector, the population sector information.
20	BY MR. CLEETON:
21	2 All right, assuming sector analysis for other
22	considerations, like population senters, population in the
23	event of some incident or accident, and for in terms of
24	meteorology, in what is commonly described as a plume, are
25	inland sites treated the same a coastal sites?
	1137 224

:

11,582

POOR ORIGINAL

dar		21	-		
ra	V és	-	- R.	1	4

1

2

3

14

15

21

MR. SMITH: Objection. CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Relevancy.

MR. SMITH: Relevancy and question is vague.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: What difference does it make? MR. CLEETON: I'm -- Mr. Chairman, I'm simply leading to the fact that in the analysis of site 1 if only concentric circles are used, population densities are simpler to bend for the Pilgrim site; and if you exclude the water at Pilgrim you get densities that are considerably higher than at site one.

10 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPF: I don't think there's dispute 11 about that. But I'll overrule the objection. Do you know, do 12 you use the same methodology inland as you do in a coastal 13 situation such as we have here?

> WITNESS SOFFER: I'm not sure I understand your question. BY MR. CLEETON:

16 Q Do you use the same methodology in determining 17 population, effective population, namely sector analysis for 13 inland sites as you do in coastal sites?

A If -- if you mean, would we use regulatory guide 4.7 the same way for an inland site as for an off-shore site.

Q Coastal site.

A Coastal site. The answer is yes. With the presumption that the meteorology for the two sites is generally similar. In other words, there has to be a general determination by the staff that there is no reason to believe

	POOR ORIGINAL 11,583
davidg 121	that the wind pattern would be such at a coastal site that
2	it blows predominantly toward the land.
3	Q All right, then, let me ask this; most of the
4,	statements that are made in have refar to wind direction and
5	wind velocity and so on. Are there any that refer to no wind?
ô	Stable situation wherein, if an accident occurred,
7'	and no wind the plume would not be distributed?
8	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I have to object. First,
9	we are not sure where he is referring to.
10	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I can't hear you.
11	MR. SMITH: I don't know what he's referring to and
12	also the relevancy to alternative site review.
13	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I think his question is simply,
14	is there any analysis made in the final supplement. Where there
15	is no wind at all blowing. Is that substatively what your
16	question is?
17	MR. CLEETON: Yes.
18	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Or is it assumed that there is
19	a wind of some velocity?
20	WITNESS SOFFER: Our meteorologists have gathered data
21	on the percentage of calm. It's generally less than half a
22	percent at any particular site. On that basis, I think that
23	we do not make any analysis that includes no wind direction.
24	BY MR. CLEETON:
. 25	Q One final question, if the water were excluded from
	1137 226

:

davidd

davial3 2

1 your calculations in the matter of the Pilgrim site, would the 2 density be such as to make them considerably higher than the 3 densities at alternative sites?

11,584

4 The answer to that is obviously, yes - of course. A If 5 you put the same number of people into a smaller area, then obviously, the population density goes up. However, I must 6 qualify that by saying that this is not the intent of 7 regulatory guide 4.7. Could do it this way and if it had 8 been the intent, I think the guide would have read differently. 9 Population density can be an extremely misleading number in the 10 sense that if you do not define the area that you're talking 11. about very carefully one can arrive at conclusions that 12 population density is an extremely high number. For example, I 13 made an example calculation some time ago in regard to this 14 meeting room, which is approximately 30 feet by 60 feet, I 15 estimated. And it turns out that one person in this meeting 16 room coresponds to appopulation density of 15,000 persons per 17 square mile. Now it is not clearly the intent of the people 13 framing regulatory guide 4.7 to indicate that isolated 19 concentrations of people, which they obviously knew would lead 20 to higher population densities, should be given undue weight. 21 And that's the reason why regulatory guide 4.7 is to look at all 22 of the people in all of the area under the assumption that the 23 wind pattern is generally uniform. 24

25

0

May I ask one further question which would be the

davia14

last one. Under the circumstances of the illustration you gave of the density of 15,000 per square mile for this room at the present time being misleading, would not the figures which is water area for the calculation for the population density be similarly misleading when averaged, without that footnote or reference?

A This is the point that I was trying to say. That a population density value without giving a clear indication of what area you are talking about is in and of itself a very mislanding number. That by our very nature it's very easy and unambiguous to count people. It hat ones ambiguous shen we count people per square so and so, if we do not define emactly what we mean by the area. So it would be quite unambiguous for me to say that there are 40 people in this meeting room, however; if I were to say that there is a location in Plymouth where the population density with 40 people per square mile, by the way, the population density is about 600,000 people per square mile.

DR. COLE: You mean 40 in this room?

WITNESS SOFFER: Forty in this room is equivalent to a population density of 500,000 people per square mile. If I were to give you that number without any other qualification it could be very easily an ambiguous type of a number. I believe it's more important to concentrate on the total number of people in a given distance of the plant rather than 1137 228

david 15	1 examine population densities in relatively small areas. It's
	2 quite obvious, if you looked at a map of Plymouth and the
	3 surrounding areas, that you could findereas in central
	4 Plymouth where the population density was several thousand
	5 people per square mile. And you could just as easily find
	areas in rather remote sections of town where the population
	7 density was conceivably very close to maro. The only thing that
	gives us an unambiguous answer is the fact that our sotal
	9 number of individuals of people, we are concerned, after all,
	o with the health and safety of people.
	1 Q Now, considering people them. rather than density
	2 would you consider the Pilgrim site the best site of the
	3 several alternatives.
Part of the	4 MR. SMITH: Object to the term - best.
	5 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I can't hear either one of you.
	6 MR. SMITH: I object to the serve best as a
1	7 comparison.
	8 MR. CLEETON: Mr. Chairman.
	9 CHAIRMAN GODDHOPE: What do you mean by best?
:	MR. CLZETON: In the arguement that Mr. Smith
2	handed to us the other day, which is a collection of policy
X	2 statements, so I assume that they are will policy. In that
2	a recommendation section. It states, 'Staff practice is
2	4 neutral concerning facing additional mits on previously
3	5 approved sites." This is page 30 and this is under policy.
	1137 229

-

٠.

•

davi

:

٠.

	1.1	
d16	1	When an additional site is proposed, the staff avaluates
	2	updated site information. Site criteria applied to each additional
	3	unit independently. This practice has resulted in different
	4	sizes for low population zones, population center distances
	5	for different units.
	6	Of the same type of the cases Arkansas 2 and Pilgrim 2;
	7	this was a result of the changes in population. My greation
	8	goes to the issue of whether or not the Pilgrim site is the
	9	better or bast site.
	10	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: 1'11 Let you ask him if this is
	11	the preferable site insofar as he participated in the
	12	preparation of the final supplement.
	13	MR. CLEETON: In terms of population?
	14	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yas.
	15	BY MR. CLEETON:
	16	Q Is it the prebrable site in terms of population,
	17	counting people, not concentric or sector analysis?
	18	A In terms of population considerations and using
	19	the test of significance that Mr. Kantor and Mr. Wright
	20	discussed earlier, the factor of two significance, they
	-1	concluded that there was no site obviously superior.
	22	MR. CLEETON: Thank you. No further questions.
	23	
	24	
	25	
		1137 230

	1	
		POOR ORIGINAL 11,588
AVID	3B/mpb1	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Mr. Smith.
	2	MR. SMITH: No rediract, Your Honor.
	3	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Mr. Claston.
	4	Anybody have any further questions?
	5	(No Tasponse.)
	5	Mr. Kantor and Mr. Soffer, you are excused.
	7	(The panel excused.)
	8	MR. SMITH: The panel may come back later.
•	9	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Ch. All right.
	10	Well, what's your pleasure? Do you want to
	11	adjourn now and come back at 1:15 or go on? What is it?
	12	Mr. Herr is next, if he's here.
	13	MR. WRIGHT: Yas, he just arrived, sir.
	14	I would appreciate adjourning now and starting
	15	at 1:15. That's my own personal preference,
	. 16	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Any problems with anyone?
	17	MR. LEWALD: We have no objection.
	18	CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: All right. We'll come back
	19	at 1:15.
	20	(Whersupon, at 11:45 a.m., the hearing in the
	21	above-entitled matter was recessed, to reconvene at
	22	1:15 p.m., this same day.)
	23	
	24	
	25	
	23	
		1137 231

	POOR ORIGINAL 11,589
ER/1	AFTERNOON SESSION
2	1:15 p
3	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: The hearing will be in order
4	Whereupon,
5	PHILIP B. HERR
3	was called as a witness on behalf of the Commonwealth of
7	Massachusetts, and having been first duly sworn, was examin
8	and testified as follows:

TS MELT2

9 MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, for purposes of 10 identification, I would like to have Mr. Herr's testimony 11 marked as Commonwealth's Exhibit 113, and I am going to 12 provide the stancgrapher with the requisite 20 copies so 13 that they may be bound into the record.

14 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Are you going to bind it into 15 the end of today's transcript?

Then it doesn't need an exhibit number if it is just to be bound at the end of today's transcript, and the reporter is so directed.

19 (Counsel Wright distributing copies to Board 20 and Parties.)

MR. WRIGHT: Now, if I may Mr. Chairman, what happened is that there were a number of corrections that Mr. Herr wanted to make. As a result we notified the parties of the changes. And what I am introducing here today is an amended version of Mr. Herr's testimony.

1137 232

.m.

ad

		11,590
mm 2	1	Dr. Callihan mentioned yesterday that he would
	2	also appreciate knowing just where those changes were made
	3	so that he can incorporate them into his old copy. And for
	4	that reason I have prepared a document entitled "Corrections
	5	of Testimony of Philip B. Herr," for those parties or those
	6	Board members who may find that more convenient.
	7	(Distributing document to Parties and Board)
	8	DIRECT EXAMINATION
	9	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	10	Q Mr. Herr, will you please identify yourself for
	11	the record; your name, address and position?
	12	A I am Philip Gerr. I am a resident of Newton,
	13	Massachusetts.
	14	I am an associate professor in the Department of
	15	Urban Studies and Planning at MIT, and principal in the planning
	16	consulting firm of Herr Associates.
	17	Q Thank you.
	18	I have just handed you, Mr. Herr, a document that
	19	has now been it has not been labeled, as a matter of fact,
	20	it is entitled "The Testimony of Philip B. Herr on Pilgrim 2
	21	Population Density and Other Site Characteristics Submitted
	22	by Intervenor Commonwealth of Massachusetts in Support of its
	23	Contention No. 12."
	24	Can you identify this document?
	25	A Yes, that's my testimony. 1137 233

		11,591
mm3	1	Q Is the statement contained therein true to the
	2	best of your knowledge, information and belief?
	3	A Yes, it is.
	4	2 At this time, do you have any further corrections
	5	to this particular document?
	s	A No, I don't.
	7	MR. WRIGHT: Mr.Herr is available for cross-
	8	examination, Mr. Chairman.
	9	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Do you want to start, Mr. Lewald?
	10	Or, have you made another arrangement?
	11	MR. LEWALD: I had assumed Mr. Wright at some point
	12	was going to offer the testimony.
	13	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I assumed that when it was bound
	14	into the record it became a part of today's testimony. I
	15	took that as an offer.
	16	MR. LEWALD: Oh, I see. I must have been sleeping
	17	at the switch.
	18	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I considered that an fer.
	19	I will go back now. Is there any objections?
	20	MR. SMITH: Yes.
	21	MR. LEWALD: Yes.
	22	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Who wants to be first?
	23	Mr. Lewald, go ahsad.
	24	MR. LEWALD: Mr. Chairman, we would object to th
	25	end portion of Mr. Herr's testimony beginning with page 20,
		11:7 234

11,592 -

on the basis that on the face of the testimony at least, it seems to appear that the testimony offered is offered more in connection with the Emergency Planning Contention of the Commonwealth and the Staff, than pursuant to Commonwealth Contention 12.

The testimony from page 20 on deals solely and entirely with evacuation. And from 21, which is a map, through 22 and on to the end deals solely with evacuation of Cape Cod. And this would appear to be, perhaps, pertinent to the emergency planning contention. But it doesn't seem to have direct relevancy to Contention 12 as stated.

And therefore, we would object to it coming in at this time.

MR. SMITH: Staff has the same objection.

MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, the testimony of Professor Herr was prepared with respect to Cape Cod and goes very much to the issue of population distributions around the various sites. It goes to the very heart of our contention, and that is that because of the unique siting characteristics related to the Pilgrim site, and because of the unique population distributions that are involved here, that the Staff has not adequately analyzed the Pilgrim site in light of the other available sites.

Now one of the issues that's involved when you talk about population and risk, obviously, in addition to their distribution and their numbers and other factors

ma4

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13.

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

like that, is the ability to protect these people in the 1 2 event of a nuclear incident. And it is precisely for this reason that Dr. Herr's testimony is included at this time 3 4 with respect to the Cape Cod population because there is a very real problem here in terms of getting people over that 5 ð bridge if such should become necessary.

It is intimately related to the issue of population 7 8 for that reason.

MR. LEWALD: I would say, Mr. Chairman, that 9 the emergency planning contention says that the acceptable 10 emergency plan cannot be developed to protect persons within 11 and beyond the LPZ at the proposed site. And it seems that 12 whether or not Cape Cod can be evacuated is directly concerned 13 with that, and that is directly concerned with that contention 14 rather than simply the general population densities and 15 accumulations in the vicinity of the site. 16

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: And the alternate sites. And 17 what we are considering here is alternate sites. 13

MR. LEWALD: With alternate sites, of course. MR. WRIGHT: I think it is true that certainly 20 portions of Professor Herr's tastimony as tothe evacuation 21 of Cape Cod will also be relevant when we get into the 22 emergency planning contention. 23

However, I still would maintain that in terms of 24 really closely looking at the surrounding population to 25

1137 236

mm5

11,594

1	these various sites, this is very pertinent, because you just
2	can't look at people, you have to look at what happens to those
3	people in the event of an accident. That's what our population
4	contention is all about.
5	CHAIRMAN COODHOPE: Well, we are considering here
6	alternate sites.
7	Is there any information as to whether or how
8	difficult it is to evacuate any of these alternate sites?
9	Are you presenting any evidence on any other sites
10	except this one?
11	MR. WRIGHT: No, we are not presenting any evidence
12	on other sites except this one. We don't have it at our
13	disposal at this time. We are concerned about making a showing
14	that the Pilgrim situation is dangerous enough, or at least
15	gives rise to enough questions as to the surrounding population
16	distributions and the impact of a nuclear accident on them,
17	that the Staff should have done more in its own alternative
18	site analysis.
19	(Board conferring)
20	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Would you object to this
21	being brought in under emergency planning, Mr. Lewald?
22	MR. LEWALD: Well, if it is under the designation
23	of emergency planning, no, I think it is pertiment to emergency
24	planning.
25	MR. SMITH: Staff is of the same opinion, sir.
	-7 - 227
	1131 251

mm 6

:

mm 7

25

11,595

1 DR. COLE: How much of a hardship would it create 2 on you, Mr. Wright, if we were to go along with these 3 objections, because it does not really seem to apply to the 4 issue of alternate sites, and then bring it forward at whatever 5 time we proceed with emergency planning? 5 MR. WRIGHT: My only concern would be that in the 7 preparation of our proposed findings of fact for the Board, that we be allowed to refer to this testimony in support of 8 our alternative sites claim. 9 If we are not going to be allowed to do that, then 10 I think it is a definite hardship because I think it is these 11 very matters, the matters of road and shertering and things 12 like that that make the population analysis done by the Staff 13 deficient. 14 And that's what we attempted to show in this. 15 Now, as I said before, obviously certain portions 16 of this are going to be relevant to emergency planning as 17 well. But it has been our contention all along that you just 18 can't look at numbers of people in comparing one site to 19 another when you are concerned about residual risks. You 20 have to look to other factors as well. 21 And as both Mr. Soffer and Mr. Kantor testified 22 earlier today and yesterday as well, I believe, road capacity 23 is one of those very factors that you would want to look 24

closely at in trying to determine residual risk.

11,596

.

	Now, of course, for them
2	DR. COLE: But that really seems to be more in an
3	area other than alternate sites, that is emergency planning.
4	MR. WRIGHT: But, if one of the areas in NEPA that
5	you are concerned with is the residual risk in the event of
6	a nuclear accident, then it is our contention at any rate, you
7	have to look not only to population, but to its distribution
3	and to the capacity that the local community has to mitigate
9	the effects of the nuclear accident if it were to occur.
10	And one very clear thing that you can look to here
11	is road capacity and the ability of a community to get its
12	people moved from one point to another. And that's why it is
13	included at this time in our alternative sites contention.
14	Now, of course, the Staff's position is that all
15	we have to do is look at population density per square mile,
16	and that if it reaches a certain if it exceeds a certain
17	trip level then we will perform a further analysis.
18	And I would suggest to you, Dr. Cole, that that
19	further analysis that the staff might find itself performing
20	some day in the case where it did consider the population
21	levels were too high, would be to look to road capacity and
22	things like that.
23	The only argument that we have here is whether
24	or not their use of population figures alone, without even

looking to sectoral distribution and more refined matters 1137 2.39

mm 8

11,597

1	like that, satisfies NEPA with respect to demography.
2	We say there is more. We say because of these
3	unique characteristics, one of which is this very matter
4	here of the bottleneck that has occurred, that is occurring
3	on the Cape, because of this unique site characteristic
3	you should have done more, you should have looked much closer
7	at these various sites before assuming that Pilgrin was the
8	preferred site.
9,	DR. COLE: You did not look at the other sites
10	with respect to that same category?
11	MR. WRIGHT: Right.
12	And we are saying that the Staff should have looked
13	much more closely at these other sites because of these
14	unique site characteristics here. And one of them we are
15	concerned, of course, as you know, about the distribution
16	of population around this site.
17	We are also concerned about road capacity, we
18,	are concerned about the ability of the Cape community to e
19	get those people off the Cape if that should become necessary.
20.	That is a unique site charact ristic that we claim
21	should have triggered a far more intensive lock at the
22	alternative sites. That is very much like the FNP case, the
23	Floating Nuclear Power Plant case, because there was a
24	unique tuation. In that case, of course, it was the fact
25	that one of these things was going to be sited out at sea.
	1137 240

ma9
11,598

Because there was that unique situation and unique circumstances, the Staff felt obliged to go ahead with this Class 9 analysis.

All we are saying here is once again we have a unique set of circumstances; one of which is population distribution; another of which is the problem of the Cape. And because of those unique circumstances, we are asking, or it is our contention that a far more rigorous analysis of accidents should have been conducted by the staff.

MR. LEWALD: Mr. Chairman, what Mr. Wright is now arguing is that because of the unique circumstances here, the Commission's regulations don't apply and some other standard ought to be set forth.

If indeed that is his position, he should have raised that earlier because this is in substance an attack on regulations, that you have such a unique set of circumstances with respect to this particular application that the regulations set forth shouldn't be applicable and that some other guidance cught to be given.

But there is a regular procedure for bringing this matter before the Board, and indeed before the Commission which hasn't been done in this case.

> MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, may I make a statement? CHAIRMAN GOODHOPT: Yes.

MR. SMITH: I think that one thing that should be

1137 241

mm10

23

24

11,599

1137 242

nm11 1 understood and I think is somewhat cloudy by the Commonwealth's 2 assertions of what the Staff believes: There is a proposed 3 amendment to Appendix E Part 50 which deals with emergency 4 planning.

5 Accompanying that amendment is a supplemental -it is called supplemental information which gives guidance 5 7 to the Staff. Again this is not a regulation, it's Commission's irtarim guidance. But the Staff is following interim 8 guidance. 9

10 That particular interin guidance states that 11 emergency planning may become a part of an alternative site review; or, in your alternative site considerations, not 12 necessarily part of your NEPA review. 13

And we recognize that particular provision. And, 14 in fact, the Staff has undertaken a review of evacuation at 15 alternative sites. 16

The important part here is that we feel it is 17 necessary to separate emergency planning, which is under the 18 safety side of our review and take in different considerations 19 than from the NEPA consideration, alternative sites. 20

And that's why we object to this being presented now. It is a way of keeping, I think, amore orderly record. We are not objecting to it and would not object to it being brought in at a later time when emergency planning is discussed, and we will also, as we indicated in our rebuttal

21

22

23

24

-mm12

1 testimony which was prefiled, we intend to file our 2 examination review of alternative sites as it relates to 3 evacuation.

But it is not a NEPA issue, it is a safety issue and triggers a consideration of alternative sites, but not under the NEPA review. And that's why we think it is important to keep this separation.

BR. CALLIHAN: Clearly Mr. Smith and Mr. Lewald,
9 this is an exploratory question to attempt to clarify.

10 Mr. Lewald indicated a break point in the 11 testimony and remarked, if I interpret Mr. Lewald, that 12 after page number so and so, it was primarily consideration 13 of evacuation, travel routes, et cetera.

Do you imply by that that in advance of your page 20 or whatnot, there is material relevant to today's consideration on alternate site population distribution per say rather than how to get rid of the population?

MR. LEWALD: Well, I would not raise objection on
 those earlier pages.

Yes, sir, there is testimony in the first 20 -the first 19 pages that would appear on its face, at least, to be directed to the issue that we are considering today, the alternate site issue raised by Commonwealth Contention 12.

DR. CALLIHAN: Mr. Smith, would you object to my question?

11,601 MR. SMITH: Yes, I think there are -- as a matter 1 2 of fact I have some cites as towhere there is some small reference to emergency planning at Plymouth, and I would like 3 .4 to correct the record. 5 I made a statement about separating the environmental considerations and the safety. In reviewing the language, we 6 may consider emergency planning advantages or disadvantages of 7 a particular site as part of the NEPA cost-benefit analysis 8 of alternative sites. So I misspoke before when I said 9 keeping it separate. 10 But I still believe that it is important that we 11 do maintain for orderly records, separation of evicuation 12 emergency planning in that part of the hearing and not 13 bringing it to this part of the hearing. 14 DR. CALLIHAN: Referring to another document that 15 we have in hand not yet part of the record, but it is 16 entitled "Staff Rebuttal Testimony." 17 Mr. SMITH: That's right. 18

mm13

23

DR. CALLTHAN: My observation, and I ask for confirmation or consent -- my observation is the material of this document addresses what I will loosely refer to as the forepart of Professor Herr's testimony?

MR. SMITH: That's correct.

It states in there that we will file at a later time, analysis of evacuation of alternative sites.



:

٠.

DR. CALLIHAN: Thank you.

(Board conferring)

1137 245

		11,603
19 MADELON	1	MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, may I suggest a way
In aimie	2	out of this impasse?
mpbl	3	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, I was just going to
	.4	say the objection has come down. It's just a matter of
	5	procedure as to how we're going to proceed, as I see it.
	G	You're trying to make more out of it than that.
:	7	But
•	3	MR. WRIGHT: As a matter of procedure, sir, parhaps
	9	the testimony could be allowed in to the extent that it
	10	applies to the NEPA situation.
	1:	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, there's no doubt,
	12	I don't think, as to the first 19 pages.
	13	MR. WRIGHT: Yes. I'm talking now about the last
	14	part of it.
	15	As Mr. Smith has pointed out, in NEPA it can be
	16	a consideration. What I would suggest doing - and I don't
	17	know if this would be acceptable to the parties is to
-	18	accept it as part of our alternative sites case, if you will,
	19	Jut allow later cross-examination on this area provided the
-	20	parties feel that they want to defer cross-examination until
	21	the time of emergency planning.
	12	But I do think it is very much a part of the NEPA
	23	circumstances that we must show in order to make out our case
	24	under NEPA. And for that reason I would request that it be
	25	accepted into evidence at thistime.
		1137 246

12,604

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, now, are you suggesting that accept the whole document, have the whole document bound in and limit the cross-examination to the first 19 pages and then have any further cross-examination from 20 on later as a part of the amergency planning? Is that your suggestion?

MR. WRIGHT: Yes, as an accompdation to the parties, yes. But with the clear understanding that these last eight or so pages apply both to emergency planning and to our NEPA contention.

CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: That's where we get into the problam. As I see, the last part of it does not apply to alternate sites or to NEPA.

Mr. WRIGHT: Well, as I said before, our claim is that as a unique site-related circumstance --

16 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: And now Mr. Smith says that 17 it may be a part of that.

MR. SMITH: As I said, I misspoke. I was reading from the proposed regulation where the Computation says exactly what I read. It's, again, a proposed regulation.

I would have no objection to that procedure as long as it's not ataking us -- Staff stipulation as to how emergency planning should be factored into this particular alternative site analysis.

MR. LEWALD: Well, the special ziroumstances or 1137 247

Tpb2

1

2

3

4

3

3

*1

3

2

10

11

12

13

14

15

11,605

POOR ORIGINAL

Edgm

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

the unique circumstances that Mr. Wright rafers to, either these are something beyond the regulations or these are the special attention matters that are referred to in Offshore Systems case, which is 8 NRC 194.

These special discumstances, at least as interpreted by the appeals board, are simply introduced to show whether or not the probabilities of risk are greater or lesser than they would be otherwise with respect to the site. And I don't really see how the question of evacuating Cape Cod has any relation to the probabilities of risk at the Pilgrim site.

12 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I think that is our problem 13 too under the present regulations. You want to go beyond 14 the present regulations.

MR. WRIGHT: The only regulation we have, sir, as I understand it, is the reg guide 4.7, which is of course not a regulation. We have had an appeals board saying that under special circumstances a Class 9 analysis might be performed. Indeed, that's the Staff's position as well. And the appeals board found that the floating nuclear plant-DR. COLE: Mr. Wright, do you have a reference

22 for that, because that's not my recollection.

23 MR. WRIGHT: My understanding of the Offshore 24 Power Systems case is that they were allowed to go ahead 25 with the Class 9 analysis that was done.

	MR. SMITH: If I may comment, that is correct,
2	but not on the grounds given by Mr. Wright, but on the grounds
3	that the appeal boards found that the Conmission had never
4	considered floating nuclear power plants when they adopted
3	the annex to Appendix D. Therefore they allowed it to be
\$	considered in that particular case.
7	But it's true, the Staff argued the special
3	circumstances for that particular item. It was rejected by
9	the appeal board.
10	MR. WRIGHT: The Staff is also arguing now before
11	the NRC that there are special circumstances when a class 9
12	analysis should be done. And not only is it true for floating
13	nuclear plants, but it's true for a land-based plant as well.
14	There was a statement I can quote from their
13	brisf which I have here. The point remains, Mr. Chairman,
16	that what I propose I don't think is all that out of the
17	ordinary, that if the parties feel that they're not prepared
18	at this time to go forward with the cross-examination on
19	evacuation as it relates to emergency planning, then by all
20	means let them again cross-gramine Dr. Herr at a later time
21	as to this particular portion of his tastimony.
22	He will be appearing again as o'r witness in the
23	emergency planning phase of these proceedings, so that's not
24	a problem,

All I would ask this Board to do is to allow us

1137 249

mpb4

11,607

to introduce this as part of our alternative sites contention because I do think it constitutes that kind of unique circumstance.

Now mind you, this whole area, as we found out today, is a tramendously evolving one. No one knows from one day to the next quits what is going on. We have matters before the NRC at this point. We also have a number of task forces looking at various matters that are coming out of Three Mile Island.

We have the Staff itself urging that in certain circumstances the Class 9 analysis should be performed. We have the Staff taking a position before the NRC that it should be allowed to do Class 9 analysas.

And just for all of those reasons I think that it's the better part of wisdom to at least accept this in and proceed. I just don't see what the problem is.

MR. CLEETON: Mr. Chairman.

DR. CALLIHAN: Can you, Mr. Wright, define a
fairly clean break point of Prof. Herr's testimony where
you would separate, if you can, the sits demography and that
sort of thing from evacuation?

Mr. Lewald named a ruge.

23 MR. WRIGHT: Well, the problem is that to a large 24 extent I guess Mr. Lewald is talking about the pages beginning 25 at page 20. And quite a bit of that testimony relates to 7

mpb5

2

1

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

17

11,608

1 adqm	for example if we look at page 26, the nearby population
2	south-southeast. There are pages that talk only about the
3	actual population to be found there.
4	We're not talking at that point about evacuation,
5	but only about the populations to be found within certain
8	sectors. And then in addition he also discusses road
7	capacity. And than he compares road capacity, at least for
3	the Cape, anyway, road capacity with these population figures.
9	DB. CALLIMAN: Well, my impression was that the
10	mathodology and the like are considered more to a greater
11	degree in the earlier section than in the later. A. I was
12	seeing if you could separate the pages between the two
13	subjects.
14	MR. CLEETON: Mr. Chairman.
. 15	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yas.
16	MR. CLEBTON: Might I offer in addition that
17	since the second piece of the Final Suppler ., with the
18	exception of the Merrimack, Millstone, Mont and Seebrook
19	sites, 18-A, -B, -C, E, 19 and 20 are all allected by the
20	Cape, if you take a look at the map, that this is relevant
21	to alternative sites, all of the sites that are offered as
22	the centerpiece for this Final Supplement to preferable sites.
23	And the evacuation of the Cape is relevant to all
24	of those that I cite.
. 25	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, 1 don't remember in

:

mpb7	1	detail right now, and I don't think I agree with it. But I
	2	can't say that I remember that in that context. I don't
	3	believe it was presented for that purpose.
	4	But don't hold me to that because I don't
	5	ramember in detail.
	5	(The Board conferring.)
	7	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, we're going to let the
	8	document be bound in, the entire document be bound in. I think
	9	it's a procedural matter.
	10	And let's try to limit the cross-examination, to
	11	the best we can, to the first 19 pages concerning the
	12	alternate site problem. I think that that is what is
	13	important. And the remainder of it, into the evacuation,
	14	emergency plans.
	15	You're going to make the argument that as a
	16	part of alternate sites they should have considered
	17	evacuation plans at all of the alternate sites, not just
	18	Cape Cod, and that since they didn't do this then your
	19	argument is going to 1 you made such a showing as to
	20	how impossible it is or difficult it is to avacuate around
	21	Pilgrim 2, that the Staff was deficient in not considering
	22	this and looking for a better and easier evacuation plan
	23	around the other possible sites.
	24	You can make the argument. I don't think that the
	25	regulations permit us to even address it other than to reject

- Contraction of

2

1137 252

11,609

11,610

1

POOR ORIGINAL

1	
2	MR. WRIGHT: If I may, Mr. Chairman, there's a
3	little bit more to it than that, and that's the part that
4	troubles me. It's not only that; it's our contention that
3	the Staff should have looked more closely to such matters as
ø	evacuability when they reviewed these various alternative
7	sites. But it's also that the unique problems associated
3	with the Pilgrim site should have triggared that more
9	intensive analysis.
10	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: As we perceive the regula-
11	tions, the triggering point was not reached, I don't believe,
12	in Pilgrim 2.
13	So that the exhibit will be bound into the record
14	and we'll go ahead and proceed with the cross-examination as
15	far as it pertains to alternate sites. And the rest of it,
16	then, from 20 on, will be for Mr. Herr when he comes back for
17	cross-examination as a part of the emergency planning.
18	MR. WRIGHT: Then, Mr. Chairman, under the
19	circumstances, if I take your ruling to mean that you are
20	going to treat the evacuation section of Mr. Herr's testimony
25	as irrelevant, then I'd like to make an offer of proof.
23	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: You've made the offer.
23	You've stated that the whole documant is relevant to the
24	subject.
25	MR. WRIGHT: I've stated that there are unique
	1177 057
	1137 233

mpb8

at this tim

edgm	1	circumstances associated with the Rocky Point site, one of			
	2	which is the problem of evacuation. And that is itself			
	3	should have triggered a far more rigorous analysis of the			
	4	other sites.			
	5	CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: All right.			
		That's not an offer of proof, it's an argument			
	7	which you want to make based on this exhibit. All right.			
	3	That's it.			
	3	The entire document will be bound into today's			
testimony, as I stated praviously.					
	(The documant referred to follows:)				
	12				
	13				
	14	DOOD ODIDINIAI			
	15	PULLER DESIGNAL			
	18				
	17-				
	18				
	15				
	20				
	21				
	22				
	23				
	24				
	25				
		1137 254			
	1				

11,612

The support of the same

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

BEFORE THE ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD

In the Matter of)	
Boston Edison Company, et al.)	
(Pilgrim Nuclear Generating Station,)	Docket No.
Unit 2))	50-471

TESTIMONY OF PHILIP B. HERR ON PILGRIM 2 POPULATION (ENSITY AND OTHER SITE CHARACTERISTICS, SUBMITTED BY INTERVENOR COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS IN SUPPORT OF ITS CONTENTION NO. 12

1137 255

Commonwealth Contention 12: Neither Applicants Nor Staff Have Adequately Considered the Alternative of Locating the Proposed Plant at a Site More Suitable from a Population Density and Environmental Standpoint.

My name is Philip B. Herr, and I am an Associate Professor of City Planning at the Department of Urban Studies and Planning, Massachusetts Institute of Technology. A copy of my resume is attached.

I. NRC SITING POLICY

It has been long-stabding NRC policy to require the siting of nuclear power reactors away from densely populated areas. In the event of a serious radiological accident, emergency off-site measures will obviously be far more effective in sparsely populated areas, $\frac{1}{2}$ and this judgment is now quantified in Reg. Guide 4.7: if projected population density within a thirty-mile radius of a potential site exceeds 500 persons per square mile at the time of initial operation or 1,000 persons per square mile at its retirement, then "special attention should be given to the consideration of alternative sites with lower population densitites."

It is apparent that the trip levels contained in Reg. Guide 4.7 serve a very significant function with respect to reactor safety; because some residual risk will remain even after all reasonably attainable safety measures are built into

1/See Statement of Considerations, 10 CFR Part 100, 27 FR
3509 (April 12, 1962); Regulatory Guide 4.7 (November, 1975);
"Commission Action Paper", SECY 78-137 (March 7, 1978).
11.37.256

the design of a proposed nuclear reactor, careful evaluation of the size and distribution of the population surrounding that reactor appears to have emerged as the NRC's primary means of ensuring that the consequences of any accident more severe than design-basis events are mitigated as much as possible, including the siting of the proposed reactor in a less populous area. Population density, therefore, functions as a threshold indicator of residual risk and the potential consequences of the so-called Class 9 accidents, i.e. those beyond the design basis of the reactor. If the trip levels of Reg. Guide 4.7 are exceeded, then "special consideration" should be given to alternative sites, ing'uding (one would assume) a close look at just how each of the candidate sites would fare in the event of a Class 9 accident.

II. POPULATION DENSITIES SURROUNDING THE PILGRIM UNIT 2 SITE

The methodology used by the Staff and the Applicant in determining the Pilgrim 2 population distributions is discussed in detail below, expecially those techniques that tend to understate the final figures and obscure risk potential in the area surrounding the Rocky Point site. As a preliminary matter, however, the results that were reported for 1985 are shown in Figure 1, a chart prepared by the Staff for the 1975 Safety Evaluation Report (SER) which I updated by using data from Table 1 of the 1978 Draft Supplement to the Final Environmental Statement (Draft Supplement). For 40 and 50 miles, the figures were exponentially interpolated from the Prelimary Safety Analysis Report (PSAR), Table 2.1-8.

1137-257

-2-



3.

Figure 2.3 - CUMULATIVE POPULATION DISTRIBUTION

It is noteworthy that beyond ten miles the difference is much smaller between the 500 persons per square mile threshold line and the line plotting the most recent figures than between the recent figures line and the line plotting the earlier SER figures. It is also noteworthy that the 500 person per square mile threshold is reached only a modest distance beyond the 30 mile radius. Furthermore, should the initial year of commercial operation be deferred beyond 1985, the gap between projected population and the Reg. Guide threshold figure would be rag: narrowed, given the UE&C estimated growth rate of nearly 2% per year. $\frac{2}{}$

Turning to the methodology employed in the Draft Supplement, if population density is to be used as an indicator of risk and as virtually the exclusive device for determining whether a Class 9 analysis is warranted as part of the NEPA review, then the work done by the Staff and the Applicant for Pilgrim 2 contains certain assumptions and ommissions that can not help but compromise the reliability of this factor.

A. Daily Recreational Visitors

First, neither the Applicant's 1978 update nor the Staff's Draft Supplement considers daily recreational visitors and tourists in determining population density, and the lines

1137 259

-4-

^{2/}A 2% growth rate is in fact quite rapid: most recent year 2000 projections of Massachusetts population by the U.S. Bureau Census indicate between 0.6% and 0.8% per year statewide growth between 1975-2000 (see U.S. Bureau of the Cersus, "Population Estimates and Projections", Series P-25, no. 796, March 1974.

plotted on the chart at Figure 1 are understated to this extent. Of particular concern are daytrippers to tourist attractions in Plymouth itself; according to Table 2.1-4 of the PSAR, Mayflower II and the waterfront homes attract 400,000 tourists per year, and are only 4.5 miles west of the Rocky Point site, while Plimouth Plantation attracts 250,000 tourists per year and is only 2.5 miles west of the site. Six miles to the soutwest, Myles Standish State Forest attracts 300,000 campers and picnickers per year, and while some double counting clearly is present in the above figures, they all tend to corroborate a Plymouth Chamber of Commerce estimate that nearly one million persons per year currently visit the town.

One million person-days is equivalent to another 2,700 persons year-round on a time-weighted basis, most of those persons being located fewer than five miles from the Rocky Point site. This represents perhaps another 10% increase in the time-weighted population within five miles of the site, with smaller but significant percentage increases at greater distances. Of greater concern, however, is the fact that these people are not evenly distributed throughout the year, but for the most par visit Plymouth during the summer months, with a peak figure of 2,689 persons per day being reported by the Pilgrim Village and 3,400 per day (peak season) being reported by Mayflower II. $\frac{3}{}$

3/From May 14, 1979 conversation with David Case, Director of Plimouth Plantation, Inc.

1137 260

-5-

The weighting methods employed by the Staff in measuring transients will be discussed in more detail below. For purposes of the Plymouth daytrippers, it suffices to note that exceptionally large numbers of people can be expected in close proximity to the site during at least two months of the year, people who already put a severe strain on Plymouth's traffic flow problems and people who will have had no prior instruction in emergency measures and no homes in which to shelter themselves.

B. Time Weighted Population Densities

In arriving at average population densities for the area surrounding the Rocky Point site, the Staff employed weighting factors of 1.0 for permanent residents and 0.25 for seasonal residents. As noted above, daily visitors were not considered at all, because the Staff concluded that when weighted these figures would be negligible (Draft Supplement, Section 3.3.3, pg. 20-21). Perhaps such weighting assumptions would hold true for an area experiencing moderate seasonal fluctuations in population, but when an area is as profoundly effected by tourists and summer residents, as is that surrounding the Rocky Point site, the use of weighted population density as an exclusive threshold indicator of residual risk is highly questionable. To the extent that the licensing process is concerned with the consequences of serious reactor accidents, it is illusory to obscure the crowded conditions that occur every summer in the Plymouth area by averaging the total transient inflow over the course of an entire year. A more realistic approach is suggested below in Section III.

1137 261

-6-

C. Inclusion of the Water Area in Calculating Average Population Densities

The 53 municipalities which are at or less than 30 miles from the Rocky Point site have a projected 1985 population of 981,000 persons winter, 1,395,000 summer and a land area of 1,256 square miles, using the same sources and formulas as used by UC&E. This means a winter density of 780 persons per square mile of land area, a summer density (with summer-only population "discounted" at 100/365) of 870 persons per square mile, and an actual summertime population (seasonal plus year-round) of 1110 persons per square mile. These figures, which were derived by focusing exclusively on land area surrounding the site, are far more revealing than the Staff's in reflecting the actual living density of the area in question and local road capacity for evacuation, shelter or treatment. 4/ As with time weighted population densities, the Staff's methodology arounts to a gamble that certain variables (in this case, wind direction) will minimize consequences of a serious radiological accident. To the extent that population density is used as the NRC's exclusive indicator of peiple at risk, then such an approach appears questionable.

Indeed, even the sectoral analyses proposed below understate real density through inclusion of water areas. The south-southeast sector below Rocky Point has a five-mile density of under 2,000 persons per square mile, but the Priscille Beach-White Horse Beach neighborhood which directly abuts the proposed station has a summertime density of about 20,000 persons per square mile, based on map measurement and PSAR data. That is the density for which shelter, evacuation and other emergency services must be adequate, not the sectoral density of 1,800 persons per square mile, or the timeaveraged 30-mile density of about 400 persons per square mile.

1137 262

4/

-7-

III. MAXIMUM RISK TO POPULATION

When in the site selection process a decision-maker is assessing the comparative risk resulting from a hypothetical major accident, in question of critical concern is what the worst consequences might be at each alternative site. In order to rationally evaluate alternative sites, a decision-maker must be able to assess the most severe consequences which are reasonably likely following an accident at each site, measured by the maximum, not average, number of people who might be exposed to risk. A determination of "average" risk to "average" population, as measured by Regulatory Guide 4.7, fails to capture the variations in population seasonality, density and distribution of unique site characteristics relevant to the inquiry of maximum risk.

At locations having unusual spatial and temporal distributions of population, as is true for the Rocky Point site, cumulative annular average density alone is an inadequate measure of accident consequence, and therefore an inadequate measure of risk. There is no explicit discussion in the Staff's Draft Supplement dealing with comparison between sites regarding the maximum number of persons potentially at risk in the event of a major accident.

A realistic and useful analytic method for evaluating comparative accident risk, in addition to an average density analysis, is to assess the maximum consequences measured by the population at misk. Such a method permits examination of unique site and population characteristics, which are necessary and relevant for an intelligent assessment of accident consequences.

The difference between the "expected value" analysis, which was

1137 263

-8-

done by the Staff, and the maximum risk analysis, which was not, can be illustrated by two hypothetical sites having equal numbers of nearby residents but different spatial configurations, as shown on Figure 2. The "expected value" of population risk is identical in the two cases: the expected value of risk is the product of the number of persons within a prescribed radius and a probability function, both of which are the same for each site. However, in the event of a major accident resulting in a westward plume, the affected population requiring evacuation, shelter, or other protective actions is perhaps seven times higher at Site B than at Site A. Site B can be said to have an unacceptably high number of persons potentially at risk. Only on an "expected value" basis are the two sites equivalent. If the objective of the decision-maker were to minimize maximum potential population at risk, or to avoid exceeding an acceptable threshold of population at risk, Site A is a far superior selection.

٠.

The demographic analysis done to date for the Pilgrim II site selection has measured and compared the time-weighted population summed over all directions, thus analyzing the expected value of population risk. However, study to date omits any explicit comparative analysis of sites regarding maximum risk in the event of a major accident. Because of that omission, studies to date fail to reflect the special site characteristics of the Rocky Point site: in some directions at some times, relative to its average

1137 264

-9-



FIGURE 2. RISK: EXPECTED VERSUS MAXIMUM

65

density, this site exposes a high number of persons to risk. In this regard Rocky Point is more like hypothetical Site B than Site A.

There are two variations from the uniform distribution, assumed in the expected value model, which deserve analysis: temporal and sectoral.

A. Temporal Analysis

Both the PSAR and the Applicant's 1978 Update to the UE&C Siting Study focus on "weighted" seasonal population, appropriate for expected value analysis, but obscuring other critical concerns. For example, the PSAR "discounts" the 1975 peek seasonal population of 25,277 persons within five miles to 4,el8 on a time-weighted basis. However, if an accident were to necessitate a five-mile evacuation in the summertime, there in fact would be 25,300 visitors requiring information, guidance, traffic capacity and shelter, not 4,300.^{*/} The 1978 Update indicates a "weighted" 1985 population within five miles of Rocky Point at 19,300 persons. Similarly, this estimate grossly understates the magnitude of the evacuation task should one be necessitated in the summertime. Decision-makers are provided with no information to allow comparison of these maximum populations with those at other sites.

At ten miles, the issue of temporal variation is similarly obscured. The 1978 Update reports a "weighted" 1985 population of 58,000 within ten miles of Rocky Point. Our analysis of recent projections by the Old Colony Planning Council, Metropolitan Area Planning Council, and Cape Cod Planning and Economic Development

1137 266

-11-

Analysis based upon the 'Pilgrim Station Environmental Report' (ER) as amended through May 20, 1974, suggests that in fact peak 1990 population within five miles may be nearly 63,000 persons.

Commission largely support that figure on a weighted basis (we estimated 61,200 weighted population), but our analysis indicates a summer peak population of 76,800 persons, and this is exclusive of daytrippers. A population of 76,800 within ten miles is more indicative of the true number of persons potentially exposed to risk and the necessity of immediate relocation in the event of a major accident in the summertime.^{±/}On fair weather days, an additional 10,000 persons can be expected to be within this zone of concern bacause of tourist attractions in the Plymouth area: beaches, historic sites, boating, sightseeing.^{5/}The consequence of a summer accident, in fact, would involve half again as many persons as the weighted average suggests.

B. Sectoral Analysis

A sectoral analysis of population around a site permits examination of true population distribution, which is otherwise obscured by calculations of average densities. An assessment of persons and site characteristics located within a radial sector is a highly eelevant consideration to a site evaluation of maximum risk of a major accident.

Population distribution surrounding the Rocky Point Site is extraordinarily uneven by radial sector. This extreme variation in distribution is shown on Table A, which provides cumulative permanent pulation (excluding seasonal residents and daytrippers) by 22.5° sectors (see PSAR, Table 2.1-8). The table demonstrates clearly that some sectors have as much as four times the average (mean) sectoral population. This dramatic variation in population

261

See, PSAR, Table 2.1-4.

5/

-12-

^{*/} Analysis of the Environmental Report indicates a 1990 total of nearly 180,000 persons at peak summer periods.

TABLE A

1990 PERMANENT POPULATION BY SECTOR, 0-30 MILES*

N	0
NNE	0
NE	0
ENE	1,830
E	4,740
ESE	24,050
SE	61,080
SSE	39,615
S	46,387
SSW	33,739
SW	131,131
WSW	96,085
W	142,324
WNW	290,996
NW	328,327
NNW	70,948
Mean	79,453
Total	1,271,250
Standard deviation:	97,591

* PSAR, Table 2.1 - 8

distribution is not narrowly confined to one or two sectors, as indicate. by the sectoral standard deviation of 97,591. Figure 3 illustrates geographically where the sectors of cumulative permanent population occur around the Rocky Point Site.

The following provides an examination of two sectoral regions of special concern to the assessment of maximum risk of a major accident at the Rocky Point Site.

1. The Northwest

The population density of the region northwest of the Rocky Point site is dramatically high. Nearly one half of the cumulative <u>permanent</u> population within 30 miles of the site is concentrated in the two northwesterly sectors (See Table A and Figures 3 and 4). $\frac{6}{}$

The northwest sector alone is projected to have a 1990 population of almost 330,000, and a density (excluding seasonal population and net in-commuting) of 1,858 persons per square mile. $\frac{7}{}$ This average density is nearly quadruple the guideline density of 500 persons per square mile calculated for the date of plant

<u>6</u>/The total cumulative permanent population (excluding seasonal residents and daily transients) for the northwest (NW) and west-northwest (WNW) sectors in 1990, at a radial distance of 30 miles, is estimated to be 619,323. The Applicant has estimated the total cumulative permanent population for all 22.5° sectors at 30 miles to be 1,267,220 in 1990. (See, PSAR, Table 2.1-8). Our independent calculation of these sectors, based on PSAR Table 2.1-8, indicates that the total permanent population is 1,271,250 (See Table A).

1137 269

<u>IPSAR</u>, Table 2.1-8; density calculated by author.

-14-

FIGURE 3:

PERMANENT POPULATION BY SECTOR, 1990



= 10,000 population

1990 Permanent Population, 30 Miles Source: PSAR table 2.1-8



operation.⁸/ In the year 2020, the northwest sectoral density, as projected in the PSAR, increases to 3,737 persons per square mile, or once again almost quadruple the guideline density of 1000 persons per square mile at the assumed end of plant life.

The Staff's application of the annular population density formula does not reveal the true numbers of persons at risk in this sector in the event of a major accident. Employing the staff's calculations, one would have to assume that for each alternative site each sector contains 1/16 of the total population. For Rocky Point, this would seemingly indicate approximately 77,000 persons will be located in the northwest sector in 1985, and approximately 160,000 persons in the sector in 2020.²/ In reality, as noted above, the numbers of persons potentially exposed to the risk of a major accident in this narrow 22.5^o northwest section is far greater than the staff's analysis would suggest. The PSAR indicates that almost 330,000 permanent residents will in fact live in this sector in 1990, increasing to nearly 700,000 persons in 2020. In other words, a major radioactive release under wind

1137 272

2/See Draft Supplement, Table 1; persons per sector at 30 miles calculated by author.

-17-

^{8/}NRC Staff Regulatory Guide 4.7, pp. 4.7-16. A 1990 date is used here for two reasons. First, the Applicant's PSAR population data (the only available source for sectoral analysis) is presented in ten year increments. Second, the NRC staff has indicated most recently that Pilgrim Unit 2 may not be needed until 1989/90. Accordingly, the year 1990 appears to be a reasonable operational date for purposes of demographic analysis.

conditions blowing to the northwest would affect a population as great as that affected at an alternative site having a uniformly distributed population averaging four times as high as that estimated for the Rocky Point site.

The potential exposure of 700,000 persons to hazard in the event of a major accident is clearly a relevant consideration in assessing the comparative risk to population at the Rocky Point site and its alternatives.

-18-

2. The Southeast

Another region of particular concern is that to the southeast of the Rocky Point site. This sectoral area is unique not only because of its population density and high seasonal fluctuations, but also because of its unusual land/water and transportation characteristics. It is within this region, which has the highest summer population, that the major transportation routes south from Rocky Point and from Cape Cod to the mainland converge. This convergence is significant in terms of both assessing total population at risk and the site specific problems associated with evacuation and emergency planning.

At thirty miles, the PSAR indicates a cumulative permanent 1990 population of 61,000 in the 22.5° southeast sector. A majority of this population is concentrated in the mid portion of Cape Cod, which is heavily impacted by population seasonality. The Pilgrim Area Conservation and Development Project data indicates seasonal population more than doubles seasonally in this area. $\frac{10}{}$ These figures translate into a 1990 sectoral density of 850 persons per square mile, or a 2020 sectoral density of 2,000 persons per square mile during the summer season. The consequence of a major summertime accident with a southeasterly wind at Rocky Point, could be to expose to risk a population equal to that which would be affected at a site having a uniformly distributed population density double the guideline densities of 500 and 1,000 persons per square mile.

1137 274

10/See "Applicants Answers to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts' Interrogatories Set No. 4." (September 7, 1978).

-19-

a. Unique Population and Site/Transportation Problems.

Egress configurations and limitations makes the southeast situation in the event of a major accident even more serious than population density suggests. As Figures 4 and 5 illustrate, there are special site circumstances regarding evacuation routes from the vicinity of Rocky Point, especially for population south or southwest of that site. Because of the presence of the Myles Standish State Forest and a vast largely undeveloped area, movement southwesterly through that area is possible only over a rudimentary maze of narrow, winding two-lane roads, many unpaved and discontinuous, all of them poorly marked.

As a consequence, the natural evacuation route for almost the entire population to the southeast, south, or southwest of Rocky Point is Route 3 southward to North Sagamore, then west along Route 6 on the northern border of the Cape Cod Canal (the "Scenic Highway") to Routes 25 and 6 leading west and northwest. A few persons may find and use Herring Pond Road, but that route leads almost unavoidably to the Scenic Highway as well. A few natives may thread their way to Glen Charlie Road in Wareham, Head of the Bay Road in Bourne, or other by-passing routes, but their numbers cannot be large.

Evacuation from Cape Cod, whether voluntary or mandatory, would be via a road system notorious for its <u>present</u> deficiencies. Again, see Figure 5. For a variety of jurisdictional and policy reasons, those deficiencies are likely to only slowly be removed. Most obvious is the limitation that <u>all</u> egressing traffic must use the two Canal bridges of four narrow lanes each.

1137 275

-20-




In the event of either voluntary or mandated evacuation, most Cape evacuees must move closer to the danger source in order to escape. The northern of the two Cape bridges, the Sagamore Bridge, is just over 10 miles from Rocky Point, and for much more than half of the potentially evacuating population from the Cape that is the easier bridge to reach. To avoid that bridge because of either congestion or hazard, only minor roads and a circuitous route are available for most of the affected population.

To estimate emergency road capacities, we have used lane capacities in common planning usage. Under ideal conditions, one lane of limited-access expressway can carry 2,000 vehicles per hour. Narrow unseparated lanes such as those on the Cape Cod Canal bridges or a road shoulder pressed into emergency use can theoretically carry up to 1,500 vehicles per hour. One lane on an ordinary country road is unlikely to carry more than 1,000 vehicles per hour. Three persons per vehicle is double the normally assumed vehicle occupancy, but is close to average household size.

In the event of a 1990 evacuation to 10 miles south of Rocky Point, we estimate a population of over 36,000 persons to be evacuated from the southeast through southwest quadrants. $\frac{11}{}$ Based on an assumption of three persons per vehicle, this means

-22-

<u>11</u>/The estimate of 36,000 for these three sectors is based on PSAR Table 2.1-8 (permanent population), with the percentage increase of seasonal population based on the same percentages shown in Table C. See, PSAR, Table 2.1-2a. Daytrippers are not included. Analysis of the Environmental Report indicates a 1990 peak seasonal total in excess of 50,000 persons.

evacuating 12,000 vehicles over the Scenic Highway plus the back road maze. If two lanes of the Scenic Highway (which varies from 2 to 4 lanes) were reserved for westbound traffic and the Sagamore Bridge were closed to traffic leaving the Cape (in order to reserve Scenic Highway capacity for evacuees), the Scenic Highway would provide capacity for 3,000 vehicles per hour from the ten-mile zone. Another 1,000 vehicles per hour might use back roads. That means a three-hour minimum evacuation time, assuming no breakdowns, expert guidance, and good weather. This evacuation scenario is illustrated by Figure 6.

Meanwhile, there may well be Cape Cod population simulcaneously seeking to leave the Cape. This would be the case if a twenty or thirty mile evacuation were suggested or ordered. Even without official notice, it is reasonable to assume that the Cape transient population would probably need nothing more than the remote threat of trouble to start heading for the bridges, since even rain produces that effect. In other words, it is not unreasonable to assume that persons will seek acess to the mainland from the Cape in the event of a major accident at Rocky Point.

However, giving priority to 10-mile evacuees on the vital Scenic Highway link would limit Cape Cod evacuation to about 100,000 persons with six hours as shown in Table B. Six hours is the maximum time during which access to the bridges and the Scenic Highway can be assured. This evacuation time is based on the assumption that a radioactive plume traveling in a south or southwesterly direction could reach this critical transportation

1137 278

-23-



1137 279

-24-

-25-

TABLE B

Hour*	Hourly capacity	Cumulative total
1	13,500 persons	13,500 persons
2	13,500	27,000
3	13,500	40,500
4	22,500	63,000
5	22,500	85,500
6 Assume Sagamore closed	13,500	99,000
7 Assume Bourne closed	0	99,000

CAPE COD EVACUATION CAPACITY

٠.

99,000

*Hour 0-3: Sagamore Bridge assumed to be closed to Cape population to allow evacuation of 0-10 mile area around Rocky Point (sectors SE, SSE, S, SSSW, SW only). Cape evacuation during this time is assumed only via Bourne Bridge.

*Hours 4-5: Both bridges accessible to Cape population.

network within six hours, most likely causing thereafter the closure of the Scenic Highway and either or both of the Cape Cod Canal bridges. $\frac{12}{}$ See Figure 7.

The 1990 summer-only population of Cape Cod is projected to be about 360,000 persons, in addition to 180,000 year round residents. $\frac{13}{}$ That means that within 6 hours, only a quarter to a third of the tourists could get off the Cape, assuming all the natives stay home or in other shelters.

By similar analysis, it would take eight hours to accomplish a 10-mile evacuation of the 2020 population over that same road network, allowing only 80,000 to escape the Cape within six hours. By 2020, we estimate there will be approximately 680,000 persons within 30 miles of Rocky Point on the Cape in the summer (doubling the relevant PSAR table 2.1-8 sectoral permanent population figures). That means that one person in eight on the Cape could leave the pennisula in the assured time available, given optimal notice. It is easy to imagine that far more than one in eight persons on the Cape will seek immediate access to the mainland even if directed to stay home and seek shelter.

b. Nearby Population-South/Southeast

Maximum risk is of concern not only at the 10 to 30 distances impacting Cape Cod. At much closer range, the maximum risk in the event of accident is also far greater than suggested by average density figures, or by any of the data directly presented in the documentation prepared for or by the Staff.

12/At a rate of travel based upon AEC Staff, "Population Distribution Around Nuclear Power Plant Sites", April 1973, pg. 2. 13/Herr Associates, Development Projections for Cape Cod, for the CCPEDC, April, 1976.

-26-



The peculiar configuration of the Rocky Point site is such that a south-southeast plume trajectory would carry an accidental release along a coastal corridor densely populated in the summertime. PSAR Table 2.1-2a indicates "current" peak seasonal population by sector and out to 5 miles, $\frac{14}{14}$ and when added to PSAR Table 2.1-8 permanent resident data for 1972 gives a fair reflection of early 1970's peak seasonal conditions (see Table C). On that basis, the south-southeast sector alone contained nearly 9,000 persons within 5 miles of the Rocky Point site during early 1970's summers, a density of 1800 persons per square mile, more than triple the 500 persons per square mile guideline of Regulatory Guide 4.7. The fact that this high density is "balanced" by lower densities at other seasons and in other sectors does nothing to diminish the magnitude of the problem of exposure if a major accident occurs at an unfavorable season under unfavorable wind conditions.

As with Cape Cod, the configuration of land, water and roads limit emergency evacuation measures. Based on PSAR data, Priscilla Beach, White Horse Beach and Manomet Heights have a summer resident population of some 7,000 persons; all are within a narrow arc and less than two miles from the Rocky Point site (see Figure 8). Only two narrow two-lane roads provide that population

14/We understand those figures to reflect early 1970's conditions and to be exclusive of year-round residents (Note that in some sectors 1972 "permanent" population from PSAR Table 2.1-8 exceeds "peak seasonal" population from Table 2.1-2a).

-28-

TABLE C

EARLY 1970'S SEASONAL POPULATION BY SECTOR, 0-5 MILES

	Permanent	Peak Seasonal	Total
N	0	0	0
NNE	0	0	0
NE	0	0	0
ENE	0	0	0
E	0	0	0
ESE	0	0	0
SE	1,170	5,728	6,898
SSE	1,593	7,136	8,729
S	190	145	335
SSW	24	155	179
514	285	96	381
WSW	532	215	747
W	3,894	3,49	7,385
WNW	1,575	6,712	8,287
NW	18	994	1,012
NNW	0	605	605
Total	9,281	25,277	34,558

Source: PSAR Tables 2.1-2a and 2.1-8

•

٠.



with egress to Route 3A. Any accident, breakdown or construction obstruction would seriously impair the ability of the network to accommodate emergency demand.

As with the larger area of concern, therefore, the special circumstances of ocean, density patterns and transportation networks within five miles of the site combine in perverse ways. At times, the Rocky Point site could expose far more people to risk than would a site of comparable average density but uniform sectoral and temporal distribution. Further, this problem is compounded by the fact that the areas of highest density proximate to the site have limited evacuation potential.

:

٠.

RESUME OF PHILIP B. HERR

Address:

:

٠.

•

Philip B. Herr & Associates 230 Boyston Street Boston, Massachusetts 02116 (617) 536-5620

PHILIP B. HERR

EDUCATION

- Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Masters in City Planning, J.C. Nichols Fellowship.
- Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, Bachelor of Architecture, Tau Beta Pi, Sigma Xi honoraries, Thesis Prize.

CURRENTLY

:

- Associate Professor of City Planning, M.I.T., Department of Urban Studies and Planning. Courses and research in growth and land use planning, participation, coastal zone management, design, impact analysis.
- Principal, Philip B. Herr and Associates, consultants in land use planning, development regulation, impact analysis, participatory design.
- Member, Revere Beach Design Review Board (appointed by Secretary of Environmental Affairs).

Member, American Society of Planning Officials, Urban Land Institute.

Registered Architect, Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

RESEARCH PARTICIPATION

- Development Impact Assessment, funded by Massachusetts Department of Community Affairs, through Herr Associates, 1975-1976, and Rockefeller Foundation, through M.I.T. Design of methods for local analyses of development consequences. Publication: Evaluating Development Impact, M.I.T. Laboratory for Architecture and Planning, August, 1978.
- Environmental Impact Assessment, funded by Rockefeller Foundation and others through M.I.T. Laboratory for Architecture and Planning, 1976-1978 (with Lawrence Susskind and others). Studies of institutional considerations in assessing comprehensive consequences of infrastructure systems design, case study of coastal zone management.
- Maine Development Strategy, funded by Rockefeller Brothers Foundation and Maine Bureau of Public Lands, through M.I.T. Department of Urbas Studies and Planning, 1974 (with Lloyd Rodwin and others). Design of an approach to utilization of stateowned lands through new organizational approaches. Publication: Economic Development and Resource Conservation: A Strategy for Maine.

PHILIP B. HERR -- Page 2

RESEARCH PARTICIPATION (continued)

- Cambridgeport/Ecologue, funded by U.S. Office of Education, Office of Environmental Education, and others, through M.I.T. Department of Urban Studies and Planning, 1969-1972 (with Stephen Carr and others). Development of innovative methods for enabling community residents to develop neighborhood plans. Publication: article in <u>Progressive Architecture</u>, December, 1976.
- Mobility for the Poor, funded by U.S. Department of HUD, through the M.I.T.-Harvard Joint Center for Urban Studies, 1968-1970 (with Aaron Fleisher). Analysis of travel patterns and disabilities of the poor, and of possible remedies, based on survey data from Boston, Memphis, St. Louis, Milwaukee and Baltimore.

CONSULT ING

:

- Participatory planning and design. Program design and technical assistance for a variety of New England towns and regional planning agencies, including Bourne, Edgartown, Franklin, Gloucester, Oak Bluffs, Rowe, Sharon, Sherborn, Sunderland, and Tisbury, Massachusetts; Hanover, New Hampshire; Cape Cod Planning and Economic Development Commission.
- Innovative development control. Techniques designed have included growth timing (Bourne, Falmouth, Franklin, Greenfield, Sandwich); performance zoning (Clinton, Franklin County, Gay Head, Sandwich); transfer of development rights (TDR) (Sunderland); critical resource zoning (Sherborn, Sunderland); regional land use control (Franklin County, Martha's Vineyard Commission).
- Other development control. Over twenty zoning bylaws and ordinances have been rewritten and adopted, numerous other controls designed and adopted in more incremental fashion.
- Impact analyses. Cape Cod National Seashore (for National Park Service), open space acquisition (for Association for Preservation of Cape Cod), dog track (for Blackstone), PUD (for Natick), resort development (for Franklin County), nuclear power plant (for Franklin County).
- Central area studies. Amherst, Andover, Gloucester, Lexington, Northampton, Salem, among others, in each case utilizing alternatives to conventional federal-aided urban renewal.
- Regional efforts have included "208" Water Quality Management planning for Cape Cod, creation of a regional housing authority and regional building inspection system for Franklin County, model cluster zoning legislation for Cape Cod.

PHILIP B. HERR -- Page 3

JOURNAL PUBLICATIONS

- American Institute of Planners, <u>Planners Notebook</u>, October, 1973, "Performance Zoning: The Small Town of Gay Head, Massachusetts, Tries It", with Kevin Lynch.
- Eno Foundation, <u>Traffic Quarterly</u>, April, 1962, "Timing of Highway Impact".
- Urban Land Institute, <u>Urban Land</u>, February, 1960, "Regional Impact of Highways".
- Extensive descriptions of Herr's community work have appeared in <u>Progressive Architecture</u>, November and December, 1976; Journal of the American Institute of Planners, January, 1975; The Land <u>Use Controversy in Massachusetts</u> (L. Susskind, Ed., 1975); <u>Performance Standards: A Technique for Controlling Land Use</u>, <u>Oregon State University Extension Service</u>.

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE

:

- Chairman, Planning Subcommittee, Governor's Task Force on Coastal Resources.
- Member, Steering Committee, Coastal Zone Management Program.
- Director of Planning (subsequently, President), Economic Development Associates, Inc.
- Research Associate, Greater Boston Economic Study Committee.

Consulting Associate, Adams, Howard and Greeley.

Planner, City of Berkeley, California.

- Instructor, Boston University, Wentworth Institute, Boston Architectural Center.
- Architectural draftsman/designer, George W.W. Brewster, Warren C. Obes.

POOR ORIGINAL

11,613

	1	
mpb1	1	MR. WRIGHT: The other point, if I may, sir, is
	2	that Prof. Harr will have additional costimony as to evacua-
	3	tion
	4	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yes, you said that.
	3	MR. WRIGHT: that will be filed whenever the
	G	date is. There will be considerably more bestimony.
	7	CHAIRMAN GOODWOPE: All right.
	3	(The Board conferring,)
	9	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPS: Go shead. Are you through
	50	with Mr. Herr?
	\$1	MR. WRIGHT: Well, there as one more matter,
	12	Mr. Chairman. I hate to take up any more of your time, but
	13	if we are going to strip out, as it ware, that portion of
	14	Mr. Herr's testimony that reflects on evacuability, I would
	15	point out that Mr. Lewald's characterization of from 20 on
	26	is not quite accurate.
	17	If you will look at, lat's sea, page 20, 21, 22,
	18	23, 24, 25 and most of 26, they involve to a large extent a
	19	discussion of the Cape Cod and evacuation problems. However
	20	when we get to the bottom of page 25 there is a section
	21	entitled Nearby Population South-Southeast. And Well, of
	22	course, 27 is a figure which relates to the earlier testimony
	23	so that doesn't count. We're talking about the bottom of
	24	page 26 and then from 28 on is all testimony going to popula-
	25	tion densities in that particular sector, that south-southeast
	i	
	1	1157 271

:

٠.

11,614

	,	POOR ORIGINAL
mpb2		sector.
	*	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: To the end?
	3	MR. WRIGHT: To the and.
	4	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right. That will be
	5	received, then, also, as you just described it, as a part of
	6	your alternate site presentation,
	7	MR. WRIGHT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
	3	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman.
	9	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yes.
	10	MR. SMITH: Just for clarification, if I redd
	11	read those pages we're starting on page 28. Mr. Wright
	12	said?
	13	MR. WRIGHT: Yes no. starting at page 26.
	14	the bottom of page 26. Nearby Population Centers.
	13	MR. SMITH: Right.
	18	As I read the castimony that procedes the last
	17.	septence and paragraph on page 31. it really does not inve to
	19	Tolate to everyation
	19	MR. WRIGHT: The last - would you repeat that,
	20	please?
	21	MR. SMITH: The last full sentence on page 31,
	22	beginning with "Any accident " and then the last paragraph.
	23	My reading of that is that the preceding
	24	testimony was to demonstrate the problems with evacuation
	25	planning. I don't want to belabor the point, but
		1137 292
	1	

:

٠.

POOR ORIGINAL

.

11,615

1 CHALRMAN GOODHOPE: You're talking about that mpb3 2 first full paragraph on page 31? 3 MR, SMITH: The first full sentence, beginning 4 with "Any accident " 5 MR. WRIGHT: In other words, Mr. hairman, all of 3 this the on B ralates to population figures within the 7 south-southeast sector except for this one sentance: 3 "Any accidant, breakdown or construction Э obstruction would seriously impair the ability 10 of the network to accomodate emergency demand." 11 And then this last paragraph I think is more a 12 summation. 13 CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: Yas. 14 I'm not going to go through this thing -- we're not going through this thing sentence by sentance. I think 15 the ruling is clear. 16 We will proceed on the basis of that. 17 13 BY MR. WRIGHS: Mr. Herr, would you please summarize your testi-:9 0 20 mony as it is contained in this statement with the exception of the material related to evacuation of the Cape? 21 First we reviewed the d raphic projections 22 A which had been submitted by the Staff and we found that while 23 they are not above the trip densitios of Regulatory Guide 4.7, 24 that they are in fact not that far from them when one looks at 25 1137 293

1137 294

mpb4

-

10.

the antire range of annular distances from zero to 30 miles. But that there were, as has just been discussed, special circumstances at this site which raised concerns regarding what those density numbers really meant in drawing conclusions about this site vis-a-vis other sites regarding the proximity of the population and the consequence of that for population at risk.

POOR ORIGINAL

david flws

POOR ORIGINAL

11,617

i At this site, the population at misk, as I 4david 2 understand th term to be defined -- that is persons for davidl 3 whom protective actions would, in the event of an incident, take 10 4 be taken -- that population of risk is highly sensitive to wind fls mpb 5 and highly sensitive to season. 8 If the wind direction were fortunate, the population 7 at risk would be very very small, conceivably zero, in light 8 of the coastal location of the site. 9 If the wind direction is unfortunate, the population 10 at risk would be much higher than that which would be at: 11 risk at a population of the same average density, but with that density uniformly distributed throughout the site. 12 The degree to which this factor varies from sector 13 to sector in the numbers of persons is unusual in relation 14 to other sites. 15 That is compounded with anoher varaition; in 16 this case, not a variation, but a variation over time, and 17 the population potentially at risk is a function of whether 18 an incident should occur in the summer season or winter 19 season. 20 What that means is that at this site, because of 21 those peculiarities of sectoral distribution and temporal 22 distribution, that the consequence of an accident could be 23 of larger magnitude than the consequence might be at another 24 site with a more even distributed population. 25 1137 295

POOR ORIGINAL

11,618

For an asymmetric site, for example, the magnitude of effort which is potentially required in an emergency action is larger because there's a larger number of persons to be provided with prophylaxis, provided with sheltering than would be the case, given a more uniform distribution.

7 That represents not only a cost in the event of 8 an accident, it represents a cost even without an accident, 9 since it represents a cost in terms of an unnecessary level 10 of population -- more than that, it raises questions such as, for example, the relationship between the absolute limit 11 on the scale of insurance coverage, and the absolute 12 population which might be placed at risk, and therefore 13 potentially drawing on that insurance coverage. 14

For a site of more -- that number, that relationship would be far different than the relationship with this highly asymmetric site where the population potentially at risk is very large as compared to the total population within 30 miles.

More than that --

MR. LEWALD: I'm going to object to this. I thought the witness was summarizing what his written testimony way. He's arguing a point have which only sees smatterings of anything in his written testimony.

I don't see anything in his testimony about 296

david2

20

21

22

23

24

11,619

POOR ORIGINAL

avid3	1	insurance, for instance.
	2	I'd like to object to this and have the witness
	3	instructed as to what the procedure is.
	4	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Just state brisily what
	3	your testimoay is.
	3	THE WITNESS: I guess the final point fire to
	7	the truncated portion is simply that in the case of a highly
	3	asymmetric sits what we are discussing is the possibility of
	9	an absolute level of loss which is relatively high. I make the
	10	distinction between the expected value type of probabilistic
	11	analysis which was made and the consideration what that
	12	maximum population at risk might be and what that might
	13	translate into in terms of death and injury. And make the point
	14	that two small accidents are not the same as one larger accident.
	1=	I make the point that, in fact, there is evidence in our society
	16	and there is evidence, in fact, in statements before this
	17	commission that there is a societal eaversion to large-scale
Aux	18	accidents, even when and in terms of expected value they
	19	are of comparable expected value. On that basis, we argue
	20	that in fact, one of the pieces of information that should
	21	be available to a decision maker is that degree to which a
	22	maximum level of population and risk night differ between
	23	sites. We don't have that information regarding alternative
:	24	sites here. We didn't have available to us the information
	25	necessary in order to do that.
	-	112,

đ

:

٠.

		11,620
datid4	1	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Are you talking about
-	2	evacuation, now?
	3	THE WITNESS: No, sir, just talking bout numbers of
	4	persons potentially at risk between sites.
	5	
	6	
•	7	
	8	
	9	
	10	
	11	
	12	
	13	귀엽 사실을 얻는 것은 것을 알았는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 수 있는 것을 수 있는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 수 있는 것을 하는 것을 수 있는 것을 하는 것을 하는 것을 수 있는 것을 것을 수 있는 것을 것을 수 있는 것을 것을 것을 것을 것을 수 있는 것을
	14	같은 사람이 가 있는 것은 것은 것은 것은 것이 있는 것을 가지 않는 것을 하는 것을 했다. 같은 사람이 있는 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것을 알려졌다. 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것은 것을 알려졌다. 것은 것을 같은 것은
•	15	
	16	
	17	
•	18	
:	19	
	20	
	21	
61	22	
	23	
	24	
	20	137 298
	11	1 1

		POOR ORIGINAI 11,621
a.	1	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: And it might go on because of
lavid5	2	the diffused characteristics of the situation, that the
	3	risk of increase is higher because of the inability to
	4	evacuate.
	5	THE WITNESS: Iss, sir, that's what we were
	3	to discuss.
	7	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: That's from page 20 on?
	з	THE WITNESS: That's correct.
	9	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right.
	10	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I have some voir dire.
	11	MR. LEWALD: I will defer to Mr. Smith's voir
	12	dire.
	13	CHRIAMAN GOODHOPE: Have you finished direct?
	14	MR. WAIGHT: Yes.
	15	VOIR DIRE ELAMINATION
•	16	BY MR. SMITH:
	17	Q Professor Herr, tell me what academic coursework
	18	you've taken at the undergraduate or graduate level in the
	19	design of commercial nuclear power plants?
	20	A I've taken no coursework with respect to conmercial
	21	nuclear power plants.
	22	Q yYou've never had any academic coursework in
	23	determining biological effects of radiation?
	24	A No, sir.
	25	Q Have you had any academic coursework in
		1137 299
	1	

diffusion	or meteorology?	
	Have you had any experience in that?	
A	No, sir.	

 1	-	 	100
 a	-	~	£h.

h

3 4

5

6

7

8

1

2

Q

0

Have you studied any scientific treatises with regard to commercial nuclear power plants?

That's hard -- I reviewed a great deal of material with respect to nuclear power plants in recent months, but I've certainly not -- the gist of your question -- it's not my area of expertise.

9 10

11

14

18

What is your area of expertise?

My training, my practice, and my teaching are in the A area of urban planning, including, among other things, the 12 demography, including among other things, the transportation, 13 and including among other things, decision analysis.

Have you performed any dose calculations to Q 15 determine the amount of radioactive materials a person would 16 have to be exposed to during a release to the environment 17 from a nuclear power plant?

MR. WRIGHT: Objection. My grounds for objection, 19 Mr. Chairman, the doctor's testimony does not go to anything 20 other than the demography of the situation down on the Cape 21 and the immediate area and the analysis that must be done of those 22 population figures in order to make the determination 23 as to that.

MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I would state that --

MR. WRIGHT: There is nothing in his testimony that

1137 300

25

11,623

	1	refers to dose levels or anything of that nature.
vid7	2	He does not attempt to quantify what dose
	3	someone is going to receive in the event of an accident: -
	4	he's concerned only with population distribution and how
	5	those figures should be treated.
	6	MR. SMITH: I restate and I was going to, after
	7	my voir dire, make a motion to strike because I believe
	8	that Professor Herr constantly refers to consequences of
	9	an accident.
	10	And if he has not the expertise to tell us what
	11	those consequences should be, I think that should be
	12	stricken.
	13	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Objection overruled. What's
	14	the answer?
	15	THE WITNESS: No, sir I've forgotten the question.
*	16	BY MR. SMITH:
	17	Q Have you had any coursework or experience in
	18	radiation protection?
	19	A No, sir.
	20	Q Have you had any experience strike that.
	21	In your resume attached to your testimony and I'm
	22	trying to find the exact reference you let's see if
	23	it's still in here.
	24	I believe you mention schewhere you've done work on
	25	nuclear power plant yes impact analysis on nuclear
		115/ 501

nnai

.

-

		11,624
d	1	power plants for Franklin County. PUUK UKIGINAL
avida		Is that what you have done under impact analysis?
	3	A Yes, sir, that's correct.
	4	Q Could you elaborate what that involved?
	5	A That involved studies made for the Franklin
	\$	County Planning Department regarding the demographic
	7	and acconomic and other social consequences of a potential
	8	nuclear station.
	9	0 Did you do any aggident appinging
		a No siz
~ *	11	
	12	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to move to strike
	13	certain portions of this testimony based on the fact that
	14	Professor Herr doesn't have the qualifications to address
		consequences of nuclear accidents.
•	15	I take specifically from page 8, the second
	16	full paragraph, first setence I move to be stricken.
	17	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Hold on a second.
	18	MR. SMITH: Let me check the
	13	MR. CLEETCN: That's not in the new document.
	20	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Starting out at location
	21	MR. SMITH: Ms. I'm sorry: I'll have to look at the
	22	new. That would be the second paragraph the first contact the
	23	there. In fact. I would strike the whole percents
	24	to strike it.
	25	
		CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Anything else?
		1137 302

:

•

•

POOR ORIGINAL 11,625
MR. SMITH: Yes, sir: page 12 I'll have to cross-
cneck now.
Page 12, the last sentence before section B.
MR. W. GHT: What is the sentence?
MR. SMITH: "The consequence of a summer accident,
in fact"
Page 17, the last sentence, beginning with "In other
words," and going over to page 18, and all the testimony on
page 18.
CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Just that first sentence
starting at the bottom of page 17?
MR. SMITH: Right, and going over to 18 and
all of the testimony on 18.
It appears to me to be talking about consequences
of accidents.
And page 28
MR. WRIGHT: What?
MR. SMITH: 28.
CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: 20?
MR. SMITH: 28. Near the I believe it's the
last sentence in the first paragraph, beginning with "The

fact that this high density," and to the end of that sentence.

the expertise on accident analysis and also under meteorological.

I move to strike that based on the fact that, again -- on

conditions.

e

71d9

f	1	POOR ORIGINAL I think thatin doing this, I've I hope I've
	2	found most places where Professor Herr talks about accident
lavid10	3	consequences.
	4	If I haven't, I would just like a ruling on whether
	5	this witness is qualified to address accident consequences.
	6	MR. WRIGHT: If I may be heard, Mr. Chairman.
	7	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yes.
	8	MR. WRIGHT: As Mr. Smith read off these various
	9	statements and sentences, I looked at them briefly; I
	10	haven't had a chance to look at all of them closely, but
	11	my impression is that in every one of these instances, all
	12	Professor Herr does is say, "Assuming that we have an accident,
	13	this will happen to the population."
	14	In other words, his focus is only on the population
	15	and the problems that are associated with a particular sector.
1	16	He's not concerned with radiological consequences or anything
	17	like that.
	18	He's only talking about an event, that once you
	19	assume it, it's going to have certain consequences for those
	20	people, based not on the dosage they received or anything
	21	like that, but the sheer numbers alone, or road capacity.
	22	As I say, I didn't get a chance to look at these
	23	closely as we went through, but in any event, I don't think
	24	Dr. Harr at any point attempts to attempts to actuall
	25	assess the amount of dosage that an individual is going to
		1137 304
	1	

:

•..

,

:

11,627

receive.

1

2

3

4

5

7

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

POOR ORIGINAL

lavid11

He's only been asked to assume that a reactor accident occurs, and asked --

> CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: And there is exposure involved. MR. WRIGHT: And there is some form of exposure

involved. 6

And he's only been asked to discuss the population that is found in a particular sector. I think 8 that is the case with every one of these items, and I 9 think it's really -- well, for example, let's look at page 12, the sentence that Mr. Smith wants to take out: "The consequences of a summer accident would, in fact, involve half as many people as the weighted average suggests."

All he's talking about here, obviously, is a comparison of a peak figure for the weighted average that has been defended today and yesterday by Mr. Kantor and Mr. Soffer.

That's the cruz of his discussion here. We're not talking about anything other than how he handled people; how do you -- do you weight them or are you more concerned with the absolute peak numbers that are present on any given day?

And the mere fact that the word "consequence" is in there seems to me is really straining this.

MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, I would think the other

1137 305

g

1 areas I've asked -- moved t- strike, I think would go beyond 2 the recitation of the words "accident consequence," and also, david12 3 again, on page 28 I forgot to move to strike the first 4 sentence -- on page 28, which deals with plume trajectory 5 and carrying an accidental release. 6 I think this demonstrates that Professor Herr is 7 talking about consequences, and I don't know how Mr. Wright 3 can make the statement that the consengueces don't matter in 9 his evaluation. 10 I think it's part of his evaluation. 11 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I don't think he said quite 12 that. 13 DR. COLE: You're talking about the first sentence 14 on page 28? 15 MR. SMITH: Yes. 16 DR. COLE: All he says is that the trajectory would 17 carry an accidental release along the coastal corridor. 18 That doesn't talk about consequences, does it? 19 MR. SMITH: No, it talks about -- I assume he's 20 talking about meteorology there. I don't think he has --21 DR. COLE: He just identifies the plume as a 22 soth-southeast plume, which is just direction. 23 MR. SMITH: Well --24 DR. COLZ: I think the same applies to all the 25 others; pages 8, 12, 17 and 18. He is not really talking

h

1137 306

11,628

POOR ORIGINAL

11,630

T11 ant1 MELTZER	1 MR. SMITH: We are not talking about
	2 DR. COLE: We are not really talking about the
	3 consequences of it. He is talking about people that would be
	4 affected by whatever this happened, without saying what the
	5 "whatever" is.
	6 MR. SMITH: Well if that's the view, would the
	7 Board agree that he doesn't have the expertise to talk about
	8 it, the consequences?
	9 DR. COLE: The "whatever."
	O MR. SMITH: Yes.
	MR. WRIGHT: I don't think that's it.
1	2 Are you asking for a ru. 117? He hasn't said
1	3 anything to that effect yet.
1	4 MR. SMITH: He has it in his testimony.
. 1	5 CHAIRMAN GOOD OPE: Well, it gets down to the
1	guestion of what weight are we going to give these statements.
1	7 (Board conferring)
1	8 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I have to agree, he is not
,	qualified in a number of these fields to assess these risks.
2	As we read his testimony he is assuming that there
2	is some type of exposure in these areas. And assuming that he
2	2 is talking about the number of people who will be involved in
2	3 that exposure.
2	Is that an accurate statement, Mr. Wright?
2	5 MR. WRIGHT: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
	1137 308

:

,-

	1
	POOR ORIGINAL 11,631
mm.2 1	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: With the: understanding, I'll
2	overrule the objection.
3	MR. CLEETON: Mr. Chairman, Mr. SMith said "and
4	other unspecified portions of his testimony for which he has
5	no expertise."
6	Is that also overraled?
7	CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: 1 don't know what
8	MR. CLEETON: He said, "and other unspecified
· 9	portions of his testimony."
10	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: We overruled the objection.
11	MR. CLEETON: Okay.
12	DR. COLE: Mr. Smith will have to be a little more
13	specific than that.
14	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: We overruled the whole objection.
. 15	MR. CLEETCN: Thank you.
16	CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: Are you going to proceed with
17	cross, Mr. Smith?
13	MR. SMITH: I believe it is the Applicant's
19	CHAIRMAN GOCDHOPE: Are you finished with your
20	voir dire?
21	MR. SMITH: Yes, I am, sir.
22	CPCSS-EXAMINATION
23	BY MR. LEWALD:
24	Q Professor Herr, would you adopt what the Chairman
25	has said as a fair statement of your testimony, that the
-	
	1137 309

٠.

.

POOR ORIGINAL

mm 3

۰.

11,632

1	population here in the vicinity of the Pilgrim plant, in the
2	event of an incident, will have some type of exposure, or
3	be affected by some type of exposure that you don't know the
4	severity of which, or you don't know the severity of which or
5	suggest the means to either avoid or protect the individuals
6	from such exposure?
7	A Yes, I think that's fair.
8	Q Then you would have no idea, would you sir, whether
9	or not a segment of the population ought to be sheltered or
10	evacuated from the scene.
11	Is that true?
12	A Yes, I think it is fair to say that I'm not an
13	expert on choice of emergency strategy.
14	Q You are not an expert as to any of the methods
15	that might be employed, if any, in the light of a nuclear
16	incident either?
17	A Yes, I think that's fair. That's correct. That's
18	not my expartise.
19	2 And to the extent that your testimony might indicate
20	that you are recommending or suggesting some responses to a
21	hypothesized nuclear incident, we should disregard that
22	testimony?
23	A I think it would be too bad to disregard it, if
24	other pieces of the discussion before this Board either now or
25	later were to suggest that they became jermane.
	1137 310

POOR ORIGINAL 11,633

1	I clearly am not an expert at whether evacuation
2	should or should not take place at some distance from the
3	site. But I think that hardly suggests that the demographic
4	analysis which we have done ought to be disregarded because
5	I can't make the case for why we should evacuate at 10 miles
6	or 20 miles or whatever that distance might be.
7	Q Well, if I heard your prior statements correctly,
8	you are not pretending to be an expart as to say wheth a
9	evacuation should take place at any place.
10	Isn't that correct?
11	A That's correct.
12	Q Irrespective of whether it is one or thirty miles
13	from the site?
14	A That's correct.
15	Q And the same thing would apply to shelter, would
16	it not?
7	A That's correct.
8	2 And the same would apply to any prophylactic that
19	might be used as against radiation protection, or for radiation
20	protection?
	A (Nodding affirmatively)
2	CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: Did you ansewr the question?
3	THE WI TNESS: I said yes that's correct.
4	BY MR. LEWALD:
5	Q Can we sum this up, Doctor, and say that you have
	1137 311
1	

mm 4

•

H

•		11,634
m5	1	no expertise as to what the population at risk is in relation
	2	to Pilgrim Nuclear Unit No. 2?
	3	A Not as I understand the term "population at risk"
	4	to be defined.
	5	My understanding of population at risk is that
	6	population for which some protective measures might, in the
	7	event of an incident, be called for And I would not say that
	8	I know nothing about that.
	9	Q Have you ever done any work in connection with a
	10	muclear facility?
	11	I mean any work of any nature except what you are
	12	presently doing with regard tothis facility in developing
	13	your testimony?
	14	A Yes, sir.
*	15	As I testified earlier, I did do consulting for
	16	the Franklin County Planning Department regarding the
	17	proposed Montague station.
	18	Q And was this in the area of exposure of population?
	19	A It has been a while since that work was done. I
	20	don't recall any work on that with respect to exposure of
	21	population.
	22	Q Did you present I didn't mean to cut you off.
	23	Ware youthrough?
	24	A (Nodding)
	25	Q Did you present any testimony with respect to the
		1137 312

のたちのです

I

		POUR URIGINAL 1.635
m6	1	Montague plant either in this State or before any federal
	2	agency or regulatory body?
	3	A No, sir.
	4	Q Now, in reference to your present testimony which
	5	you have filed here, was this testimony prepared entirely by
	6	1002
	7	A The testimony was prepared entiroly under
	8	my supervision.
	9	Other individuals assisted with both the analysis
	10	and the klanguage drafting.
	11	Q And were these individuals under your supervision
	12	within your firm, Herr Associates?
	13	A Some individuals were within my firm, Herr Associates.
	14	Yes.
	15	Q And I take it from your answer that some were not?
	16	A Yes, sir.
	17	Q Can you identify the people that were not?
	18	A. Certainly.
	19	This was developed how can I say in
	20	consultation with the Massachusetts Attorney General's Office.
	21	Qq Do you have the names of the people that you
	22	consulted with in the Attorney General's Office?
	23	A I presume it is appropriate. The three people that
	24	are nave, Frank Wright, Laurie Burt and Michael Bernstein are
	25	the three individueis who hal have had the most contact with.
	1.8	

mm 7

11,636

Q And this represents the entirety, at least, does
 it of the outside people -- and by outside I mean people outside
 of your business associates -- that contributed to this
 testimony?

5 A I have discussed this topic since the time that 6 we began our work on it with quite a large array of people, 7 many of whom have in fact contributed to my understanding 8 of the issues involved, some of whom are neither in my employ 9 or work for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, but are simply 10 colleagues at MIT. I would the y chiefly -- I guess that's the 11 only other set I can think of, some of my colleagues at MIT.

12 Q Well you are not in the habit, are you sir, of 13 going around testifying as to what Nuclear Regulatory 14 Commission regulations mean, and how they should be 15 interpreted, are you?

16 A Once again, this is the only time that I've 17 testified in a proceeding of this sort.

13 Q And do you feel yourself qualified, sir, to 19 interpret the regulations of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission 20 and certain of the guidelines of its Regulatory Staff?

A No, I don't feel myself qualified to interpret their regulations.

Q But you did so anyway?

23

24

25

A I wasn't aware that I had done so. I may have inadvertently done so.

The state of the s

11,637

mm 8	1	Q You don't consider that the testimony you have
	2	filed here in this proceeding in any way interprets Commission
	3	regulations and guidelines of the Regulatory Staff?
	4	A My understanding was that whit we were doing, what
	5	I was doing, was being done under my supervision, was the
	6	preparation of testimony under under those regulations and
	7	regulatory guidas as I understood them.
	8	Now I had to interpret them, I gusss, in order
	S	to understand what testimony was or was not appropriate. But
	10	it certainly was the only interpretation which I had to
	11	do was such interpretation as is necessary in order to prepare
	12	my mestimony.
	13	Q So I take it you were supervising Ms. Burt and
	14	Mr. Wright and the other gentleman in preparing this aspect
÷.,	15	of your testimony that dealt with Commission regulations?
	16	A I'm sorry, sir. Could you be more specific as to
	17	where it is that my testimony bears on Commission regulations?
	18	Q Do you have difficulty with the question I put to
	19	you, sir?
	20	MR. WRIGHT: I object, sir.
	21	EV MR. LE WALD:
	22	Q If you don't understand it, I'll endeavor to restate
1	23	it. But if you do understand it, I'll ask thatyou answer
	24	the question.
;	25	A Yes, I have difficulty understanding the question.
		1137 315
	1	

mm9

11,638

1 Is it your testimony that you supervised the work Q 2 of Mr. Wright, Ms. Burt and the other gentleman from the U.S. 3 Attorney's office in conjunction with the policy and regulation 4 and guidelines of the Commission and their interretation? 5 MR. WRIGHT: I object to that, Mr. Chairman. 6 He never testified to that effect. CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All he has to do is say no, then. 7 He is being asked right now. 8 THE WITNESS: Then I'll say no. 9 All of the testimony presented was prepared under 10 my supervision. I consider it all my own testimony. I don't 11 consider it interpretation of regulations though. That may be 12 where my understanding of what it is that I have done is 13 deficient. 14 BY MR. LEWALD: 15 0 Can we tu n to the first page of your testimony 16 and, the first sentence after your name and address, under the 17 caption, NRC Siting Policy. 18 You do make the statement, do you not, that it 19 has been longstanding NRC policy to require the siting of 20 nuclear power reactors away from densely populated areas? 21 That's correct. A 22 nd do you consider this an interpretation of NRC Q 23 policy, or io you not? 24 It is an observation on practice. A 25 1137 316

-10 .	POOR ORIGINAL 11,639
10 1	Q And was this something that you supervised the
2	introduction into your testimony?
3	A It's an observation which I made based on reading,
4	among other things, a document prepared by Mr. Bunch examining
5	the I don't recall its titls, Demography Surrounding Nuclear
8	Stations, which in a very concise way recaniculates the history
7	of NRC actions with respect to siting
8	This we accions with respect to sterny.
9	This was an understanding which I came to from readin
10	that as well as other materials.
	Q Now, could you tell us what the mechanics were of
	putting your testimony together?
12	Was it drafted initially by you then reviewed by
13	other people? Or, did you review drafts of other puple?
14	Could you tell us just how that was put together?
15	A Testimony went through a number of drafts. It
16	was initially drafted, I believe, in its entirety 1, me with
17	possible exception of one piece which may have been done by a
18	person in my office; it escapes my memory at this point.
19	Those drafts were then reviewed by the people who
20	I praviously mentioned in the Magazehugatte Atterney Generally
21	office
22	office.
22	And subsequent to their review, critical comments,
	they were then rewritten.
24	Q Were you sought out by someone to give testimony in
25	this proceeding, or did you volunteer?
)	115/ 51/

mm111

17

25

A

No, sir, I was sought out.

2 Q And were the parameters of your testimony outlined 3 in any way during this discussion during which you were sought 4 out?

5 A The only discussion which I recall had to do with 6 the qualifications which I had for assessing the demography and 7 other characteristics, transportation characteristics of the 8 environs. And there was nothing discussed beyond that.

9 Q The Pilgrim facility wasn't discussed, Southeastern
 10 Massachusetts wasn't discussed?

A Certainly we discussed the purpose for which I was doing the analysis, which was the Pilgrim facility. But the desirability on it was not discussed, my position on it was not discussed.

15 Q Did someone give you an outline of what your 16 testimony was expected to be?

A No, sir.

MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, I object to this line
of questioning. I held off for a number of these questions.
I think at this point that Mr. Lewald is getting far too far
afield, and I object also to the tenor of the questions as
well.

23 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: It is still appropriate cross-24 examination.

Overruled.

	11,041
mm12 1	MR. LEWALD: May I have the question read back,
2	please?
3	(Whereupon the reporter read from the record as
4	requested)
5	BY MR. LEWALD: POUR URIGINAL
5	Q Was there any discussion by anyone what your
7	testimony was expected to be?
8	A I'm sorry, I think the answer is the same. Yes, sir.
5	Q No
10	A What was discussed were the topical areas which I
11	was to address.
12	Q And what ware the topical areas which you were
13	suggested to address.
14	A The topical areas which I was, to address were
15	the demography and special site circumstances in that location.
16	Q I'm having trouble hearing you, sir.
17	The second one was what?
18	A Special site circumstances at that location.
19	Q Was there any discussion about radiation exposure?
20	A There may have been some discussion about radiation
21	exposure in the course of conversation, but not central to what
22	I was doing.
23	Q Were you asked to address strike that.
24	Were you asked to address nuclear regulatory
25	regulations and Staff guidelines in your testimony?
	1137 319

1137 319

Contraction of the local division of the loc

.

POOR URIGINAL 11,642

101

3	1	A No, sir.
	2	Q You just did this on your own?
	3	A I guess it is fair to say yes, in order to provide
	4	a context for the demographic analysis which I was presenting.
	5	It seemed appropriate to try to put together a document
	6	which stood alone.
	7	Q Even though you admit that the context that you
	8	are providing is an area that you know nothing about?
	3	A Once again I think what I suggested earlier was
	10	not that I know nothing about it, but that I'm not an expert
	11	at issues of dose levels, expert at meteorology, or for that
	12	matter, an attorney expert at law.
	13	I don't think I had to be any of those things in
	14	order to observe that NRC policy has been, for example, to
	15	require siting away from densely populated areas, or the
	16	other contextual comments which are included,
	17	Q Have you read Staff's Regulatory Guides 4.2, 4.7?
	18	A I have read them in germane part. 4.2, I don't think
	19	I have read in its entirety. 4 7, I baliave I have.
	20	2 Do you know what 4.2 is about?
	21	A As I recall, 4.2 deals with emergency planning
	22	Q Have you ever read regulation or Part 100 of 10 CFR?
	23	That's the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 10.
	24	A Once again I read it in germane parts.
	23	I may, in fact, have read all of that, being
	-	.127 320 1

mm13

		11,643						
m.' 4	1	relatively short. I have read at it. I may well have read						
	2	all of it. I certainly would those parts which bore, as I						
	3	understood it, on the testimony I was preparing.						
	4	Q Is it your view that you have a working knowledge						
	5	of these, of part 100 and also the regulatory guides that I						
	5	referred to earlier?						
	7	A Sufficient to prepare the testimony which I prepared,						
	8	yes.						
	9	Could you describe the differences between Division						
	10	1 Regulatory Guides, and Division 4 Regulatory Guides?						
	11	A I'm sorry, between						
	12	Q Division 1 Regulatory Guides and Division 4?						
	13	A No, sir, I could not.						
	14	Q You couldn't?						
	15	A Vo.						
	16	Q Is it your position, Doctor, that the Pilgrim						
	17	facility, Pilgrin 2, doesn't satisfy the Commission's regulations						
	18	and Staff's regulatory guides, or that the regulatory guides						
	19	and regulations aren't sufficient?						
	20	A I have made no judgment about that.						
	21	I was never asked tomake an assessment of Pilgrim 2.						
	22	Q In that respect?						
	23	A Yes, in that respect. DOOD ODICINIAL						
	24	Q Do you have an opinion? YUUN UNUIWAL						
	25	A No, sir.						
		113/ 521						

		L1,644	
mm15	1	Q Do you have an opinion on whether or not Pilgrim 2	
	2	has satisfied Commission regulations with respect to alternate	
	3	sites, and also the Staff's guidelines with respect to ilternate	
	4	Sites? POOR ORIGINAL	
	53	A The Pilgrim 2 analysis, whether the studies of	
	6	Pilgrim 2 sites	
	7	Q If I have made that too cryptic, yes. Pilgrin 2	
	8	analysis both by the Applicant and the Staff.	
	9	A I have not formed a judgment regarding I think I	
	10	am not competent to form a judgment regarding the letter of the	
	11	regulation and the law.	
	12	What I do testify is that the substance of what has	
	13	been done is in my view inadequate to allow an assessment of	
	14	all the important considerations in ascessing one site versus	
	15	others because of the omissions which vs have commended upon.	
	15	Q And do these omissions or failures stem from the	
	17	regulatory guides, or from the action of the Applicant and the	
	18	Staff?	
	19	A In my layman's reading of the regulations and the	
	20	regulatory guides, I see nothing in them which would provent	
	21	the Staff from doing an analysis which would fully satisfy the	
	22	information requirements to make a responsible choice along	
	23	sites.	
	24	So that there is no block in the nature of the	
	25	regulatory guides and regulations as I understand them, which	
		1137 322	

mm16 1 would prevent that full analysis. 2 But again, I'm not an attorney and that's my lay 3 understanding of those materials. 4 Your position is that there is no inhibition in 0 5 the regulatory guides that would prevent either the Applicant 5 or the Staff from going ahead and doin oothar things? 7 A That's correct. Would you tell us whether there is any requirement 3 Q in the regulatory guides to do these things that either the 9 Staff or the Applicant has not pursued? 10 Again I think that's a legal judgment, that probably 11 I shouldn't try to make. 12 The intent, the narrative description of the intent 13 of those regulations at its most simple level read by we as 14 a relative newcomer to this area of planning for commercial 15 nuclear stations appears to me not to be fully met by the 15 analysis which we have to this point. 17 But once again the technical question of whether 18 there is technical compliance, whether there is technical 19 obligation clearly I am not a technician on the law. 20 0 Have you reviewed the supplement to the FES and 21 related documents? The FES itself? 22 I have reviewed the FES, I have reviewed the A 23 supplement, both the draft supplement and final supplement. 24 I have briefly reviewed this morning what I guess 25 POOR ORIGINAL 1137 323

		11,646
mm17	1	is the supplement to the supplement which updated certain
	2	of the population figures.
	3	Q And have you made a judgment as to what
•	4	environmental considerations have been inadequately considered
	5	by these documents in the context of applicable, regulations
	6	and regulatory guides? DOOD ORIGINAL
	7	A Yes, sir.
	8	I think that's what the bulk of my testimony
	9	concerns.
	10	Q. Your testimony only relates to the population
	11	issue?
	12	A It deals with the population issues and the
	13	topology of the locus, the fact of intervening water bodies,
	14	the fact of transportation routes which, for certain
8,297	15	populations require movement closer to the station prior to
	16	being able to move further from the station.
	17	They don't but the testimony certainly does
	18	not concern itself with things such as affects on marine life
	19	or many other areas that are of concern.
T 8	20	
	21	
	22	
	23	
	24	
	25	
		1137 324

ł

;

٩,

2

end

11,647

12 MADELON flag minie mpb1 1

2

3

2

ö

11

14

15

16

17

19

20

21

22

0 I may be repeating something, If so, please bear with me. But it's my understanding that it is your testimony that you do not believe that you have the background or the experience to perform risk analysis for nuclear power stations. Is that correct?

8 Sir, the term "risk analysis" carries many A 7 different meanings to different people, so I want to be 3 careful not to diamiss all of my expertise. I think I am 3 in fact expert at risk analysis in the dicision theoretic 10 mode. But I don't have expertise with raspect to the matsorology, with respect to dose levels, with respect to these 12 things which are particular to nuclear stations or nuclear 13 energy or nuclear accidents.

Well, if I said radiation exposure risk analysis, 0 then this would be the area that you do not have expertise --

> A That's correct.

0 On page 1 of your testimony, what do you mean by 18 the tern "reactor safety"?

> A What do I mean by the term " :: eactor safety"? 0 Yes.

> > 1137 325

A I guess I mean with respect to the hazard to population which would follow from an incident.

23 What particular hazards to the population? 0 20 A I had no particular ones in mind; whatever ones 25 they might be.

	11,648						
трь 2 1	Q You have no particular nazards in mind in your						
2	answers to any of the hazards that might be present?						
3	A That's correct.						
4	Q And you have no suggestion or no views on what						
5	those hazards might be composed of?						
6	A I'm not sure where you're krying to carry me.						
7	There are hazards associated with radiological effects, if						
3	that's what it is you wish me to say, But beyond that I						
9	have no particular notions, whether it's effects on the						
10	thyroid or whether it's whole body dosas or man-rems or						
11	whatever any of those several measures are, no, sir, I don't.						
12	Again, I don't think it's necessary to the mean-						
13	ing of the sentence.						
14	Q Well, going back to reactor safety, could you						
. 15	tell us what you mean by "reactor safety"?						
16	MR. WRIGHT: I'll object to that, Mr. Chairman.						
17	That's already been asked and answered just two questions ago.						
18	MR. LEWALD: If you'll tell me what the answer						
19	was then I wouldn't ask the question again. I didn't think						
20	I got an answer to that question, Mr. Wright.						
21	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Well, the objection is						
22	overruled.						
23	What do you mean by "reactor safety"?						
24	THE WITNESS: It means the safety of the population						
25	surrounding the reactor.						
	POOR ORIGINAL 1137 326						

0

÷

2

. 1

11,649

20	00	ODI	n	INIAI	
۲U	UK	UKI	u	INAI	-

BY N	AR.	, LEWI	ALD		001				
And	I	take	12	from	that	that	this	doesn't	have

anything to do with the operation of the reactor itself?

A No, sir.

Q

1

2

3

4

5

7

16

19

mpb3

3 0 Do you have any knowledge, or have you done any reading with regard to engineering implementations that are directed to safety of the operation of nuclear reactors?

8 Well, the only reading in that area that I recall A 3 having done is that which is intended to understand, the 10 meaning for the LP2, for example. But the specific plant 11 engineering is certainly not an area that I've done any 12 reading on at all.

13 Do you consider that the subject of engineered 0 14 safety features is relevant to the subjects of accident 15 analysis and amargancy planning?

> A Yes, sir, I do think it's relevant.

17 0 Now on page 2 you refer to design base events, 18 do you not?

I may, yes, sir. A

20 And what are these that you're referring to on 0 21 page 2?

22 My understanding is that there are a series of A 23 postulated types of events which might occur and for which 24 the plant has been designed with protective devices so as to 25 contain the consequence of that event it a level which in

11,650 POOR ORIGINAL the light of the configuration of the LPS fits the design parameters of that station. Q Am I correct is assuding that you do not have a familiarity with all regulations and regulatory guides which deal with this question of reactor safety? A I'm sure I do not, yes, sic.

And would it be fair to say that you would not
 have the knowledge and background to assess what might be
 considered the primary means of assurring that accident:
 consequences would be minimized?

 11
 A
 Ara you referring now to design basis accidents

 12
 or are you referring now to more than design basis accidents?

 13
 Q
 Could we have the question read back, please?

 14
 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Read the question.

 15
 (Whereupon, the Reporter read from the record

 16
 as requested.)

17 THE WITNESS: Are you waiting for a response 18 from me, sir?

MR. LEWALD: Yos.

20 CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yes.

1

2

3

4

5

3

19

pipip4

21 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry.

With respect to design basis -- I'm sorry, with respect to more than design basis accidents my understanding of what is the primary means of mitigating consequences comes again from my reading of material such as Bunch reports, such

POOR ORIGINAL 11, 551

mpb5	as I'm sorry I don't have it here a receat subocmmittee
2	report, Congressional subcommittee report that I can't
3	cite it. I can provide a cite to you subsequently. But my
4	understanding that's stated at the top of page 2 comes from
3	that reading and I do feel that I'm competent to reach that
3	conclusion, yes, on the basis of that reading.
7 .	BY MR. LEWALD:
3	Q And what are the primary means, sir?
9	A Once again, it's stated. I think I would say
10	nothing different than is stated at the top of page 2.
11	The size and distribution of the population surrounding that
12	reactor appears to have emerged as the MRC's primary means
25	of assurring that the consequences of any accidents are
14	more severa than design basis accidents are mitigated as
. 15	much as possible.
16	Q And on what do you base this view, sir?
17	A Once again, it's based on my understanding from
10	reading the literature in the field. The particular case that
19	I would cite here is D. F. Bunch, Metropolitan Siting, A
20-	Historical Perspective, NUREG-0478.
2.1	Q And would this, is it fair to say, sum up your
22	reading?
23	A I think that was the salient reading on that
20	issue.
25	Q Now on page 3 of your testimony, which is the
	1137 329
	1157 527

	1,652	
mpb6 1	chart, the top of that figure refers to population versus	
2	guidelines, does it not, 1985? FUUR ORIGINAI	
, 3	A Yes, sir.	
4	Q And do I understand from this chart that this i	s
5	to represent cumulative population as against the distance	
6	from the plant in miles for 1985?	
7	A Yes, sir.	
а	Q Pardon?	
8	A Yes, sir.	
10	Q Can you tall me where the line Residents Only	
11	Per SER is?	
12	A It's a copy this chart is a copy of a page i	a
13	the Safety Evaluation Report, with the exception that the	
14	small dotted line was added by my staff.	
. 15	Q In dropping down to the other legend, the other	•
16	side of the line Residents Plus Waighted Seasonal per SER -	-
17	A Yes, sir.	
18	Q this again comes from the Staff's Safety	
19	Evaluation Report 1975?	
20	A Yes, sir.	
21	Q Do you have that with you, by any chance?	
22	A Yes, sir, I do.	
23	Q Would you look at that chart?	
24	A Yes, sir.	
25	Q And can you look at the page before the chart i	2
	1137 330	
	1157 550	

	POOR ORIGINAL 11,653
mpb7	the SER and tall me whether or not it is indeed true that
	this reflects 1985 projections?
	A I'm sorry, the two I have to go to the page
	prior to that. The answer to the question is not on the
	preceding page but it is two pages preceding. And two pages
	g praceding says:
	7 "Figure 2.3 shows the 1972 cumulative
	3 total weighted population in the vicinity of
	9 the proposed site."
1	So that the two lines, Residents Only, Residents
1	Plus Weighted Seasonal Par SER are in fact 1972 data, and the
1	2 dotted line is 1985 data.
1	CHAIRMAN GOODEOPE: The dotted line, the one that
1	4 you inserted?
1	5 THE WITNESS: That's correct.
i	BY MR. LEWALD:
1	Q But you were representing this chart, were you
1	not, as indicating a reflection of 1985 data, sir?
11	A I was certainly representing it that the
21	500 people per square mile guideline was intended for the
21	initial is a guideline for the initial year of plant
2	operation. In the instant case that's 1985. And our dotted
23	line was a plotting of 1985 data, so that also was 1935.
24	The two solid lines are in fact 1972, and it
25	clearly should have been so labeled on the chart. There was
	1137 331

	POOR ORIGINAL 12.654
8 8 8	no intention to be deceptive.
2	Q Well, in fact, until a moment ago you believed
З	they to be 1985, did you not, Doctor?
4	A I'm refreshing my memory by reading the testimony.
3	Q Can you answer the question?
3	(The witness reading.)
7	A No, siz, no, siz, the labeling of the chart is
3	inadsquate. But the intent of our portrayal was to show the
э	way in which
10	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: That's not the question.
11	The question is until Mr. Lawald brought this to your
13	attention did you believe that the two solid lines were
13	1985 information?
14	THE WITNESS: The answer is no.
15	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right.
13	Next question, Mr. Lawald.
\$7	MR. LEWALD: The question was did he believe
19	they were 1985 until a minute ago.
10	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Yas. And he said no.
	SY MR. LEWALD:
· ` 23`	Q Prior to looking at the PSAR as I directed you to,
22	Doctor, is it your tastimony that you did not balieve that
23	the representation on your exhibit for Residents Only Per SER
24	and Residents Plus Weighted Seasonal Per SER referred to
25	1985 projections?
	1137 332

11,655 .

mpb9 1	A First you referred me to the SER, not the PSAR
2	And the answer continues to be no. 7 did not think until
3	having looked at the CPP that there represented 1005
4	having lookad at the SER that those represented 1985. I in
-	fact thought that they represented, without refreshing my
	memory I couldn't tall what year, but that they represented
•	some year prior to the preparation of the SER.
7	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Is this a good breaking point,
8	Mr. Lewald?
9	MR. LEWALD: Yes, this would be fine.
10	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Thank you.
11	We'll take a ten minute recess.
12	(Recess.)
13	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: The hearing will be in order.
14	Mr. Lewald.
15	BY MR. LEWALD:
16	Q Prof. Herr, on page 8 of your testimony in the
17	second full paragraph on that page you state that cumulative
18	annual average density alone is an inadequate measure of
19	accident consequence.
20	What leads you to that belief, sir?
21	A Essentially the reason is because simply looking
22	at annular density doesn't take into consideration the
23	variation in sectoral density or variations in population
24	by sector, which may well be the population at risk in the
. 25	event of any given incident, that at least with respect to
	1137 333
31	

0

ċ

INR ORIGINAL

mpblo 1

2

3.

4

x

8

16

17

13

12

21

24

25

some effects it is not the antire population in 160 degrees surrounding the site at all distances which is germane or which is at risk in the sense of appropriately having protective measures prepared for it, but rather it is the population in some sector, as suggested in the Radsmussen Report and as suggested in a variety of later documents.

7 Are you equating site specific license review Q 8 with altornate site analysis?

2 In this testimony what I'm raising is that sites A 20 may wall not be equivalent with respect to population at risk, 19 even though they are equivalent with respect to average 82 density. And that lacking information with respect to potential population at risk an informed selection among 23 14 sites is not possible. And in my view that's an analysis between sites. 15

Now you manticand protective action measures, did Q you not?

> I may have, yes. A

Q What are protective action measures?

20 Ny understanding is there are a variaty of A possible ones, one of which is evacuation, another of which 20 is sheltering, another of which is prophylaxis. There may be more. Those are the three that I'm familiar with. 23

Now are you suggesting in connection with the NRC Q review that these matters aren't addressed at all in

mpbll 11

POOR ORIGINAL

11,657

1	
2	A I'm not suggesting that at all, sir. What I'm
3	suggesting is that in considering alternative sites it is
4	germans to know the number of persons for whom such actions
3	may be called for, and that that information at this stage
6	has not been provided for selecting among these sites.
7	Q Your testimony is that a worst case analysis ought
8	to be applied in each instance?
9	A A worst case analysis is not the term I'd use.
10	I think a worst case analysis would be one is which, for
11	example, one might imagine a pluma trajectory which would
12	wiggle and waggle so as to include the largest possible or
13	to pass over the largest possible population, and one would
14	make further assumptions regarding, for example, it occurring
15	on let's say one of the infamous Saturdays, of which we have
16	three during the summertime, when traffic conditions are the
17	worst. Wa'll assume breakdowns and so on. It's far from a
18	worst case enalysis.
-0 1	Whet I am augmention in their as we have the

I am suggesting is that an understanding of What a reasonably likely maximum population at risk should be included in order to make a well informed choice among sites.

danid flws

20

21

22

23

24

25

	POOR ORIGINAL 11,653
Sdavid i	Q A reasonably likely population?
david 1 2	A That's correct.
take 13 3	Q And you're distinguishing this as something
fls mpb 4	less than a worst case analysis?
5	A Yes, sir.
6	Q And it's your viw you can arrive at this by a
7	determination of the cumulative annual population surranding
3	a site?
g	A There simply is no way to make an estimate of
10	the potential population at risk, given only cumulative
11	annular data.
12	Q So that your position lies somewhere in between
13	assessing cumulative annul population data and a worst
14	case analysis?
15	A I think that some people
16	Q Is that true?
17	A Yes. Yes.
18	Q And would this vary from sits to site?
19	A Would what vary?
* 20	Q The in between case, would this vary from site to
21	site?
22	A In the necessity of examining the reasonble maximum
23	population density at risk; the would the necessity
24	of that vary from site to site?
25	Q Yes.
	A I think the importance of doing it would vary from
i	1137 336

.*

11,659

david2	1	site to site. POOR ORIGINAL
	2	I'm not well informed what the full cost of that
	3	analysis would be in terms of either financial cost or delay
	4	in any given instance, so I don't know what the tradeoff
	5	is.
	6	Probably it's information that would be useful
	7	in all cases, but in any case we have reason to balieve
	8	that the site in question differs from the norm by a substantial
	9	amount, as indeed in this case we're confident it does.
	10	Then the importance of doing that analysis is
	11	heightened.
	12	Q On page 9 you refer to "unacceptably high number
	13	of persons potentially at risk," do you not, sir?
	14	A Yes, sir.
	15	Q And can you tell me what an acceptable high number
	16	of persons at risk is?
	17	A No, sir. I don't think that's appropriate to
	18	my role. It's clear I'm not an expert on that. All that I'm
	19	arguing is that the information on which a decision maker
	20	could make a judgment to whether the numbers potentially
	21	exposed r at risk is or is not acceptable should be available
	22	to them. And it is not.
	23	Q You feel qualified to testify what an
	24	unacceptable number is, but not an acceptable number, I take it?
	25	A No, sir. I don't believe there's any testimony in
		1137 337

:

.

•

11,660

1	here regarding what is an acceptable or unacceptable
2	number; only what is an acceptable analysis.
3	My testimony is only that the number
4	potentially at risk should be available to the decision maker
5	for him to make a judgment as to what is or is not
6	acceptable in light of all the other considerations.
7	I don't suggest that is an exclusive
8	consideration. I suggest that as one that would be balanced
9	against other demographic considerations. I think that
10	the cumulative annular density, the time weighted and seasonal
11	population is an appropriate measure; it's a useful one.
12	I think decision makers should have that. I think they should
13	also have yeak seasonal, peak sectoral information in order
14	to be able to make this additional assessment.
15	How you weigh one against the other is clearly
15	not something which I've attempted to give in testimony. How
17	to decide what is or is not an acceptable threshold is
18	not something I've given testimony on; only the
19	Q You're not suggesting the regulatory staff does not
20	require this information as peak density and area-specific
21	density in connection with emergency planning, are you, sir?
22	A Emergency planning is a whole it seems to have
23	been adequately discussed. That's an additional
24	consideration.
25	All that I'm saying is that in the basic choice
	1137 338

david4

of site at whic point one is essentially choosing among
 a population array and a topological array, that this
 information in a readily accessible form should be made
 available.

5 Q Is it your position, sir, that tourists and 6 transients, and what you may call daily or seasonal visitors 7 ought not to be weighted in some fashion in arriving at a 8 cumulative population of a particular region or area around 9 the site?

10 A My position is that it's entirely appropriate to 11 weight seasonal population and day trippers for one 12 kind of analysis, and that one kind of analysis should be 13 available and is available; and that there's another kind 14 of evaluation, in which weighting seasonal population and 15 day trippers is inappropriate.

And that's the analysis which is missing. I would not argue from my position, for example for -- in doing what I refer to as the expected value analysis, including total land area, and including seasonal population at full value.

That is, in my view, mixing apples and bananas. It's difficult to ascribe a logical meaning to the outcome of that analysis.

But in order to understand the maximum reasonably expected population at risk, I simply can't get that

11,661

understanding if I count some people as quarter people because if it should occur that the incident were to take place during a peak season, they would not be quarter people; they would be whole people.

So in a sense with the same logic as obliges whole people to be considered, seasonal people to be considered as whole people for the evacuation analysis; the same logic applies to doing a maximum population at risk analysis.

Q You used the phrase, "maximum reasonable population at risk."

A That's correct.

Q Is it your position that the staff has adopted a rule of a minimum reasonable population at risk?

A The analysis which has been done and which has been accepted by the staff, it's neither maximum nor minimum, but rather looks at what is the expected value of the population at risk or what is in a sense what is the average expected population at risk.

It's not a minimum population at risk at all.

うちゃ いんちゃ ちょう

-

٠,

,*

•

11,563

a	1	Q How does one go about determining a maximum
davido	2	reasonable population risk?
	3	A My view is this can be done by considering the
	4	season when the population is highest, and considering the
	5	variations among sectors with respect to the proportion of
	6	whole of the population which is how with each of those sectors.
	7	Q And can yo tell us whether or not this view is any
	3	where espoused by reculation or guideline?
	9	A Go back to my earlier answer and say that in my
	10	layman's reading of part 100 it seems to me reasonable to
	11	expect that analysis to be done in my layman's reading of the
	12	word - explicit regulatory guidelines. It appears to me that
	13	there is no, in those regulatory guidelines, obligation upon
	14	the applicant or the staff to meet that analysis, but neither
	15	do I find anything in those regulations which includes it.
	16	Q Well, your answer is that such an analysis is
	17	provided for in part 100. Is it your position that such
	18	analysis has not been done in this case?
	19	A It's clear that it has not been made available to
	20	** .
	21	Q Where have you for alternative sites. Where have
	22	you looked, sir?
	23	A Well, I've look in the Environmental Report, I've
	24	looked at the PSAR, I've looked in the SER, I've looked in the
	25	Draft Environmental Statement, the Draft Supplement to the
		1137 541

avid7

b

Environmental Statement, the final Supplement to the Environmental Statement, the most recently handed to me the piece of paper this morning and I found in none of those sectoral analyses of the alternative sites -- I may have missed it.

Q Can I sum up your position that you feel that a Part 100 analysis should be done for each of the alternative sites that are under consideration in an alternate site analysis?

A That a part 100 analysis should be done for each of the alternative sites?

Q Yes.

A That aren't considered?

Q Yes.

A In the way that I've considered it? Yes, sure. If I understand the question correctly.

(Pause.)

Q What would -- or what does a Part 100 analysis tell one?

A I'm sorry. I don't understand the meaning of Part 100 analysis.

Q Didn't you use the term "Part 100 analysis"?

A No, I don't believe so. I may have, but -- but this is the first I heard it. I heard you use it. I was confused by it. - I may have inadvertantly used the term

1137 342

11,664

david8

which caused me to bring it back to me, but ---

Q Do you know what Part 100 requires of an applicant by way of licensing a nuclear plant. sir?

A Generally, yes, sir.

I have it in front of me if you want to refer to a particular section.

Q And can you just tell us very briefly what that requires?

A It squres a great range of things; it'r hard for me to briefly characterize all of them.

Q Does it require some calculations with respect to dosages at certain intervals or areas, distances from the plant?

A Yes, sir. It's a part of determining low population zones, population centar distances, and so on. If I somehow conveyed the sense that I believe that type of analysis should be done for all alternative sites, I was mistaken.

I don't mean that.

Q You did not mean that.

A I do not mean that. The records which I made.

Q I don't have a question before, if you don't mean that --

MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, I think that the witness should be allowed to complete his answer.

1,665

davida

MR. LEWALD: He's answered it.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I thought he did complete it. MR. WRIGHT: He started to say something more.

MR. LEWALD: He said a lot of things more.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: I don't think it was an answer to the question.

MR. WRIGHT: I think he was explaining, Mr. Chairman, if I may--

CEAIRMAN GOODEOPE: Some reference, well, what was it? Go ahead. What is the reference you hade.

THE WITNESS: No, I'm sorry. I'm content to withdraw the comment.

MR. WRIGHT: I withdraw my objection.

MR. LEWALD: Excuse me, jus: a minute.

THE WITNESS: Mr. Chairman, if it would help clarify the record, I'd be glad to cite specifically what I meant by the reference to Part 100.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Why don't you lat Mr. Lewald ask you a question.

MR. LEWALD: If you want to say what you mean,t go right alad. Doctor, I'm not trying to --

THE WITNESS: Part 100.10, it's factors to be considered when evaluating sites. And item B under that states that population density -- and these characteristics of the site environments, including the exclusion area or 1137 544 david10

low population zone center distance; and it says words which I referred to as in my view in order to fully consider the population density and use characteristics of the site environment, that it's necessary to go beyond simple, cumulative, annular population.

And I certainly by that comment -- didn't mean to invoke all the other parts of Part 100 as appropriately being done for alternative sites.

It's just that one narrow piece of the -- of site evaluation factors.

BY MR. LEWALD:

Q Doctor, on page 20 of your testimony you have a second paragraph --

MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, perhaps I'm mistaken, but I thought this was part of what we had strickan.

MR. LEWALD: I didn't think it was.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: We didn't striks anything.

MR. WRIGHT: I mean that was going to be deforred until the time of the evacuation discussion.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: That's what the intention was.

MR. LEWALD: May I just ask a point of clarification, I guess.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Wasn't that your objection? It's in the record. Does it have to do with what we're discussing now?

davidll

MR. LEWALD: It has to do with his testimony.

CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: Prior testimony? The first 19 pages?

MR. LEWALD: Well, I'm refarring to page 20; if I can't ask any questions on page 20, then I'll --

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: You're the one that wanted it kept off until we got to amergency planning, and --

MR. LEWALD: We did, but the ruling of the chair was to put it in anyway. So the upshot of thewhole thing is it's in evidence, but we can't examine on it, so I'm not sure whether we ---

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: At this time are we going into emergency planning?

This is where I'm confused, as to what's --

MR. LEWALD: I can do this by interrogatories, I guess. I don't need to go into it now. And in that case, I have no further questions.

CHAIRPAN GOODHOPE: Do you object to him examining at this time on this?

MR. WRIGHT: Well, I object to Mr. Lewald having it both ways: wanting to put it off and at the same time wanting to cross examine here today.

I would have preferred doing all this today as part of our alternative site analysis, but now the board has ruled against us in this respect, so it's my understanding that the information will be subject to cross

david12

examination at the time of the emergency planning hearings. CHAIRMAN GOODFOPE: Yes.

Yes, that's the way the record stands right now. Do you want to go into this? I can change our previous ruling.

MR. LEWALD: I won't press it now. I'll stop my examination at this point, reserving the right to continue on the next subject.

> CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right. MR. SMITH: Does that complete your --MR. LEWALD: It does complete it. BY MR. SMITH:

Q Mr. Herr, could you give me your definition of risk as used in your testimony?

A It's going to be hard because I'm afraid at the time I wrote this I was ignorant of special meanings that that word evidently has in this kind of proceeding in this topical area.

And my juess is I have not used "risk" with any more particular meaning than "chance." That probably has broader or narrower meanings at different points in the testimony, which I can conceive of - those that are familiar with that particular use of "risk" terminology. The chance --

CHAIRMAN GOODEOPE: Chance of an automobile

1137 347

11,669

accident going home, something like that?

THE WITNESS: Yes, that would certainly be chance; chance of the wind blowing from the northwast instead of the southwest. It is there is some consequence attendant on that risk, the risk that the wind might blow in an unfavorable direction.

BY MR. SMTTH:

Q Lat me understand, doctor -- is it doctor?

A Professor.

Q Professor. When I see the word "risk" here, I should just use the term "chance."

A Can you give me a location.

Q Start from the beginning.

A Chance with negative consequence.

Q I'm trying to find out if you used the term, professor; let's start at page 6 -- let's start at page 1 where you refer to reg guide 4.7, last paragraph, "because of some residual risk."

How are you using the term there?

A Because some residual -- in that case it substitutes risk for chance for danger to the population.

Q When you are saying "chance," you're just using it in terms of probability or just the random chance that something may happen with no significant mathematical

A That's correct.
david14

That's correct?

A That's correct. I had no particular measure in mind in using the word "risk" at that location.

Q Well, in cross examination, I believe you used the term "maximum reasonable risk."

Is that -

A Population at risk.

Q Okay.

Q

A The use of the term "population at risk," I was using it again in that case, I would kink, in exactly the way in which I understand it: it is -- it is used in this field -- and that is -- and I took that from regulation guide 1.101 where it describes population of risk or describes it in terms of persons for whom protective actions are being or would be taken. When I used that term, "populatia at risk," I meant it as exactly that, in that special way.

Q If I recall, reg guide 1.101 is used for emergency planning?

A That's my recollection as well, yes, sir.

Q Do you use a difference between the staff's assessment of emergency planning and alternative site review? Do you know if there is a difference?

A I'm confident there is a difference.

Q Do you know if the staff, when doing svaluations for umargency planning does take into consideration peak populations? 1137 349

david15

A It's my understanding that they do.

Q And if you use the term "maximum possible risk" as used in reg guide 1.101 --

A "Population at risk."

Q That's what you said; you said you got that from reg guide 1.101, and that gives emergency planning, and you agree that the staff uses peak population when doing emergency planning.

Where, than, do you and the staff -- where do you disagree with the staff's analysis?

A I would disagree with the staff's analysis as the analysis of the population at risk for alternative sites; it's not before us and that in choosing among the sites,, it's germane to know what the maximum population at risk would be.

There was a distinction, as I understand it, between this proceeding under NEPA and the later proceeding under other aspects of the license procedure.

It's not - I frankly don't understand it, so that I can't meet the argument as to the moment at which that should be there.

My argument is that in order to make a reasonable obvice between sit as you need this information; the information has evidently not been made available at this time.

Q What I understand you to say is: for each alternative 1137 350

david16

site you should do an enrgency planning evaluation. Is that what you're saying?

A I think that the ability to do emergency planning for each of the alternative sites clearly is germane to the choice among those sites in the event that some of those sites would prove much easier to do emergency planning for or emergency planning would prove more effective for them than other of those sites; if that's what you intend, yes.

Q It's not what I intend; it's what you intend. A Yes.

Q Let's turn to page 9; when you use the term "maximum risk analysis," how are you using risk there?

A In order to more clearly express the thought there, what I meant by "maximum risk analysis," was analysis of the maximum population at risk.

Q Does risk to you mean probability times consequence?

A I think that's --- I think that's one perfectly acceptable meaning of risk.

Q But that's not how you use it in the testimony.

A I'm trying to think - I think certainly not, at least not consistent?~_

Q Now, staying with page 9, when you talk about --- let me make sure I'm looking -- you say that "site B can be said to have an unacceptable number of persons potentially

1137 351

11.673

at risk."

And if I look at site B you have a fairly large number of people in one area.

Is that a correct characterization?

A Yes.

Q Now, why are they at a higher risk now, as you used the term?

A Each of those individuals is no more at risk than each of those individuals in the site A, but the maximum potential population which might be at risk is higher at site B than it is at site A.

Q Because of chance?

A Because of the chance of wind direction.

Q Now, isn't it true that if these people altogether -if there's a nuclear incident and if somebody could tell -warn these people with one warning, and at site A there would have to be a number of warnings, since the people are scattered around, that these people would have a better chance of getting out of the way of the plume, as you described it in your testimony?

A Once again, I am not changing the meaning that I understand because I think it's a very good one of population at risk.

But the population for which some form of protective action would have to be taken -- and what you're saying is that protective action might, in the case of a 1137 352

david17

dvid18

dispersed population, be either more difficult or less effective than in the case of a concentrated population.

That's getting into another set -- set -- that's getting into another set of considerations, and I don't think at this point it's proper to discuss those; we may be discussing them in a mont. or so.

All we're saying is we've got more fiks potentialy involved with the incident in the case of site B than with site A.

Q If I give you the hypothesical that you have a site which has a high population in various sectors for two months of the year but a verylow population for 10 months of the year, would one say that the people with -- the people there at 10 months of the year have a greater risk overall?

A The risk of the people is different than the maximum numbers of people who might be at risk; that's a different measure; a measure of the expected value of the number of people at risk simply is conceptually different, distinct from the maximum number that might be at risk.

And I would say that in the case of a site where there's a whole lot of people there for two months out of the year and only a few there for 10 months out of the year, the individuals that are there for the 10 months out of the 12 months out of the year - if there is some time related risk with being there, sure.

david20

They individually have greater risk than these people who are there only for a short time.

But in terms of measuring the maximum possible or likely risk, that maximum number has nothing to do with whether they are there only two months or whether they are there for all 12 months.

end 13

mm fls.

.

-

POOR ORIGINAL

11,677

TI4 mml; MELTZER

2

3

4

3

25

Q But if I understand you correctly, you used the term risk as just chance, just chance, just that's how we should look at it. Just a chance that somebody is going to be there and not taking anything else into account. That's how you would use the term.

A We are not saying you should take nothing else into 7 account.

As I testified earlier today, I think we said in the testimony, I don't object to the average density analysis as one of the pieces of information that should be available. I think this other should be available as well.

And what we should not be doing is in a sense relying on the chance that an incident will not occur at a time where it will be particularly damaging, or take the chance that the wind will blow in a favorable direction.

When you ignore those things you are saying that you 16 are risk neutral in decision analytical terms. That is where 17 some of our confusion of terms unfortunately comes in. You are 18 saying I'm risk neutral with respect to the risks attendant on 19 wind direction or the risks attendant on the time of the year 20 when an incident might occur, saying I don't care about that 21 risk, I am going to put that out of my calculus and I'm only 22 going to deal with time-weighted and direction-weighted 23 occurrences. 24

And what we tried to establish in my testimony is

11,678

mm2] 1	that society is not risk neutral with respect to matters of
2	that sort, and we don't think that decisionmaker should be
3	asked to make decisions absent the information which they can
4	then use and which they themselves are risk neutral with
5	respect to that.
6	That's for them to decide.
7	But they should have the information with which
3	they can make a balanced judgment of, there's some threshold
9	of possible numbers of persons who might be at risk that's
10	unacceptable and then that the judgment as to whether that
11	threshold exists or whether something they're weighing is their
12	choice.
13	But they should be informed so that they can make
14	that choice.
. 15	Q You are not saying that the Staff is ignoring the
16	peak populations in their analysis of a site? They do
17	consider them in the emergency plan?
18	A What I'm saying is that the Staff has not provided
19	information at this point regarding the risks attendant on
20	seasonality and wind direction for the alternative sites.
21	Of what happens at some later stage is speculative. But my
22	understanding is that peak population will be analyzed for the
23	selected site at the emergency planning stage, and I under-
24	stand from the prefiled testimony that the relative evacuation -
25	I'm sorry, the emergency planning consequences of site
	1137 356

•

mm 3

۰,

11,679

1	selection will subsequently be presented, I'm afraid that's
2	an attorney's argument whether that material belongs now or
3	later.
4	My argument is that that material belongs,
5	regardless of when it appears.
6	Q In your consulting work have you ever done
7	environmental impact analyses?
,3	A Yes.
9	Q And in doing those analyses, can you describe
10	what type of impact analyses you have done?
11	A Well, we have in part done impact analysis on the
12	impacts of Montague Nuclear Station, done impact analyses of
13	individual developments, impact analyses of policy plans, I
14	have done work at the stae level, municipal level, private
15	developments, a great range of things.
16	Q Were these impact analyses specifically for a
17	requirement under the National Environmental Policy Act?
18	That's what I'm referring to, if you have done any of those?
19	A The work which we did for Franklin County was in
20	anticipation of NEPA requirements. But that matter, to my
21	knowledge, hasn't proceeded tothat point.
22	None of the others that I have done that I can think
23	of were done under the Environmental Policy Act.
24	Oh, I'm sorry. We have done an impact analysis
25	quite recently regarding a subway line extension which is in
	1137 357
1	

PNNR	ODICINIAL
1001	UNIGINAL

11,580

mm4	1	litigation under provisions of NEPA.
	2	We did another impact analysis regarding highway
	3	in Connecticut for NEPA proceedings.
	4	So, I guess the answer is yes, we have, now that
	5	I recall them.
	6	Q Was that work done for a government agency, or for
	7	a person applying for a government permit or license?
	8	A In both those cases it was done for private
	9	organizations.
	10	Q That needed a federal license of some kind?
	11	A No, which were challenging the issuance of some
	12	which are challenging the correctness of some public action.
·	13	IN one case actions of the Secretary of Transportation in
	14	approving a subway extension; in another case challenging
	15	the correctness of the actions of the Secretary of
	16	Transportation, I guess, regarding an expressway.
	17	Q In those evaluations, did you consider were you
	18	in your role as a consultant, considering the reasonableness
	19	of the action being taken?
	20	A The usefulness?
	21	Q The reasonableness.
	22	A Oh, reasonableness.
	23	I would have said that that's what we were doing in
	24	each of those two cases.
	25.	One case we found in our professional judgment, that
		1137 358
	1	

		POOR ORIGINAL 11,691
mm5	1	it was reasonable, and the other case we found in our
	2	professional judgment that it was not.
	3	Q Have you ever done any other risk analysis of any
	4	type?
	3	A As I understand that term, risk analysis, I would
	6	say in the sense of risk-free construction and so on,
	7	academically yes but as a consultant no.
	3	Q Just one final question, I think.
	9	Could you tell me when I read your testimony, how I
	10	am to define again the term "risk" as you use it?
	11	A And I guess once again without having been
	12	sensitized to the particular weight attached to that word and
	13	its meaning, it is hard for me to know all the places I have
	14	used it, and therefore hard for me to characterize how I've
	15	used it in each of those cases.
	16	When I have used it in the phrase population at
	17	risk I think we have been reasonably clear regarding what that
	18	means.
	19	I think it is only that way in specific context that
	20	I can do it.
	21	2 How is this Board to analyze your testimony if they
	22	don't have it, have knowledge of how you used the term?
	23	A Once again, as we went through I would be glad to
	24	try to clarify the meaning which we were ascribing to that
	25	term in any location where it gives trouble. I would even be
		. 1137 359

.

11,682

m6 1	glad to, in fact, go back through this not today while we
2	are sitting here and try either to get rid of the word
. 3	and substitute other words for it, or use it in some narrower
4	way.
5	I don't think that is what is standing in the way
6	of understanding between us.
7	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: You don't think what?
3	THE WITNESS: I don't think that's what is standing
9	in the way of an understanding between us. For example, the
10	prefiled testimony it appeared to me that the Staff understood
11	very well precisely the point that we were making, despite
12	differences with respect to
13	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: What prefiled testimony?
14	THE WITNESS: My understanding is that there is
. 15	Staff rebuttal testimony to my testimony.
16	Is that not the case?
17	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Some has been filed. Yes.
18	Is that what you are referring to?
19	THE WITNESS: Yes.
20	BY MR. SMITH:
21	Q And you are saying that your understanding of
22	risk and the Staff's are the same?
23	A No, sir.
24	What I am saying is
25	Q That's all I asked you.
	1137 300

1

 \bigcirc







IMAGE EVALUATION TEST TARGET (MT-3)



6"









IMAGE EVALUATION TEST TARGET (MT-3)



6"





	ł	11,683
mm7	1	MR. SMITH: That finishes my cross-examination.
	2	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Mr. Cleeton?
	3	MR. CLEETON: I have two questions. One is on
	4	page 7, having to do with the title is Inclusion of the
	5	Water Area in Calculating Average Population Densities.
	6	I will start with that one.
	7	BY MR. CLEETON:
	а	Q Would you explain how it is by including the water
	9	area in calculating average population densities, that this
	10	analysis results in a more realistic assessment of the true
	11	population density in and near the Pilgrim site?
	12	A You say you want me to explain how it is that by
	1.3	including water
	14	Q No.
	15	Well, that's part of in other words, the way this
	16	is headed, it says inclusion of the water, and your analysis
	17	is a critique or that.
	18	And I use the word excluding. In other words, by
	19	excluding the water in the calculations, is it a more
	20	realistic assessment of the true population density in
	21	and near the Pilgrim site?
	22	A I clearly would have the same difficulty which the
	23	Staff earlier had, saying what is the true density of the
	24	population divided by the surface area is a true density.
	25	Population divided by land area is also a true
		1138 001

1

mm8	
,	density, but it is a different density. It shows a different
2	thing.
3	The population divided by surface area is a
4	perfectly appropriate way of describing how many people are how
5	close to the site. And I actually don't object to that, only
6	argue that there is an additional description which is
7	population on the land.
8	And once again this comes to such issues as the
9	numbers of persons in close proximity, for example, who might
10	be within earshot of the warning system and therefore might
11	more easily be alerted by virtue of their being at higher
12	density, than their being at the théoretic lensity that you
13	arrive at by taking population and dividing by surface.
14	I think it is an issue that cuts two ways. It has
. 13	been suggested that for example evacuation speed is an inverse
16	function of density. To the degree that that's true my guess
17	is that that is true with respect to density on the land
18	rather than surface density.
19	It simply describes a different measure of what is
20	the place like, and it is useful to have that additional
21	measure of what is the place. like. And it may argue that this
22	is a better site than what otherwise had been the case, or
23	it may argue that it is a worse site.
24	But it simply is a part of the description of
25	the site.
	1138 002

t

11,684

11,685

All right.

mmo

1

2

25

Q

Now just one other question.

POOR ORIGINAL

I think you have already explained -- and my question is, on sector analyses, does this give a more realistic or complete assessment of the true population distribution in and near the Pilgrin site as related to alternative sites?

A Adding a sectoral analysiz clearly enables you to
 9 better understand once again what is the peculiar nature of
 10 this versus other sites.

For example, the report which I mentioned earlier had been very useful to me in coming to understand this field, prepared by Dr. Bunch, tabulated populations around sites which had been nominated for approval; metropolitan sites and densely populated sites.

He includes in that table not only the annula: population, but the population in the worst sector. And I found that column showing the population in the worst sector in fact to be very revealing. It adds a dimension to my understanding of the site.

I can look at this and there are fourteen densely populated sites which are tabulated by Dr. Bunch, and only one of those fourteen densely populated sites has a larger population in the worst sector than has Pilgrim.

That gives me a new understanding of what is this

1 Pilgrim sige like?

POOR ORIGINAL

11,586

If I take the Pilgrim site and I compare it based
on average density, it falls fairly low in that set.

Now how it is that as a decisionmaker I would balance one sector which is clearly making possible a population consequence or again, I should be careful, which is raising a potential of population at risk in a sector which is very large together with an overall density which is not unusually large measured against other densely populated sites, I think is a very complex question.

11 But the inclusion of that information allows a 12 more complete evaluation.

Just a very simple number. I can take one additional 13 step which took ten minutes with a pocket calculator, to see 14 what percentage of the total population is in that worst 15 sector. And I found that sites range from having -- if you 16 had a uniform site, theoretical site, and you had 6 percent, 17 6 1/2 or so in that one-sixteenth of the compass, none of the 18 sites are anywhere near that, they all start -- they start at 19 15 percent, the average is about 22 percent in the worst sector. 20 Pilgrim has about 35 percent in the worst sector. 21

That helps me understand what is the nature of this thing and I can translate from that into a very real consideration. And that is that the maximum size of population for which I am going to have to provide emergency actions is 1138 004

mm10

		11,637
m11	1	at Pilgrim quite large in relation to its overall density.
	2	And that is useful for me to know in evaluating all
	3	the other pieces. That information simply should be
	4	available. Not just against these other fourteen sites, all of
	5	which are history, but against whatever number of candidate
	6.	sites or alternativa sites can realistically be considered in
	7	this instance.
	g	MR. CLEETON: Thank you. POOR ORIGINAL
	9	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Mr. Wright?
	10	Do you have any redirect?
	11	MR. WRIGHT: Just a couple of minutes, Mr. Chairman.
	12	REDIRECT EXAMINATION
	13	BY MR. WRIGHT:
	14	9 The last question Mr. Smith asked you, Professor
	15	Herr, asked you whether you would say your understanding of
	16	risk and that of the Staff's are the same.
	17	You said no, and then were cut off.
	18	Would you like to complete that statement?
	19	A I can't remember the train of thought.
	20	Q If you don't, it's all right. I just didn't
	21	want to leave you cut off.
	22	A Of course I will remember it is soon as I step out
	23	the door.
- 4	24	MR. WRIGHT: I have no further questions,
	23	Mr. Chairman.
		1138 005
		1

-

π

	11,688
mm12 1	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Dr. Callihan?
2	OR. CALLIHAN: Yes.
3	EXAMINATION BY THE BOARD POOR ORIGINAL
4	BY DR. CALLINAN:
5	Q I would like to turn, please, to your figure 1,
6	which is on page 3 of the testimony, and continue the
7	discussion of it, which has been rather extensive, I realize.
3	And ask what is the meaning of the caption at the bottom of
9	the page, Figure 2.3.
10	Figure 2.3 of what?
11	A That's figure 2.3 from the Safty Evaluation
12	Report.
13	Q Which of the editions, do you know?
14	A Which of the editions?
. 15	Q Which revision, which supplements and so forth?
16	A It will take me a moment.
17	Q This is Staff Safety Evaluation?
18	A Yes, sir, that's correct.
19	MR. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, it appears to be June '75.
20	this one.
21	MR. CLEETON: It is in his testimony.
22	CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: It appears where?
23	THE WITNESS: June '75.
24	DR. CALLIHAN: June '75. Thank you.
25	
	1138 000

-

11,689

BY DR. CALLIHAN:

Your caption is Population Versus Guideline 0 at the top of the page, and does the 1985 go with - is that the date at which this -- is this the representation of the population in 1985?

6. No, s.r. the drawing is deficient, and " apologize A 7. for that. The intent of the drawing was to show the way in 3 which, the rapidity with which the population density was 8.1 approaching that of regulation guidelines and was meant to 10 --display the temporal - the way in which the line shifted over time.

12 The two solid black lines, Residents Only For SER 13 and Residents Plus Weighted Seasonal Per SER, as noted on the 14 pravious page, are from the '75 report and reflect '72 151 population. That shows how we were in 1972,

18: And the dotted line with the arrow pointing 17 approximately through it saying 2/79 Draft Supplement Table 1 73 is a reflection of 1985 population, and the dashed line 19 labeled 500 People Per Square Mile is the Reg Guide 4.7 20 guideline for the first year of operation. And in this case 21 that would be 1985.

22 0 There are three instances where a descriptive 23 term is given, followed by an arrow. In each case the arrows 24 don't terminate on the lines. Is that corract?

> To be specific, near the loft-hand margin 138 007

15 MADELON imia mpbl

1

2

3

4

5

11

	POOR ORIGINAL 11, 390
mpb2 1	two-thirds of the way from the bottom is the statement
2	"2/79 Draft Supplement Table 1".
S	Now explain what is indicated by that notation,
4	plaasa?
3	A That arrow is supposed to point to the line which
5	is alternate circles and squares. It doesn't quite point to
7	it because the
8	Q So that is a spacial distribution of the popula-
9	tion as taken from Taken from what?
16	A The draft supplement to the Final Environmental
11	Statement.
12	Q All right.
25	And similarly, in the upper right-hand cornar
14	there are a couple of arrows that indicate points at the
. 15	moment.
16	A That's intended to bracket the two data points
17	on that same line, the one at 40 miles and the other at 50
18	miles. The draft supplement only provided data to 30 miles,
19	so we went to the next most current source which we had,
20	which was the PSAR, and we inserted those points at 40 and
21	50 miles from the PSAR.
22	The PAPSAR used 1980 and 1990, as I recall, as
23	their de the So we did an interpolation between those two
24	dates using the same exponential interpolation technique
25	which the Applicant has used. But the attempt was simply 1138 008

+ 1 +

C

mpb3

11

3

3

4

15

18

17

18

10

20

2!

22

23

20

23

Q

in the last two data points. The only real data points are the even tan miles; the ones past ten cans from a second source.

POOR ORIGINAL Thank you. 3 Cn page 5, if I read correctly, you have a 3 weighting factor in the beginning of the only full paragraph 7on that page. You have a weighting factor of -- to put it 3 in yesterday's terminology, .27 percant, correct? The 3 weighting factor for the tourists, if I read correctly. 10

That's correct. A

14 Q And the Staff has .33 percent, with which I'm 12 not quarreling. I'm just being sure of the identity.

12 I believe that simply comes from the reciprocal A 14 of 365, if memory serves me right.

> 0 Okay.

> > This assumes a one day visitation.

A That's right.

Q Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Dr. Cola?

DR. COLE: Just a couple of questions, Prof. Herr. BY DE. COLE:

Q On page 4, the second paragraph, could you explain to me your - the basis for I guess it's a onesentence paragraph.

Could you explain to me the basis for that

11,692

mpb4

1

2

3

statement, sir? Particularly with respect to the population density being the exclusive device for determining whether the Class 9 analysis is warranted.

4 I think it's been made abundantly clear that A 3 I'm not an expert on either the regulations or the regulatory 6 guides. My understanding of the regulatory guide calls for 7 consideration of special circumstances when population density 3 per square mile exceeds 500 parsons per square mile. And 9 it's not in that guide, but if I undarstand correctly the 101 practice of this has on occasion -- and this was discussed 11 earlier today -- on limited occasions entailed as a part of 12 that special analysis a Class 9 accident analysis.

13 If that's the basis of that statement, that's 14 my understanding of the way in which those analyses have or 15 have not been colled for was that it was the trip level of 16 500 persons per square mile which triggered the possibility 17 of that being called for based on the precedent of previous 13 cases.

19

All right, sir.

20 One of the points you made today, and one of the 21 principal points of your paper, which I thought you made 22 rather well, was that the Staff should do something more 23 with respect to alternate sites than just the annular popula-24 tion data.

25

Yas.

Q

A

11,693

R ARICINA

0 And specifically you mentioned they should provida radial sector data.

3 Would you go, then, further and say that that 4 would have to be coupled with metsorological date in order 3 to make it even more reasonable?

6 No -- yes and no. The meteorological data is A 7 not germane to an analysis of the maximum population which 3 might be at risk. That maximum might be at risk regardless 9 of whether that's a wind direction which is common or not 10 common. Where the metacrological data would seem to me to be 11 more useful in fact is as an adjunct to the -- what I've been 12 referring to as expected value analysis, where you could 13 refine that expected value analysis by weighting sectors 14 by the frequency of occurrence of wind in those sectors.

But as far as analyzing maximum population at 10 risk, I don't -- and again, more information is always useful, but it doesn't seem to me that it's salient to have that and it lossn't seem to me that the cost and difficulty 19 of collecting site specific meteorological data should prevent one from doing the easy thing, relatively easy thing, which is simply collecting numbers of people by radial sector.

Q All right, sir. I understand your point on that. You talked about special site characteristics of the Filgrin 2 site and identified the seasonal variations and

1138 011

mob5

1

2

13

17

13

20

21

22

23

24

mpb6

1

2

3

4

5

5

7

8

9

10

11

12

the spatial allocation, spatial differences.

Did you look at or get an opportunity and did in fact look at any of the other alternate sites that were proposed for Pilgrim Unit 2 with the thought in mind of identifying any special site characteristics?

Not in a systemmatic way. I'm familiar with, I guess, at least generally, all of those sites and very familiar with several of them. So I'm aware of some of their particular site characteristics, peculiar site characteristics. But I didn't do anything systemmatic with respect to them because it seemed beyond the scope of what Commonwealth was called out to do at this point.

13 So you did not make any study to determine whether Q 14 they might in fact have some of the same deficiencies that 15 Pilgrim Unit 2 might have?

16

17

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

That's corract. A 0 All right, sir.

POOR ORIGINAL

1138 012

18 On page 7, just a small point here, sir. On line 7 you have the end of a sentence where there are the words "... used by UCSE." Is that United Engineers and Constructors, UE&C?

You're on page 7?

0 Yes.

1

A Is that the old draft or the new draft? Q I think it's the same way on both drafts, UCER.

mpb7 1	A Yes. Those are the people to whom I refer
2	oh, I see it. There it is.
3	Yes, it should be UEaC.
	Q All right, sir.
5	Then you are referring to United Engineers and
3	Constructors? Or to what does that refor?
7	A It refers to the Applicant's consultant, and I
3	don't recal his name. If it is is fact United Engineers
9	and Contractors, then those should be reversed.
10	It was incended as a reference to the Applicant's
1	consultant.
12	Q All right, sir. Thank you.
13	On the bottom of page 7 you rafer to Priscille
14	Beach and White Horse Beach, and in the footnote you indi-
. 15	cate a summertime density of 20,000 persons per square mile.
16	Do you recall what the total number of persons
27	involved in that calculation were, sir? What is the popula-
18	tion of Priscille Beach and White Horse Beach?
19	A I don't recall it. I would have to go back through
20	notes to replicate it. I'm sorry, I can't do it extemporaneous-
31	1y.
22)	Q Offhand you don't know how many square miles were
23	involved in the calculation?
245	A I'm sorry, no, sir.
25	Q All right. 1138 010

11,695

1 tapb 3 At the bottom of page 9 you talk about the 2 special site characteristics of the Rocky Point site. Am 3 I correct that the special site characteristics that you 4 are referring to are the temporal and spatial characteristics, 5 and if that's not so, what special site characteristics? 3 In that content on page 9 those are indeed the A 7 only special site characteristics to which we were referring. 3 Once again, it's my view that there are other 3 special site characteristics which bors consideration in 10 choosing among alternative sites having to do with topology 11 and the fact that some folks have to come closer to the site 12 in order to move away from it, and having to do with the 13 nature of the road network in relation to this station. 14 But in this context I wasn't referring to those 13 latter two things. 16 0 All right. You used the term "risk nautral" -17 A Yes. 18 -- on wind direction and temporal considerations. 19 Q 20 A Yes. I think I know what you mean by that. Could you 21 Q explain that, sir? 22 It's the jargon of my field, I'm afraid. 23 A We have it quite a bit in ours too, sir. Q 20 A Okay. 25 1138 014

11,696

11,697

1133 015

1 A parson who is risk neutral would not, given a 2 choice between two situations, one in which he has a 50-50 chance of winning \$100 versus a 50-50 chance of -- I can't 4 make the numbers come out right losing \$400, he'd say a 50-50 chance of winning -- I'm sorry, \$1000 is worth \$500 to G me as a probable banefit of that, of the 30-50 chance of losing \$400 is a cost of 200. I subtract the 200 from the 500 and I get \$300. Therefore it's worth paying \$300 to get the opportunity to play that game.

10 That person who would do that would be risk 11 asutral. Some paople like myself are cowards and afraid of things like that, and we might say 'I can't afford to loce 12 \$400. If I win 1000 I'll probably just wasta it. So being 13 14 risk averse, I won't take that, I won't pay \$300 for a 50-50 chance of winning 1000 and a 50-50 chance of losing 400." 15

16 And in tarms of utility theory, what people are arguing is that that's true for virtually everyone with the 17 exception of a few people who make the gambling business work, 13 and that for most o. us in fact winning an extra dollar is 13 20 not worth as much as losing a dollar.

24 Now there is evidence in work by Parrar and Slassen that the operations research center at MIT for 22 example that indicates if you examine accident experience 23 that our society is risk averse. It is not risk neutral. 24 If you just think about the chance occurrence of disasters, 25

mpb9

3

5

7

3

POOR ORIGINAL 11,698

mpb10

1

2

3

4

5

4

7

3

9

10

it

14

15

26

17

whether they're natural disasters or transportation disasters or building disasters or other disasters involving man-made facilities, that if you write an equation to express the probability of those things occurring that what you would expect is an equation which has a square function in it.

When you look at natural disasters they in fact substantially occur with that kind of a frequency, that is the larger cnes are infrequent, the smaller ones are more frequent. And when you pin a line to it it's some squara function.

When you look at the disasters which involve 12 airplanes and trains and mines and buildings, what you find 13 is that in fact it's a cubic relationship with great consistency and great consistency among those classes of accidents. And what they point out is that what's true is that our society doesn't behave as if it were risk neutral; it behaves as if it were risk averse.

18 The DC-10 accident which caused our society 19 great griaving has caused now probably the DC-10 to be 20 emerging as one of the safest means of travel. It once 21 again illustrates how badly we feel about big accidents. 22 The same weekand the DC-10 accident occurred an

23 approximately commensurate number of people were killed in 24 automobils accidents, in which we're doing something, but nothing very large. We demand more safety for the 747 than

1138 016

11,599

mpb11

1

2

3

4

3

G

7

22

25

we do of the 707. We demand more safety in a bus than we do in an automobile. We demand more safety for a large building than a small building.

The expected value of an accident claiming a life given the way in which our society behaves is lower in elements involving large numbers than it is in elements involving smaller ones.

5 There's a certain amount of - not a large 9 amount -- a certain amount of a theory around why our 10 1 society is risk averse, but I'm aware of no one who's arguing 11that it is not. And in fact in the Rassnusser Report it was 12 pointed out that one of the considerations of the nuclear 13 industry is that our society is -- there's a quote I could 13:1 pull out in which the authors point out that our society 13 clearly is more averse to large accidents at low probability 16 than it is to small accidents with a high probability.

17 1000 persons killed is not equivalent to ten 18 accidents each killing 100 or 1000 accidents each killing 19 ten. They are not equivalent.

And therefore two sites, one of which has a whole lot of people in one sector and the other which distributes them uniformly are, from the point of view of risk, not equivalent because we are risk averse.

> Q I understand your point, sir. Thank you. DR. COLE: I have no further questions.

	11,700
mpb12 ¹	DR. CALLIMAN: I have one, if I may return with
1	apology.
1	BY DR. CALLINAN:
4	Q In your testimony, particularly on page 4,
5	you make reference to United Engineers and Constructors'
9	growth rate, estimated growth rate two percent per year. And
2	in a footnote you make a statement that two percent growth
a	rate per year is a sizeable thing, really.
5	A Yes.
10	Q And do you indicate by that that the study made
11	of this area is an overestimate?
david flws 12	
13	
14	POOR ORIGINAL
. 15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
	1170 018
	1100 010

6david

'avid1

take 16

A Yes, sir; I wouldn't argue that. I think once again that was a gratuitous, contextual addition; when people look at an annual rate like 2 percent and say that is very, very small -- that's a very conservative assumption -- in reality that's very high. It isn't an assumption. It's an analysis.

We did review it; we used independent sources. We're not quarreling with the basic growth rate they projected. I'm not arguing it's too high.

Just by way of context it is not too high, but it is a very substantial gowth rate. Southeastern Massachusetts is a very rapidly growing region.

DR. CALLIHAM: Thank you.

MR. LEWALD: I have one more question, if I may.

CROSS ON BOARD EXAMINATION

BY MR. LEWALD:

Q Could I put this hypothetical to you, doctor? Assuming the site and the site environment h's five permanent residents throughout the year and 20,000 visitors which all come on one day; that's site A.

And then take site B, which has 20,000 permanent residents and five visitors during the year and they all come on one day.

Are these sites equal insofar as the maximum risk to the population? Is that the way you look at this?

11,701

david2

A If I remember your numbers corn ctly --

MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, it's my understanding of the rules of this proceeding that questions can occur after the board has asked questions only based on the board's questions.

I don't think Mr. Lewald's question qualifies for that.

MR. LEWALD: I think this did arise from questions asked by the board.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: "If you object to it, it's overruled.

Go ahead: do you understand the question? THE WITNESS: In one case we have five year around residents and 20,000 day visitors and in the other --

CHAIRMAN GOODHCPE: All in one day.

THE WITNESS: All on one day. And in the other instance, we have 20,000 people who are living there year around and five people who come and visit on one day.

And do those both expose the same maximum population at risk?

MR. LEWALD: Yes. THE WITNESS: The answer to that would be yes. MR. LEWALD: Thank you. CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Anything further? MR. SMITH: I have one.

david3

BY MR. SMITH: POOR ORIGINAL

Q Professor Herr, in response to a board question, my understanding is what you would want for alternative sites is the sectoral analysis for the proposed sites and all alternatives; is that correct?

A Sectoral analysis and unweighted population.

Q Okay.

And that's all you want? And --

A That's the thrust of what we're saying today, Yes, sir.

Q It's my understanding you look at that and based on that decision alone, it's one input?

A Yes, yes.

Q You don't want to see mateorology?

A We'd love to se. meteorology, but I don't think that prerequisits to the other being useful.

Q What is the use, then, of seeing the large numbers, just the fact that they are large numbers? That in and of itself is important?

A Sure it is, because that's useful for assessing the magnitude of effort which may be involved in making emergency preparations and in assessing adequacy of insurance arrangements and in assessing how big a chance am I taking, how much -- once again, to use the gambling analog, am I going to bet the house.

MR. SMITH: One moment, please. 1138 021
(Pause.)

BY MR. SMITH:

Q In this sectoral analysis, do you also want to know where the population is located with regard to distance from the site?

A Can I give a layman's answer --

Q No, you --

A The answer would be yes. I would very much like to see that, although I don't understand it all. I surely believe that folks who are close to the site are in a different circumstance relative to hazard rather than people who are further away. So, like yourselves, I would one way or the other give greater consideration to people who are close in. So, yes, what for demographic analysis would be useful would be the kind of format that is now developed in the PSAR; it's reflected in he SER; it's reflected in the ER, which is the population growth and the population growth by distance.

It's been incredibly vaxing; in order to get the population within a range, I'd have to subtract the outer ring from -- you know -- the other to get the difference, and be utterly unable to disantangle seasonal from year around once they've been weighted and summed.

So, you know, if I was able to write the specs for what would ideally be provided, it would be each of those pieces separately.

1138 022

david4

POOR ORIGINAL

11,705

david5

MR. SMITH: Excuse me a moment. That's all the questions I have. CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Thank you for being here,

Professor Herr. You're excused.

(Witness excused.)

What have se for tomorrow? Because we're going to adjourn now.

13 there anything for tomorrow morning?

MR. SMITH: We would like to put in our rebuttal testimony.

CHAIRMAN GCODHOPE: Well, we cally have -- it's 4:30 and the manager has been patient here.

MR. SMITH: I'm wondering if there's cross examination --

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Of whom?

MR. WRIGHT: There'll be some, that's the problem. CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: Oh.

MR. SMITH: We'll wait until tomorrow, because there will be cross.

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right.

MR. WRIGHT: Mr. Chairman, apparently this is the only thing that is left here. This rebuttal testimony and -it's a shame to bring everybody back here just for what I intend to be some very brief cross examination.

Under the circumstances, I will waive the cross examination. 1138 023 david6

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: All right.

MR. SMITE: I would like to stipulate it into the record and have it boord and I'll give the requisite copies to the reporter.

CHAIRMAN GOODHCPE: All right, the staff's rebuttal testimony to Phillip Herr will be bound to the end fof today's transcript.

Mr. Lewald, do you have any comment on it? Did you have any cross? DOOD ODICINAL

MR. LEWALD: We had no cross on the staff's rebuttal testimony. No further cross of the witness.

CHAIPMAN GOODHOPE: All right, It'll be bound in at the end of today's transcript as testimony.

MR. SMITH: All right, I'm just trying to think of all the procedure. That's fine.

CHAIRMAN GOODLUPE: Is that what you want?

MR. SMITH: The witnesses are under oath, there's no problem with this. I was just thinking in my mind whether there is any avidentiary problems. I don't think there are. The witnesses are under oath, it's been accepted. Fine.

CHAIRMAN FOORSTRE: Well, they're here to testify and will be here in the morning. That's the record. Well, that's it.

MR. SAITH: If we're binding it in, we don't have to come here tomorrow.

david7

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: That's what I understand. We're all through at this point. Now is there anything else, besides the testimony? The rebuttal testimony, that anybody has that will be presented tomorrow?

(No response)

CHAIRMAN GOODEOPE: Nobody has any then, so.

MR. LEWALD: The only thing we would like to present that we can do by way of writing is the briefing schedule. If the board would entertain such, but we can do that in writing rather than --

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE: You're talking of presentation of proposed findings?

MR. LEWALD: Yes, Sir.

(Board conferring)

CHAIRMAN GOODHOPE:Let's discuss that after we get off the record. The hearing will be adjourned subject to notice of the board.

(Whereupon, at 4:32 p.m., the hearing was adjourned subject to the call of the chair.)

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

BEFORE THE ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD

In the Matter of

BOSTON EDISON COMPANY, et al.

Docket No. 50-471

(Pilgrim Nuclear Generating Station, Unit 2)

REBUTTAL TESTIMONY TO PHILIP B. HERR,

ASSOCIATE PROFESSOR OF CITY PLANNING, MIT

By

Falk Kantor and Leonard Soffer U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D. C. 20555

1 Q. Have you read the Testimony of Philip B. Herr on Pilgrim 2 population 2 density and other site characteristics?

3 A. Yes, we have.

4 Q. Do you have any general comments to make regarding Professor Herr's5 testimony?

6 A. (Mr. Kantor and Mr. Soffer)* Yes. We believe that Professor Herr's testimony is very similar to the comments upon the Draft Supplement made 7 by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (See pages A-16 through A-30 of the 8 Final Supplement to the FES). We therefore believe that the Staff responses 9 to these comments which appear on pages 5-6 through 5-11, inclusive, of 10 the Final Supplement apply to much of Professor Herr's testimony as well. 11 12 Q. Professor Herr has given his interpretation of NRC siting policy on 13 pages 1 and 2 of his testimony. Do you have any comments to make in this 14 regard?

,15 Professor Herr's interpretation of NRC siting policy is not totally Α. 16 accurate or complete. The NRC relies primarily on a defense-in-depth 17 approach to protect the public health and safety. Siting is one element 18 in this approach. Nuclear power plants are required to be sited, designed. constructed, and operated on the basis of conservative application of 19 20 sound and accepted engineering principles, on requirements of multiple and redundant safety systems, and on a set of regulatory requirements that 21 are updated to reflect operating experience. The designers, builders, and 22 operators of these plants are required to have effective quality assurance . 23 programs and their work is subjected to a continuing licensing and 24

The responses to these questions are joint responses of Mr. Kantor and - Mr. Soffer unless otherwise indicated.

1138 027

- 1 -

inspection process by the NRC. However, even though the probability of 1 large accidents is very small, there remains some residual risk and the 2 residual misk to a surrounding population is higher when the proposed site 3 is in an area of relatively high population. Therefore the Commission 4 has had a consistent and long-standing policy of encouraging the siting 5 of reactors away from densely populated centers. As a further protective 6 measure, the Commission requires that emergency plans be developed which 7 provide reasonable assurance that appropriate measures can and will be 8 taken to reduce individual and population exposures in the event of an 9 accidental release of radioactive material. 10

Professo, Herr has alleged that "emergency off-site measures will obviously 11 be far more effective in sparsely populated areas." This statement is in-12 correct in two ways. First, Part 100.3(b) points out that "whether a specific 13 number of people can, for example, be evacuated from a specific area, or in-14 15 structed to take shelter, on a timely basis will depend on many factors such as location, number and size of highways, scope and extent of advance planning, 16 17 and actual distribution of residents within the area." Second, it does not conform to historical experience. The results of Ref. 1 have indicated that 13 evaculation has usually been accomplished more quickly in a relatively 19 densely populated area. 20

21 Pr fessor Herr also states that "careful evaluation of the size and dis-22 tribution of the population surrounding the reactor appears to have emerged 23 as the NRC's primary means of ensuring that the consequences of any acci-24 dent more severe than design-basis events are mitigated as much as possible."

Ref. 1. "Evacuation Risks - An Evaluation," EPA-520/6-74-002.

- 2 -

This is not entirely correct. Requiring that nuclear power plants be
 located away from densely populated centers as well as requiring that
 emergency plans be developed both function as means of keeping the con sequences of accidents beyond the design basis low.

5 Q. In section II of his testimony, from page 2 to page 8, Professor 6 Herr makes the general statement that the methodology used by the Staff 7 and the Applicant has relied upon "techniques that tend to understate 8 the final figures and obscure risk potential in the area surrounding the 9 Rocky Point site." What comments do you have to make in response to 10 this?

A. In this section, Professor Herr appears to fault the Staff methodology
in three areas: treatment of daily recreational visitors, time weighting
of transients, and inclusion of the water area in calculating the average
population density. We will respond to each of these.

First, as discussed in Appendix B of the Final Supplement to the FES, the 15 16 guidance given in Regulatory Guide 4.7 was followed in determining the cumulative population densities for the area surrounding the proposed Rocky 17 Point site and each of the alternative sites. This guide indicates how 18 transients and water area around a site should be treated. However, as Re-19 gulatory Guide 4.7 is silent on the matter of comparing the population dis-20 tribution of an alternative site to that of the proposed site, we developed 21 additional guidance for use in alternative site evaluations which is also 22 discussed in Appendix B of the Final Supplement to the FES. 23

24

Second, daily recreational visitors as well as seasonal residents weighted 1 2 to reflect their occupancy on an annual basis were included in the popu-3 lation total for the Rocky Point site. This is indicated in Section 4.1, page 4-2, of the Final Supplement (Section 4.1, page 30, of the Draft 4 5 Supplement) and discussed in more detail in pages 5-8 and 5-9 of the Final Supplement in our response to the comments of the Commonwealth of Massa-6 chusetts. As stated in our response, the number of visitors to the Ply-7 mouth historical sites and environs was projected to be 942,000 in 1985 8 and 1,598,000 in 2020. These population values were weighted by a factor 9 of 0.0033 (approximately one day per year occupancy) and included in the 10 total population estimate. 11

12 Third, the comments made by Professor Herr in regard to weighting of tran-13 sients are similar to comments made by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to 14 which we responded in the Final Supplement. As discussed in our response in Section 5.23 of the Final Supplement, transient populations; i.e., 15 16 seasonal residents and daily visitors, are weighted according to the fraction 17 of time, on an annual basis, they are expected to be present. This is in accordance with the guidance of Regulatory Guide 4.7 and, in effect, provides 18 an annual average of the population surrounding the site. The weighting of 19 transients is in keeping with the objective of an environmental review of 20 reaching a decision based on a realistic assessment of all factors rather 21 than on a worst-case analysis. An evaluation of the annual average popu-22 lation distributions in an alternative site review provides the basis for 23 the staff's judgment as to whether an alternative site is preferable. 24

1138 030

- 4 -

from a population standpoint, to a proposed site. However, it is impor-1 tant to distinguish between an alternative site study and emergency planning. 2 For emergency planning purposes, the actual time-dependent population 3 patterns including the peak transient populations are considered in the 4 development of the plans along with other site specific information such 5 as the availability and character of local evacuation routes. Pro-6 fessor Herr has failed to make the distinction between an alternative 7 site study and emergency planning. 8

Professor Herr's comment with respect to inclusion of the water area in 9 obtaining the average population density is similar to comments made by 10 the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. In our response to Section 5.23 of -11 the Final Supplement, we indicated that the staff's consideration of 12 land and water areas in determining the population density at a radial 13 distance from a coastal site is consistent with the staff's concept of a 14 risk analysis as employed in evaluating alternative sites. A basic assump-15 tion in this approach is that .ypical coastal meteorology exists and that 16 roughly half the time the wi is blowing offshore. An examination of 17 onsite meteorological data for the Rocky Point site indicates that this 18 is the case. To use only the land area in determining the population 10 density in an alternative site review, as Professor Herr would have us 20 do, would weigh against coastal sites in comparison with inland sites and 21 discount a distinct advantage of coastal sites in that no people are at 22 risk on one side of the site. (See responses below for further discussion 23 of staff methodology.) Again, it must be emphasized that for emergency 24

1138 031

- 5 -

1 planning purposes the actual distribution of population is considered 2 rather than the average populations used in alternative site comparison 3 Do you have any other comments in regard to this section? 0. 4 Α. Yes, there is a plotting error in Professor Herr's representation 5 of the 1985 cumulative population for the Pilgrim site in Figure 1 of his 6 testimony. The 1985 cumulative population between 0 and 5 miles is higher than 7 depicted by Professor Herr. However, the 1985 cumulative population is still below the 500 people per square mile curve as indicated by Professor Herr. 8 9 Professor Herr has commented on page 8 that "there is no explicit 0. 10 discussion in the staff's Draft Supplement dealing with comparison between 11 sites regarding the maximum number of persons potentially at risk in the 12 even of a major accident." What is your response to this? 13 The staff has observed (see page 5-10 of the Final Supplement to Α. 14 the FES) that an annual average population is appropriate in order to 15 make a realistic overall assessment of the environmental risk associated with a site. The staff also noted that for emergency planning considera-16 17 tions plans must be shown to be compatible with the maximum number of 18 persons that might be in the vicinity. The Commission has proposed amending its regulations regarding Emergency 19

Planning (Appendix E to 10 C.F.R. Part 50). In the notice that accompanied the proposed Amendment and which appeared in the Federal Register
(FR, page 37473, August 23, 1978), the Commission noted in the Supplementary Information that:

24

The principal aspects of the NRC staff review for

1138 032

- 6 -

emergency planning includes the protections of persons within the exclusion area, the onsite emergency response organization, the protection of the public beyond the exclusion area and the connection between the facilities plan and that of the offsite emergency response organization consisting of local, State and Federal agencies. These reviews are part of the safety review of each application. These matters may also be considered in identifying any potential emergency planning advantages or disadvantages of particular sites as part of the NEPA cost/benefit analysis of alternate sites.

The staff has therefore prepared an analysis with the objective of identifying "any potential emergency planning advantages or disadvantages of particular sites." This analysis will be presented as a separate piece of supplemental testimony at a later time in this proceeding, and will consider the maximum number of persons in the vicinity of each of the sites.

Q. In order to illustrate the difference between the staff's "expected value" analysis and his "maximum risk" analysis, Professor Herr has presented an example in Figure 2 of his testimony of two hypothetical sites having equal numbers of ponulation but different spatial configuration. Do you have any comments on this illustration?

A. Professor Herr has shown two hypothetical sites, one with the population uniformly distributed (Site A) and one with all of the population

1138 033

- 7 -

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1 concentrated in one western section (Site B). Professor Herr states that 2 the population risk would be identical in both cases using the staff's 3 method but in actuality the "maximum risk" is much greater for Site B in the event of a major accident coupled with a westward wind. 4 We believe Professor Herr has confused risk with worst case consequences 5 6 and that his example can be used to illustrate the difference between risk 7 as defined by the staff (probability times consequences) and risk as envisioned by Professor Herr. For reference, the two hypothetical sites 8 are show below. 9



all 16 units of population in one western sector. (We have changed the

1138 03.4

population values slightly from Professor Herr's example for ease of com-1 putation but basically our example is identical to Professor Herr's.) 2 Now let us assume that (1) the probability of an accident occurring is 3 the same at both sites, (2) the population is all located at the same dis-4 tance from the reactor. (3) the wind is uniformly distributed at both sites, 5 and (4) all other factors are equal. In our evaluation we would say that 6 the risk of exposure to the population is equivalent at both sites. This 7 can the shown mathematically as follows: 8 9

Risk = Probability x Consequences

11 where probability is represented by the annual frequency the wind blows -12 toward a given sector (1/8 or .125) and consequences are represented by 13 the number of people in a given sector. For Site A, summing over all 14 eight sectors:

15 Risk A = (.125)(2) - (.125)(2) + (.125)(2) + (.125)(2) + (.125)(2) + (.125)(2) + (.125)(2) + (.125)(2) + (.125)(2)

17 | Risk A = 2

18

10

19 For Site B, summing over all eight sectors: 20 Risk B = (.125)(16) + (.125)(0) + (.125)(0) + (.125)(0) + (.125)(0) + (.125)(0) + (.125)(0) + (.125)(0) 21 (.125)(0) + (.125)(0) + (.125)(0) 22 Risk B = 2

23 Therefore, the risk to the population of a serious accident at the two 24 sites, as defined by the staff, is equal.

1 Professor Herr would say that the "maximum risk" of an accident, assuming 2 a westward wind, is much greater at Site B $(.125 \times 16 = 2)$ than it is 3 at Site A (.125 x 2 = .250). We submit that what Professor Herr has illustrated is that the consequences at Site B would be much worse than at 4 Site A if the accident occurred with a westward wind. In this regard, 5 we agree with Professor Herr. However, the risk, as we have demonstrated, 6 is the same at both Sites A and B. The risk at Site B would only be 7 much greater than at Site A if the wind blew toward the population con-8 centration sector with a much greater frequency of occurrence than toward 9 the other seven sectors. 10

Professor Herr states that the population distribution around the Rocky Point site is extraordinarily uneven by radial sector and that in some sectors (e.g., the northwest and southeast sectors) the population density is nearly four times higher than the population density guideline values given in Regulatory Guide 4.7. Is this a proper application of the population density guidelines?

17 A. No. The population density guideline values given in Regulatory Guide 4.7 are intended to be used in conjunction with cumulative population density, 18 19 that is, average population density. They are not to be used to draw 20 conclusions regarding individual high population density sectors. The staff was aware in the development of the population guidelines that there 21 would be sectors or concentrations of population within the radius of 22 interest that would have much higher densities than the average. If the 23 objective was to examine the populations in these high density pockets, 24

1138 036

- 10 -

1	dif :rent guideline criteria would have been developed.
2	Professor Herr also states that the consequences of a major accident in
3	the summertime with a wind toward the southeast would be to place at
4	risk a population more than double the population indicated by the guide-
5	line values of Regulatory Guide 4.7. We would like to reiterate that the
6	population density guideline values of the guide are not intended to be used
7	for emergency planning purposes and that in developing emergency response
8	procedures the actual population distribution is used.
9	Q. Professor Herr has discussed traffic problems associated with a
10	possible evacuation of the area around the plant together with a possible
11	evacuation of Cape Cod. Do you have any comments?
12	A. Yes, but they will be set forth in the Staff's testimony relating
13	to emergency planning.
14	Q. Does this complete your testimony?
15	A. Yes.
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	

.

- 11 -

. . .